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Strategic report
For ihe year ended 31 March 2023

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple {formerly
Western Power Distribution ple} "™NGED ple” or the “Cermgpary™ and its subsidiary undertakings (the "NGED Group”, "the Group” or
"NGED") for the year ended 31 March 2023. These arc preparcd in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards

("IFRS") as adopted by the 1K

Overview

The NGED Group mainly comprises the four DNOs: National Grid Electricity Distribution {South West) Ple (formerly Western Power
Distribution (South West) ple) ("NGED South West"), National Grid Electricity Distribution (South Wales) ple {formerly Western
Power Distribution {South Wales) plc) ("™NGED South Wales™), National Grid Electricity Distribution (East Midlands) Ple (formerly
Western Power Distribution (Fast Midlands) ple) ("™NGED East Midlands"). and National Grid Electricity Distribution (West Midiands)
Ple (formerly Western Power Distribution (West Midlands) plc) ("NGED West Midlands™).

Our combined netwaork is the largest in the UK, with our four XNOs delivering clectricity to approximately 8.0 million {2022: 8.0
million) homes and businesses and employing on average 6,667 (2022: 6,632} staff.

Customers Area
{million) {sg km)
NGED South West 16 14 400
NGLED South Wales 1.2 11,800
NGED East Midlands 2.7 16,000
NOED West Midlands 2.5 13,300
8.0 55,500

We look after a network of wires, poles, pylons, cables and
substations. dclivering power to homes and businesses across
our four regions.

In addition to the DNOs, the Group also consists o a number of other smaller subsidiaries including National Grid Telecoms Limited.
inational Grid Electricity Distribwtion Generation Limited and National Grid Helicopters Limited. The primary purpose of these
businesses is to support the DNOs and network related activitics of the Group. The Group also owns property companies, 1o facilitate
the management of non-operational and investment properties of the Group.

(hunersiip

The NGED Group is owned by National Grid Electricity Distribution Ple {formerly Western Power Distribution Ple), which is a public
limited company registered in England and Wales. The ulimate controlling parent of the NGED Group is National Grid Ple ("™National
Grid™). registered in England and Walcs. National Grid ple is one of the world's largest investor-owned energy utilities, and operates in
the LK and the US.

More information on the management structure of National Grid can be found in the National Grid ple Annual Report and Accounts
202223 and on the National Grid websits:

The Company and its subsidiarics were acquired by National Grid in June 2021, As part of the integration of the Company and its
subsidiaries into the National Grid Group. on 20 September 2022 the name of the Company was changed to Nationa! Grid Electricity
Distribution ple from Western Power Distribution Ple.

Financial highlights

2022/23 2021/22 % change
Revenue 2,096.5 1,886.0 11%
Profit before tax 681.4 746.9 -9%
Cash generated from operations 1.124.3 1.133.8 -1%
See page 13 for details on finarcial ughhiy

2022723 2021722
Regulatory asset value ("RAV™) 19,846.4 9,407 .1
Return on equity ("ROE™ 13.2% 13.6%

Sce pages 15 and 16 for details

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly YWestern Power Distribution plc) 1



Strategic report
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Overview (continued)

Non-financial highlights

2022/23 2021/22
Customer satisfaction score (out of t)* 8.9% 9.03
Network reliability 99.995% 98.994%

* Against Ofgem's target score 0f 8 2
See pages 8-13 for further details on our key performance indicators ("KPIs").

What we do - electricity

The electricity industry connects generation sources to homes and businesses through transmission and distribution networks.
Companies thal pay to usc transmission & distribution networks buy electricity from generators and sell it to consumers

The UK electricity industry has {ive main scctors,

Generation
Generation is the production of electricity from fossil fuel and nuclear power stations, as well as réngwable sources such as wind and
solar. We do net own or operate any commercial electricily generation (acilities.

The UK is moving away from a historical reliance on large thermal power generation and there is now a greater diversity of supply and
flexible demand than ever before. Therefore. the electricity distribution network has a pivotal rofe to play in the future energy mix, with
evolving roles enabling a range of possible energy lutures {or the long-term benefit of consumers.

Interconnectors

‘I'ransmission grids arc often interconnected so that ensrgy can flow from one country or region to another. This helps to provide a safe.
secure, reliable and affordable energy supply for citizens and society across the region. [nterconnectors alse allow power suppliers to
scll their cnergy to customers in other countries.

Great Britain is linked via interconnectors wilh Ireland, Northern Ireland, France, Belgium, Norway and Nethertands. National Grid ple
is conlinuing to work on developing additional interconnector projects, which we beliove will deliver significant benefits to customers.

Nationa! Grid Ple, through separate companies held outside of NGED. sclls capacity on its UK interconnectors (with France, Belgium,
Norway and the Wetherlands) through auctions.

Transmission

National Grid Ple. through a separate company outside of NGED, owns and operates the high-voltage electricity transmission network in
fingland and Wales. Cleciricity transmission ensures electricity is transported safely and efficienty from where it is produced, to reach
homes and businesses reliably. Transmission svstems generally include overhead lines, underground cable and substations and connect
to industrial propertics and distribution networks who deliver the electricity on to homes and commercial properties. fhey alse facilitate
the connection of generation asszis to the transmission system.

Distribution

NGED is a distribution network and system operator and our disiribution network connects customers to the National Grid electricity
transmission nefwork We convert the high voltage electricity gencrated by large power generation sites, such as power stations, and
delivered through the National Grid network. to lower volt that can be uscd by the customers We deliver it safely into homes and
businesses in our regions, via our safe and reliable network. As the country drives towards decarbonisation, many smaller renewable

enaration installations are now connected directly to our network. bypassing the transmission system and the traditional model. During

the coming vzars, we will experience unprecedenied change in our industry, including an exponential rise in electric vehicles. heat
pumps and battery storage. We ain1 to deliver trensformation efficiently, while continuing to provide a resilient electricity supply.

Supply
The supply of electricity involves the buying of electricity and selling it on w customicrs. Tt also involves customer services, billing and

the collection of customer accounts.

We do not sell electricity or bill dircetly 1o our consumers. Our customers are registered with licensed electricity suppliers, who in turn
pay the NGED Group for vse of the nstwork.

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (fornimerly Western Power Distributinn plc) 2
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Strategic report (continued)
Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

What we do - NGED Business model

Our core activilies are:

Keep the Maintain Fix the Connect Operate a
power ficwing eqguIpment natwork rusiomars smart systeam

The Group's network comprises approximaltely 89,000km (2022: 90,000km) of overhead lines, 139.000km {2022: 138,000km) of
underground cable and 190,000 (2022: 130,000) transformers, We maintain our network assets to cnsure safe and reliable distribution of
electricity to homes and businesses across cur four regions.

Our costs are regulated and based on an agreed allowance set by the Office of Gas and Eleciricity Markets ("Ofgem™); on average (based
on a consumption of 3.100 kilowatt hours) NGELD domestic customers pay E£131.49 (2022: £90.25 per annum™) for electricity
distribution costs. Our costs form part of the bill to customers from the electricity suppliers. The increase in the bill is primarily due to
recovery of Last Resort Supply Paymen! “LRSIP™ claims arising due to significant supplier liquidations in 2021. Refer to pages 14, 153
and 77 (notc 5) for further details. Excluding the impact of recovery of these claims. NGED custemers have paid £97.23 per annum for
the electricily distribution costs.

We provide a reliable and cfficient power supply at an affordable price, as well as supporting the most vuinerable people in the areas we
serve. We believe that the use of in-house regional resources is crucial for cost effective and reliable delivery, which is why we use
geographically based teams to serve each area. Our staff know the area. network, Jecal developments and communities, enabling us to
provide efficicnt. high quality customer service.

The eritical role we play in society is changing. As well as keeping the lights on today, we are also committed to driving a more
sustainable future. It is our mission to respond to the changing energy landscape and support the .4 s legislated ambition of achieving
net zero carbon emissions by 2030,

What we do - Regulatory framework

Distribution network operators are natural monopolies and to ensure the provision of value for money services for consumers, are
regulated by the Gas and Flectricity Markets Authority, which operates through Ofgem. The operations are regulated under the
distribution licence which sets the requirements that NGED needs to deliver for fts cusiomers, Ofgem has a statutory duty under the Act
to protect the interests of consumers. Ofgem also has responsibility to enable competition and innovation and Lo protect consumers from
the ability of companies te set unduly high prices. Ofgeni has established price controls that limit the amount of revenue our regulated
business can earn. In selting price controls. Ofgem must also have regard (0 ensuring thal licence holders are able to finance their
obligations under the Act.

The regulatory framework is based on sustainable nclwork repulation, known as the "RIIO" model where Revenues “Incentives |
Innovation — Outputs. Under the RITO model there is an emphasis on companies playing a full role in developing a mare systainablc
energy sector and delivering valuc for mongy network services for customers. The outputs we deliver are clearly articulated and are
integrally linked 1o the caleulation of our allowed revenue, although some outputs and deliverables have only a reputational impact or
are linked to legislation. We do not earn allowances if we do not deliver the associated agreed output. A key feature of the RIIO model
is that the expected outpuls dehivered by network companies is influenced by its stalkcholders through extensive engagement.

Ofgem, using information ws have submitted, along with independent assessments, determines the efficient level of expected costs
necessary for these deliverables te be achicved. Under RIIO this is known az “we”. which is a2 component of total allowable
expenditure and is broadly the sum of operating expenditure ("opex™) and capital expenditure ("capex™).

A number of assuraptions are necessary in sefting the outputs, such as certain prices or the volumes of works that will be needed.
Consequently, there are a number of uncertainty mechanisms within the RIIO framework that can result in adjustments 1o totex
allowances if actual volumes differ from the assumptions. These mechanisms protect us and our customers [tom windfall gains and
losses. Where we under or over-spend against the allowed totex there is a "sharing” factor. This means we share the under or over spend
with customers through an adjustment to allowed revenues in fulure years. This sharing factor provides an incentive for us to provide the
outputs efficiently, as we are able 1o keep a portion of savings we make, with the remuainder benefliting our customers. Likewise, it
prevides a level of protection for us if we need 10 spend more than allowances.

* The average domestic customer price stated 10 31 March 2022 financial statements was £98 §3 and was based on NGELY's forecasted domestic consumption in
kilowat hours [n the cutrent year, reperting fas besn amended to calculate the averave price based on 3,100 kilowsll kours consumplion and thus the
comparative has boon restated

PR}
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Strategic report (¢continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

‘What we do - Regulatory framework (continued)

Allowed revenue to fund totex costs is split between RITO “&st” and " slow’ money categories using specified ratios that are fixed fur the
duration of the price control. Fast money represents the amount of totex we are able to recover in the year of expenditure. Slow mopey is
added to our Regulatory Assct Value ("RAV"), In addition 1o fast money, cach year we are allowed to recover regulatory depreciation,
i.e. a portion of the RAV", and a return on the outstanding RAV balance. The RAV is also indexed to a measure of inflation i.e. RPl and
CPIIL We are also allowed to collect additional revenues related to non controllable costs and incentives. In addition 1o lotex sharing,
RITO incentive mechanisms can increase or decrease our allowed revenue to reflect our performance against various other measures
related to our outputs. There are rewards and penalties for performance against incentives. Thus, allowed revenue that a regulatory
company <an earn through distribution use of system charges ("DUoS") comprises of base revenue and incentive rewards or penalties
including uncertainty mechanisms. Base revenue includes allowances for operating costs, return of capital (RAV depreciation), return an
capital (cost of cquity and cost of debt funding). tax, pension deficit repair and any adjustment to previous allowances.

Simnplificd ihustration of RO regulkdory buildissy blocks:

of RAY

RHG-ED]

The year ending 31 March 2023 was the final year of the § year elcctricity price control (known as RIO-ED1). RIO-ED1 was the first
price contrel under the RILO model and NGED submitied an outputs based Business Plan for the RIIO-LDI period (2015-2023), which
was accepted by Ofgem as "well justified” and "fast-tracked” for all four NGED licensed areas; the only DNO Group 1o be fast tracked.
NGED's modificd licences took effect from 1 April 2013,

Ko mewmneners Toon Ofgam’s BO0-E201 demmuunanon e WoED

tAllowed return on equity (refer to page 16 for details) 6.40% real, relative to RP1 al 65% gearing
Allowed debt funding Based on 10-year trailing averaze of iBoxx
Depreciation of RAV Straight line 45 vear depreciation

PN otional gearing {target for four DNOS) (refer to page 16) 63%

Split between fast slow mongy 80Y% capitalisation rate, being slow money
[Sharing factor 70%

[Core baselines totex in 2018, 19 prices {cumulative for RIIO-ED1) £8.1 bn

Our RIO-ED| business plan is available at the link below:

PP

RHO-ED2

RIO-ED2, covering the 3 year period April 2073 to March 2028, is the second price controf to be set under the RI(Q model and NGED
has been allowed £3.9bn (in 2020 21 prices) of totex As aresult of ithe Government legislating for net zero carbon by 2030, DNOs will
be at the forefront of its delivery cnabling the transition w a smart, fiexible. low cost and low carbon energy system for all consuniers
and network users. Our business plan was co-crzated with our stakeholders following an enhanced and robust approach to stakeholder
engagement and outhned the network investment we proposs 1o deliver for the 3 year period, how much it will cost and the benzfits to
customers apd stakeholders.

The final submission of our business plan was made on 1 December 2021 and Ofgem publizhed its final determination on 30 November

LIII Fav lemm g rmeron T RIDEOTT gemnen wemaa ur b
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Strategic repert (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Our purpose, vision, values and strategy

In delivering cur RITO-LD1 commitments and laying the foundation for delivery of outpuis within RIIO-ED2, we work within the
purpose, vision, values and strategic priorities of the National Grid Group o cnsure we are well positioned to respond to the changes in
our operating environment.

National Grid Llectricity Distribution is the largest electricity distribution network in the UK, providing a great platform from which to
play our role in the energy iransition tou net-zcro.

Our purpose
Our purpose is to bring energy to life.

Our vision
Our vision is to be at the heart of a clean, fair and affordable encrgy future:

Clean - Treiding ofimeie dlage O exiing e W & IED 22
far - Dasurng hac e e g et eI a ery TImnen
AT - Ivervone shoule ze dive © ey b Sime sssennd seeyy oesds

ur values
Qur values underpin everything we do at NGED:

Our valugs shape our company and how our customers and communities experience us, They inform cur dacisions, how we show up and
the way we treal sach other. Our values hold great importance because as a company at the hearl of a clean, fair and affordable energy
future, we know the work we do is important but how we do it is just as imiportant.

Cur strategy
To deliver our vision, we have a strategy which seis the bounds of our business, guided by our four strategic priorities.

Within the RIIO-ED1 business plan we have 76 commitments pertaining to safety, reliability, eavironment, connections. customer
satisfaction and social obligations. Our slrategic prioritics above arc aligned to our business plan commitments. These strategic
prioritics enable us to deliver our RIIO-ED1 business plan commitments by investing our allowance efficiently and are also crucial to
laying the foundation for delivery of the outputs within R110-ED?. Refer to pages 21-22 for details on our RIIOG-ED2 commitments,

i
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Strategic report (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Delivering our strategic priorities

L

LEnable the energy transition for all

1 B What this means

] L

2022/23 achievements

_J1

We will inerease the positive
impact  we
environment

have  on  the
and  socicty by
innovating our nctworks and
influencing  policy 0 enable
clean clectricity and electrified
heat and transpori.

= Qur lflexible services arc tow cosl alternalives 1o
network reinlorcement that help to manage copstraints
on the network and save customers money. In 2022/23.
we han e procured 134MW of flexibility services via our

tflexible power brand. Across all flexibility zones
(including  procurements  in - previous  yearsy, this
impacts  approsimately  1.34 miilion customers and

difers £43 million of reinforcement.

=We hasve streamlined our connections process making
it quicker and casier for customers 10 conneel clectric
vehicle chargers and heat pumps. We have reccived and
processed over 30.000 domestic electric vehicle churper
and heat pump applications in the current year, 98% of
those were approved within 2 working days.

= As parl of the Green Recovery initiative launched last
sear, we hiave completed multiple projects encouraging
eronth  of Tow  carbon ("L sy,
specifically  eleetrical sehicles, As a result of these
targeied investment projects. mecting the criteria of
enabling net sero. we have connected around 2.900 ot
additional 1.C1s since the launeh of this initiative.

technotogics

Looking ahead i
= During the next 5 vears of RIIO-ED2.
we o will prepare for  the  future

electrification  of  transportation  and
heating by cnabling the network to eater
for up to 1.5 million additional eicctrical
ehicles, 600,000 heat pumps and a
significant increase in renewable energy.
« By adopting a  Cdiexieine S
approach to all load related investment
decisions. we have committed that by
2028 we will save over £94 million of
network reinforcement  costs by
operating our networks more flexibly,

= As parl of our et and Faie” project
we are developing a Capability Fens and
offering profiling tools. enabling us to
maodel the capabilitics of yvulnerable
cusloniers 1w participate in a smart. low
carbon future. These will be used (o
improve access to existing smart energy
schemes and services and design and
implement new inlerventions lo support
wider participation in a smarl cnergy
market.

i

Deliver for our customers efficiently

J

i What this means i { 2(22/23 achicy cments | ] Looking ahead §
Our  imestments  in - energy = We have enceeded Ogem’s targets for customer  « For RILO-ED2. we imend 10 ensure

svslem decarbonisation are
underpinned by a track record
of operational ¢xcellence  and
financial  discipline.  cnsuring
the delivery of sale. reliable.
resilient. and affordable energy
for our customers.

service i the Broad Measure of Customer Satislaction.
achieving 899 out of 10 for overall
satisfiaction.

customer

“~We have continued 1o deliver service improsements.
exceeding targets {or hoth Customer Interruptions and
Customer Minutes Lost by 27% and 26% respeciively.

* We have achicved the British Standard Institution
SBRDY for Inclusive Service Provision ¢ BRERETT
for the tenth year running and we vere reaccredited
with Customer Scrvice Fxeellence ("CSEY) Swuandard.
We are compliant on all elements and 47:57 (2022:
46°57) clements are awarded “womplwmce plas” level
demonstrating UK-wide best practice.

< We resolved 85% of complaints within one day.
beating the RIEO-EDT target o 70%a.

e Demand
Encapsulating Ctliciency
SDEFENIERTY to benetits of
different energy -saving intenventions on a range of
archetyvpe  buildings. By gaining  a
understanding of the energy reguirements we can help
Hustrate which intersentions are likely to be cost
effective (o customers, and also whether the network

have  taunched o projeet  called

I orecasting Domestic
Retrofits assenys  the

greater

benetits from reducing eleciricity consumplion conld

justify our investment in targeted energy efficiency

sehemes,

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple {formerly Western Power Distribution ple)

that pover culs will be at their lowest
levels and  customer  satisfaction
wilt be at s highest at over 93%.
Crucialls, we will achieve all ol this

e er

whilst maintaining affordability for our
customers,

RHO-ED2. we also
commitied to resolving at least 90% of
complaints within one day and 99% of
complaings within 31 davs.

« For have

« We will more than double our fucel
porerty support. w0 help deliver over
£60m of savings for 113.000 fuel poor
customuers aver the course of REO-E12.

= Maintain netvwork reliability where on
average power cuts are better than one
interruption every two years lasting less
than 24 minutes  whilat
sulnerable customer data to prioritise

utilising

network improvement schemes.



Strategic report (continued)
FFor the year ended 31 March 2023

Delivering our strategic priorities (continued)

Grow our organisational capability

il

H What this means i1 2022/23 achievements 11 Looking ahead 1
To deliver our part in a = In this rapidly changing cnergy sector. we have = We will undertake  three  regional
changing energy system. we are comtinued 10 build on cur organisational capabilities.  collaboration trtal  schemes by 2025

our internal
processes. strengthening our
customer focus. and sharpening
our commercial edge.

transiorming

During RO-EDIL. we transfonmed our network 1o
accommodate  a significant  growth ol distributed
generation. with the capability to connect 33GW of
generation on a nelwork originally designed for 14GW
W demand. Energy storage is increasinghy being used
alongside generation fo store excess power and release
it to the network at a later point in time. A total of
11.3GW distribution generation is connected w0 our
network to date. of which 7.5GW s
wencration. an increase of 1296 compared to last year.
This includes biofuels. wind. solar, hydro and storage.

jow-carbon

imvolving gas. electricity, water. waste.
transport and heating sectors. This will
enable us in wlilising whole sy stems
approach for major reintorcement and o
look across wider cnergy systems to
provide capacity for the future needs of
our customers in the most eflicient way.

=We are invesling in our Planning State
Estimation & Data Historian platforms,
which will enable us to consolidate all
our real time data sources into
place. This improved nerwork visibility
will enable ws to improve operational
making and long-term

onc

decision
planning.

onr

Empower our people for great performance

1 What this means

I L

2022/23 achievements

Looking ahead i

Our people shape the culture
and ways of working needed w
deliver outcomes  thal exceed
the expectations of  all
stakeholders, By attracting
diverse talent and developing
our people. we will ensure our
collagues are best placed o
work towards a clean
future,

our

enerey

« Tn 1esponse to results of our cmployee surves
'Gridivoiee'. developed  an action plan which
carmarked 37 areas of improvement and o dale have
completed 24 of them. with many others being ongoing

we

areas of improaement. Our training journcy during the
vear is one such area that was a direct result of feedback
trom Gridivoice. During the current year. we hine
signiticantly our  lraining
covering a vast range of arcas such as craft stalfl
apprentices.  DSO. gradunte
project management and data & digitalisation. We
700 formal training
programmes. including those we arc training ahead of

increased Programmes,

telecoms. engineering.

currently have employees on
need tw ensure we are ready tur the future. We have

also introduced a range of courses 1o widen the

des clopment opportunitics for colleagues,

» We launched a new training scheme called Power
Network Craft Assistant o ™Y specifically aimed
at people who have left school without or with miniimal
paid 12-13
months training programme. following which a craft
assistant job will be ollered,
appointed in the current vear under this scheme.

qualification. This scheme provides a

6 cmplovees werg

= With an aim ol preparing our colleagues for the
challenges of RITO-1D2 and  further esolving our
culture. we have dusigned a new training progranmime
for our managers called ‘Building High Performing
Feams'. 280 managers are scheduled to undertake a siv
month training programime o support thent in their role,
= A Safe o Say' initiative was launched to ensure that
all colleagues have a oice safe and
cmpowered to raise a concern or iden. either direetly or
in confidence.

and  feel

= During the sear. we have placed great focus on the
will-being ol our colleagucs. in particular refating o
mental health, {his ngludes recruiting over 260 mental
health first aiders who are being trained (o provide
support acess the business.

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple)

= We intend to continue achieving ycar
on year improsements to the ievels of
diversity within the business and publish
an annually updated Diversity, Equity
and [nclusion ("RE&I™) Action Plan.
We also will revicw our processes to
further embed DE&I training as part of
the induction,

- We continue  to and
expand  inernal for
colleagues. A new training programie
that is to be implemented next year is for
technician deselopment. In addition we

will promote

trainceships

are  also  continuing  with our High
Performing Teams leadership

programme proyiding solt skills training
for fronl ling people managers. We will
also continue tw run DE&I training for
all  people managers. as
diversiny workshop
MindGym for senior leadess.

well oas

fraining with
g

« We will continue to utilise our annual
Giridsvoice survey and our interim Pulse
sursey Lo identily arcas of improyement.
with the aim of ensuring that NGED
vontiinues 1o be a great place W work.

~1



Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Key pertormance indicators (KP1s)
NGED utilises KPls to assess progress against our overall purpose and strategic privuities.

i Enable the encrgy transition for il i
| KPI 1§ Performance and comments 1
Business carbon footprint .

BCF

("BCF™)

SE6 emissions
{emissions as % of SF6 bank)
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Our BCT details the impact that our operational activities have on the envirogment in terms ol
associaled carbon diexide 1w semissions. We report our BCT using equivalent tonnes ol carbon
dioaide o™ me™: We currently repori a number of scope 3 emissions ingluding contractor
emissions and business mileage (road rail. air). NGED follows a recognised mcthodology as
deseribed within international business carbon [ootprint standards. the Greenbouse Gas ("GIHG™)
carbon reporting guidance. the 2020 UK Goverument GHG Comversion Faetors for company
reporting and 1SO14064-3.

NGED's curremt targel is a 3% reduction over the RIIO-ED] period based on the baseline year of
2012413, A1 2022723 the NGED Group is outperforming the target. Our Business Carbun Fooltprint
lts reduced by 3925 (2021/22: 353%) sinee 2014715,

For details on the methodology for the caleulation af our BCI refer (o page 44

SEO gas is used throughout our industry as an insulating medivm in switchgear. Although it
provides many benefits it s 2 potent greenhouse gas. There are currently no viable alternatives to
SF6. Therefore we continuously mouitor our SE6 emissions,

The amount of SI'6 emitted s expressed s a percentage of the overall “#unk” of 816 contained
within our switchgear. s this will vany over the period of RIO-EDL Fhe target is hased on an
average of emissions between 200910 and 2010/4 1.
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Overall the level of leakage s reducing over time as older units are replaced with new units which
atso contain lower fevels of SF6. The NGED Group's current target is a 17% reduction over the
RILO-EDT period. 1he target was set at the start of RIKHEDT and relates only to top ups ©o leakage
as the serap and manutacturers seturn data was not compiled at that time. This target has been met.
When replucing switchgear we give priority to the switchgear with the highest {eak rates. Within
RTOO-1.51 we have committed to replacing any 11KV distribution assets that show signs ol leakage
and any higher voltage assets that hase Teaked three times, When aleak becomes apparent we locaie
its source so that a strategy can be deseloped to manage the situation taking into account the
potential for repairs and the lead times for replacement s itchgear.
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Key performance indicators (KPIs) (continued)

Enable the encrgy transition for all I

i Kri 1t Performance and comments ]

Fiuid cable losses

The design of very high voltage underpround cables has exohied over many years and our new
cables all usc a solid plastic-like insulation. Old designs of 33kV and higher voltage cables used an
insulating oil in ducts inside the cable. Whilst these cables are normally very reliable, in the event
of a fault or damage by third partics. this oil may leak out. In commeon with other DNOs. NGIED
works Lo an operating code agreed with the Environment Agency and assesses both the condition
and the environmental risk posed by the fluid titled cables which the NGED Group osvns,

Oil loss in litres

Actual Tosses == = Target logses

50,000 -
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40,004 30,950 ) 35233
————— 23338
30,000 . e ——— 18,313 1841 2333
B -“—&-_______
20,000 - =291 17,250 Bataiadel T X SN
10,000

201415
201516
201617
200918
21819
2019/20
2020121
02122
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[he NGED Group's target was a 75% reduction over the RUIO-ED1 period. The losses [rom
NGED's fluid filled cables can vary from year to year generally dependent on the number of small
leaks at disparate locations. However last vear and in the current year, unusuatly high losses were
reporicd due to a small number of isolated incidents. which resulted in the target being missed he
maost signiticant loss last yvear was the Plymouth BSP/Milehouse No2 circuit - losing 13,975 litres,
This year the two most significant losses were PembrokesWaterston 1/ Milford Tlasen losing 4.440
fitres and Bustleholm Kingstanding fosing 4.314 #Hitres. Older styies of electricity cables containing
oil occasionally Leak when equipment is damaged. seals deteriorate or as a result of changing
ground conditions (wet 1o dry). Replacement progranunes for the older st les of cables have been
planned, The Environment Agenvy ("12A") and Nalural Resources Wales have been hept fully
informed of the oil losses. and we continue to operate under the TA Fluid Filled Cable Qperating,

Code of Practice.

Deliver for our customers efficiently

i Krt 11 Performance and comments

Overall customer satisfaction

. ) . As parl of fageme's Broad Measure of
Customer satisfaction score . e .

Customer Satisfaction Ineentive, a research

Score put 0 kY e Targst ageney undertakes o monthly satisfaction

19 913 503 299 supvey  assessing  customers’ satisfaction

tor connection quotations and delivers,

j power interruptions and gencral enguiries,

The customer satistiction score is given
4 ‘ oul of 10, For 8874 lour licence arcas
Z around 2E000 customers are sunveyed per
Q Lo,

202021 2021722 2022/23

NGED continues 1o deliver levels of customers service signilicantly above the bascline set for R110-
LI and continiues to earn high levels ol ineentives revards under the BMCS by owtperforming the
8.2 targel.

National Grid Electricily Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 9



Strategic report (continued}
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Key performance indicators (WP1s) (continued)

i Deliver for our customiers efficiently

I KP] Performance and comments

Customer minutes lost

. B\7 ¥ P 7 CML - South Wales
(MOMLY CIVIL - South West
WTarge UM, -Azigal OML wlarget CTAL Actual CML
60 a0
235
E a1y
2.5 ;
44 367 213 40 331 A "
' 245 24.6 258
20 2 -
Q - 9]
2020/ 2021722 2022723~ 2020¢21 2021/22 2022/23%
CML - East Midiands CMIL - West Midlands
Winsger CWL Actal OB wTarce Ci
60 600 550 502 50.3
a2 357
0 - 2.5 ]
4 ‘ i 283 195 307
23t 20 iy X :
20 240 )
i . : s 0o . .
2020:21 202122 2022723 2020:21 2021422 2022:23%

# e 2022 23 aetnals are <ubject to Ofgem confiomation.

CML represents the average time a customer is withowt power during the year. It 1s caleulated by
tahing the sum of customer minutes fost for all incidents. excluding the alfowed exceptionad eyents,
divided bs custonwers connected. The targets ane dettned by Otgem at cach DINO fevel. Year on
sear NGED s ouperforming is argeis as we are focwed on ensuring complete manimmm
reliubility for our customers,

Number of customer

. . CT - South Wales
interruptions (""C1E")

C1 - South West

ey Aol CF

10¢ 109
30 82
B 583 < .
60 se) B S ol as cg S
45 4
2 0
22021 202223 2020:21 202122 2022/23*
Cl - Fast Midlands Cl - West Midlands
Al CT om0 poia 7
tGa {03
49 33 -
80 §1 i 7
&0 315 <07 298 3 e .
‘ 394 7 . R = 435 b e
47 - d +J
ZG I E y 20
g : I -
202021 202122 2022723+ 202028 2021222 202223~
Fiha 2022 23 actuals are subject o Ot confirmanon

Clorepresents supply interruptions expericneed by connected  customers per 100 customars.
Adjustiient for exceptional one ofl events tat are outside the control of DNGs is alloved by
Otgem. 1he targets are Jdotined by Ofgem at cach NGO keeel Year on yeur NGEE i pertorming

better than s targets a» we are focusad on cosuring manimam network reliability for our customers.
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Key performance indicators (KPIs) {continued)

L.

Deliver for our customers efficiently

i KPi | BE

Performance and commcents

Connections (time to quote

and time Lo connect)
Time to quote - working days

South YWest

‘Yime to connect - working days

wTargst & Actual WTarget  sActual
100 500 436 40 436 436 436 42
&0 63 61 A1 a0
ol 4.0 300
40 32 VT 2010
20 . 160
2020421 202122 2022/23 2020/21 2021722 2022/23
Seuth Wales
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Warget  sActual gt +Actusd
100 500 23.6 410
ga 63 63 63 400
60 ia 300
40 1.7 19 - 200
20 e 160
2020021 202122 2022/23 202021 2021/22 2022723
East Midlands
Time to quote -working days Time to connect -working days
WTarget - Actual Wiarpget s Actual
100 500 436 43.6 23.6
86 £3 63 63 490 338 33
&G 306
40 22 26 20 200
24 o 100
202021 2021722 2022/23 202021 202122 2022/23
West Midlands
Time (0 quote - working days Time to connect - working days
RTargst = AgTui. - = Actual
150 500 436 L34 136
80 61 63 6.3 400 bl 6. 3z
64 300
49 L& 22 v 200
240 T E 1aag
202021 2021722 2022723 2020421 2021722 202223

Ofzem sets the targets for the osverall "lime 1o quote” and "time to connect” for single domestic
conneetions and small commercial connections. LVSSA customers are those seching single
domestic connections requiring no nains work at low selage. LVSSB customers are those secking
two to lour domestic connections or one-olT commurcial conneetions at low vollage requiring no
netnork reinforcement work, The above target is an merage of the Olzem taree! for LYSSA and

LVSSB.
Network relishility etwark rehabihiy %
99 994 99 994 S99 9083
104
80
60
47
20
2920721 2021522 202223

National Grid Eloctricity Distribution ple {formerly Western Power Distribution ple)

We aim o deliver reliabilinn by planning
our capital investments to meet challenging
demand and supply patterns. designing and

buifding robust networks, having  risk-
pased  maintenance and  replacement
programes. and  detailed  and wested
incident  response plans. The  table

represents our consolidaled performance

avross our four regions.



Strategic report (continued)
Far the year ended 31 March 2623

Key performance indicators {(KPIs) (continued)

I Empower our people for great performance _l
[NT1 | 3] Performance and comments }
Level of work related
. Lost time accidents Nou lost time accidents
accidents
4] 8¢
g
8 7 .
& &0
6 39 40
40 ’ 34 ;
El Lo
2 20
0 O ....... RS

Employee turnoyer ratio

202021 2021/22 2022723 202021 2021722 202223
The NGED Group's lost time accident frequency rate based on working hours as at 31 March 2023
was at 4,076 (2022: 6.080).

The 1otal number of accidents 1o staft across the NGED Group inereascd from 41 in 2021/22 10 48
in 2022/23. Electricity disiribution carries inherent safety rishs and the NGED directors ave
committed to the highest levels of safety in all areas. All accidents are imvestigated and appropriate
safely communications are conducted with the relevant teams. Our accident categorisation system
focuses on actual or potential for harm. allovwing NGED to be more effeetive in its insestigation and
root cause analysis of accidents. We ensure that all our planned safety inspection and maintenance
programmes are completed during the year.

NGED also monitors the overall rate of accidents per 100 employees (as reported to Ofgem). The
accident rate for the NGED Group for 2022/23 55 0,72 (2021/22: 0.62) outperforming the RITO-EFD)
target of 1.61. Further details on our perlormancs reportipg to Ofgem regarding safety can be found
at the link below:

et A oo T

There has been a inerease in the vear on
year urnoyef ratlo. This is mainly due to
voluntarily leavers aged 55 years or
8005 belos,

10 00%

& 00% 5000
400%
200%

G O0es

2021022 2022
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Key performance indicatars (KPIs) (contimued}

| Lmpower our people for great performance }
1 KPPl Pl Performance and comments 1
Employee gender pay gap South West
Mean hourly pay gap % Median hourly pay gap %o
16 0% i 0% )
12 8% 11 8%
12 0% 12 0% P
. & 0% 8 L

Novee Ne hanve awmended owr 3
disclosure from prior Vear to +0% 40% L 4
reflect  the  entiy  position 0 0% & 2 0 0% %nﬁ Lo =i
instead of the NGED Group 2019/20 2020421 2021/22% 201920 2020/21 2021/22%

position. This Is to align wiih
oy statwiory reporting s The mean hourly pay gap and median hourly pay gap has remained stable on 2021, ‘The mean
gender pay gap. incentive pay gap in 2022 has improved to 31.6% from 45.9% in 2021,

Sonth Wales

Mean kourly pay gap %o Meclian heurly pay gap %
16 0% 16 0%
12 2% 120%
8 0% 8 0%
4 0% 4 0%
00% e 00% s R
2021:22% 2019/20 2020,21 202122

Whilst the Company's mean hourly pay gap has shown slight improvement year on year. more
significani improyvement has been noted in the Company’s incentive pay gap. The mean incentive
pay gap in 2022 has improved to 32.8% from 49.7% in 2021.

East Midlands

Mean hourly pay gap %% Median hourly pay gap %5
16 0% 16 0%
120% i2 0%
80%
& 09 . 8 0%
40% 4 0%
G0 00%
201920 2020:21 202122~ 2019720 2020,21 2021722

Whilst the mean hourly pay gap has declined. the mean incentive pay gap in 2022 has improved
signiticantly 1o 45.8%0 from 62.8% in 2021.
West Midiands

Mean hourly pay gap % Median hourdy puy gap %
16 %o 10 0%
12 0% 12 8%
8 0% < 0u, _ 4 5% S (1% 5 38, 479 5504
. 3 7% ’ .
4 0% L . . 4 0%
0 0% R “o. o : 0.0%, - P LB
2019/20 202021 2021/22* 2019720 2020/21 2021/22*

Whilst the mean hourls pay gap has declined. the mean incentive pay gap in 2022 has improsved
signilicant]y 1o 34.8% rom 70.6%0 in 2021,

2020 22 are the latest avanlable resufts and ix for data on the snapshot date o 5 April 20220 The report Tor the
saapahot date of April 2023 will be svatlable by Apnl 2u24

Our full eender pay gap report can be found at link below:

National Grid Electricity Distrribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 13



Strategic report (coniinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Business Review

We have completed the RIIO-TD1 price control period in a position of strength, outperforming the majority of our RITO-ED1 business
plan commitments. In the year 20222023, we continued to deliver excellent service for our 8 milfion {2021/2022: § million) customers,
whilst developing plans for the next price control. We have continued to beat our targels for customer minufes lost and customer
interruptions by 26% (2021/22: 30%) and 27% (2021/22: 27%) respectively, aa,udent rate is at 0.72 (202] 22 0. 62) accidents pcl IOO
StasT agnst RO C-Z0 arger 27 AL and oo Business Cacvor Foorgermt B :

3 EN gamoe S0 L

As energy prices continue to rise steeply it is more important than ever that we keep customers wpdated on ways o save energy and
manage their use more effectively. Some customers on low incomes cannot afford o effectively heat their properties - and those wha
were previously ust about maneging may have been tipped in to fuel poverty by svaring energy prices and inflation. With our various
fuel poverty schemes, we have supported over 24.000 fuel poor customers. leading 1o an estimaied annual saving of £20.6m for these
customers. Further, our annual community funding was increased from £1m to £3.8m in the current year and was awarded to 739
organisations benefitting almost 400,000 people in our communitics. Our community funding is tailored to support communities at the
grassroots level - ensuring that suppert is given to those most in need of help. We were proud to have been recently recognised for our
work. carning a Gold Award at the Chartered [nstitute of Public Relations ("CIPR™) Pride Awards in the Conimunity Relations
Campaign Category for our Community Matters Fund fuel poverty support programme.

Qur hard work during the vear is veflected in our excellent performance against the Broad Measure of Customer Satisfaction (“BWISE™
results scoring 8.99 (202122: 9.03) out of 10 overall, outperterming the 8.2 target.

A comprehensive view of our progress against the full range of commitments made within the R{IO-EI}] business plan, including
expendttuxe can be found on our Wbbslfe at the link betow:

R NS B

As the Government now focuses on energy securily and affordability, as well as decarbonisation, we embrace our role in delivering the
chergy system of the fulure. Decarbonisation of energy will lead to greater electricity demand meaning that we will nesd to provide more
power through the distribution network. Our Distribution System Operator ("DSO") function has continued to identify wheve we can
adoprt ahernative arrangements to dafer reinforcing the network. In the light of the current energy crisis. it is our objective to keep our
proportion of the zastomers’ bills as low as possible and minimise the requirement for load-relaled reinforcement by adopting a

Sentvurs T approach in order to maximise the utihisation of the existing network. We have established innovative processes for
procuring and using flexibility services as an alternative to conventional network reinforcemant which allows customers to connect more
quickiy and at a lower cost. The amount of contracted flexibility services under contract is 763.49MW as al 31 March 2023,

For the second year in a tow NGED has proved 2 changing the face of the electricity industry by scooping the Disruptor of the Year
award at the 2022 Lulily Week Awards for our "Take Charge’ mnovation projecr. This project has devaloped new technology to deliver
the clectrical capacity 10 power 80 rapid £V charges at a single scrvice station site in a compact modular format. 1t is an innovative
solution that brings the equivalent of the “rewsrual capacity of a small 3+ 0 each moterway services. We were also nominated for
our EQUINOX project, which is a first of its kind helping the ensrgy industry to decarbonise heat for customers in the most cost-
efficient manner.

Energy supplier failures

Since the beginning 02021, 31 cnergy companies have ceased Lrading. leaving over two million customers dependent on the safety net
provided by the market regulator. Ofgem, te maintain their supplies and protect their credit balances while it moves them to a new
supplier. Supplicr failures impact the DNOs in the following areas:

Wikis i £,
When a wpphm Iaﬂ% Ofgem ensures continuity of supply to the failed weier 4 cusiomers by appointing a Supplier of Last Reson

SR o supply the falled soonier’s customers al shont D\)lict The SolR may then recover cerlain costs from the Distribution
Networl Operators " T™0S via a Last Resort Supply Payment "LREP™ claim, Fach DNO is then able to recover those costs via ils
DkStr]de(‘n Use of System o °  charges which are levied across all suppliers. Lssentially these claims arc a pass through cost for
the PNOs. The total SoLR claims received during the year amountsd to £72.7m (2022 £266.8m). These claims will be payable 1o
suppliers from March 2023-NMarch 2324, with associated revenug being recovered through DUOS tarifts from April 2023-March 2024,
Claims recetved last ycar were pald in the current year. with the majority of associated ravenue also recovered in the current year Refer
to page 15 for details on revenue.

ar

bt o and Y

Bad debés

Anoiher impact for the DNOs is bad dehs incurred in relation to DLoS charges up to the date of the supplier failure. Ofgem regulations
allow for full recoverability nf credit losses on DUoS debtors, provided certain credit management protocols are performed in
accordance with industry standards as governed by the Distribution Connection and Use of System A,\;rcem»nb COUTUS AT thus
minimiging any potential credii risk to the Group. The recoverability for the Group occurs through an incrzase in DU0S charges.

National Grid Flectricity Distribution pic {innmeriy Western Power Distribution pic) 14



Strategie report (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Business review (continued)

Fnancial highlights

5 Financial measure b Performance and commenis
Revenue 2022723 2021722 Percentage  Our allowed revenues are set in accordance with our regulatory price
(£m) {£m) change control, We caleulate the tariils we charge our customers hased on the
2.096.5 1.886.0 11%, estimated solume of energy we expect will be delivercd during the
coming period. The actual volumes delivered will difter from this
cstimate, Therefore, our total actual revenue will be different from our
total allowed revenue. These differences wre commondy referred to as
timing ditferences,
If we colleet more than the allowed level ol revenue. the balance must
be returned to customers in subsequent periods. and if we colleet less
than the allowed level of revenue we may recover the halance trom
customers in subsequent periods.
[he increase in the revenue during the year is mainly due to recoven
of LRSP ¢laims paid. through increased DJoS revenue during the
sear. The revenue recovered for LRSE claims amounts o £261.8m.
This does not result in a corresponding increase in profit as the
pasment of LRSP claims increases the operating costs during the year.
Profit hefore 2022/23 202122 Percemtage  As part of the regulatary process Ofgem sets the alloved rale of return
tanation (£m) (£m) change within each price control which for RIUO-EDI is sct at 6.4%. As
("PBT") 681.4 746.9 -9% evident from the level of capital expenditure below, NGETY invests in
excess of profils back into the networks to ensure that vwe continue to
provide an efficient. reliable and secure service to our customers.
The decline in PBT i3 mainly due to the increase in finance costs
during the sear. driven by accretion of index linked debi.
Fixed asset 2022/23 2021722 Percentage  NGED operates in a capital intensive indusinn and thus invests a
additions (£m} (£m) change major proportion of profits inw meplacing and adding electricity
1.202.2 1.063.0 13%; infrastructure. as is evident from the overall cxtenl ol our capital
cxpenditure and increase during the year. Due w0 the age of the
network and technological advancements significant investment is
required in capital related activities. During the RIEO-EDT period w
date we have invested £8.1bn in capital related activities.
Cash 2022723 2021/22 Percentage  Cash geperated from operalions contipues 1o be consistent year on
generated (£m} {£m) change T,
from 1.124.3 1.133.8 -19
wperations
RAV 2022/23 2021/22 RAV s 2 repulatory concept w represent assets with a long term il
(£m) (£m) It is essentially equivalent 1o the net boek value of the fixed assels of
10.846.4 9.407.1 1he business only calculated in regulatory terms using methodology

* Because of uming, the 2022 23
RAV wned mthese caleulations s
the latest drali and not the tinalised
salue As directed by Oftem. the
KAV 1y caleutated using an as crage
of March 2023 und April 2023
inflation

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 15

provided by Ofgem, Tt is an important measure Tor all DNOs as the
allowed year includes a BAY and
amortisation of RAV as determined by Ofgem. Other important
measures. sueh as gearing ratios and reeoverable amounts of TINOs
with respect to impainment caleulations. are calculated nsing RAV.

revenus  inoay relum  on

The movememt in RAV s farpely driven by additions 10 our RAV
during the year which are based on 80% of our tetal expenditure
("tatex™ caleulated in accordance with methodology provided by
Ofgem and afier application of the totey incentive.

Note. the dificrences in methodelogy betsseen TFRS and regufatory
auidanee have accumulated over time and as such cannol be
reconeiled.



Strategic report (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Business review (continued)

Financial Alghlights

5 tinancial measure Performance and comments J
Gearing ratio 2022723 2021722 Gearing for NGED is caleulated as the ratio of net debt to RAV. The
(£m) (£m) gearing ratio is monitored in relation to the revolving credit facility
Net debt* 6.654.0 6.502.6 covenants tor several of the NGED companics and (s used as a key
RAV 10.846.4 9.407.1 internal measure. To comply with bank covenants as well as the
* Refer 10 note 22 on page 61% 699  internal KPL the gearing ratio for the NGED Group does not exceed
104 for the calcutation of net §5%. The regulatony gearing target for the four DNOs individually
debt was 63% for RUO-EDL and is 60%e RIIO-LD2 oawards.
Interest cover 202223 2621/22 A miniimum ratio of carnings belore interest. tav. depreciation and
(£m) (£m) amortisation ("EBHIA™) (o interest payable is required by credit
PRI 6814 736.9  facility covenants for several of the NGED companies. 1t is also used
FFinance cost 399.4 318.3 as a key internal indicator of the financial bealth of the DNOs. In
Depreciation 286.3 2710 order 10 comply with bank covenants the interest cover ratio can not
Amortisation 3.3 34 fall below 3:1: our interest cover ratio is al an aceeptable level and
EBIIDA 1.3704 1.339.3  shows a sufficient Jevel of earnings to cover interest payments. The
Lnterest pas able 399 4 318.3 increase in (inance cost during the vear is driven by aceretion of index
Tnterest cover 34 42 linked debt,
Return on equity {'ROE") 2022723 2024/22 Our ROE s based on the allowed regulated return on equity.
Yo Yo Regulsted return on cquity is a micasure of how o business is
Base return 9.6%, 0.6%  performing operationally against the assumplions wsed by Ofgen.
These returns are caleulated using the assumption that the businesses
[otex incentise mechanism 0.8%0 1.1%6  are linanced in line with the regulatory adjudicaied capital structure.
Other revenue incentives 2,89 2,995  at the assumed cost of debt and that UK taxation paid is at the level
ROE 13.295 13.6%  assumed by Ofgem.

As part o the regulatory process Ofcem sets the allowed rate of return
within cach price control, which (or RIEO-TIM Qs sct at 6.4%0. Base
reterny ROE for the year normalised for a long-ron inllation rate of
39502022 3%, wax 9.0%, (202 2: 9.0%).

My totew incentive mechanism relates o the sharing o any under or
over spend on our allowanees through our adjustiment to allowad
revenue in tiuture years. 2022023 toten incentives mclude a 0.4%
rechuction adjusiment for ED green recovery projects. Ofgem have
confirmed that no new allowances witl be given in RIOG-ED2 but
projects can be completed  using  allowances receibved in base
allowances in RTFO-LDILL Purther spend s lorceast in 2023724 to
comiplete these projects. therefore the 2022423 ROE has been adiusted
o align the 202324 spend with 202223 glowances. This ROFP
adjustment is expected 1o be unwound in 202324

centive performanee has remained high vear on year. However
there has bect a reduction in incentives carned due o the tightening

of targets,

Note: ROT s a pertormance mcasure based on the aflowed regulated
retur on eguily and cannot be reconciled to any statutory measure. In
the current year. RO hay been included ay an APM 1o reflect our
performance  within  the reguiatory  regime and o align with
performance reporting by our uliimate Parent Company. National
Gridd ple,

Nautional Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) 16



Sirategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Our business environment

We are connnifted to delivering net zero whilst ensuring fairness and affordability for customers. Through our work with governments
and rcgulators, we are delivering infrastructure investnients and shuping policy to realise climate goals.

Fairness and affordabifity

We are committed o delivering
reliably — and
atfordably 1o the communitics

energs salely,
we senve. We will play our role
in ensuring no one is lef behind
in  the shor due to
increased energy prices. or in
the Tlonger-lerm  transilion  w
clean energy.

ferm

National Grid Llectricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 17

Impact on our industry

« Energy price volatility
has  been a  significant
driver of inflation in the
UK. In 2022, consumer
price  inflation  reached
11126, o 4 E-year high.

« lhe Government has
protected customers from
the worst extent of the
encrgs  price volatility
through support schemes
and have amounced their
intentions to et iew

policy and markets 1o
supporl consumers jn the

lang ternn.

Our respensc

NGED has an established social contract which acts as a focal point
tor our business to deliver greater social and environmental benefits.
giving strategic direction W our promise w do the right thing for our
customers. As part of our social conlract, we have various fairness and
aftfordability initiatives as outlined below;

= During the sear. we awarded a £2.5m fund to help ithose in fuel
poverty. as part of our wider annual £3.8m Community Matters I'und.
The Fund supported 319 organisations. providing savings for over
I38.(K00 people in our communitics.

«NGED continues to partner with four fuel poverty organisations. one
in each of our licence areas. to delbver the Power L g7 scheme. The
praject helps customers by offering income and energy efliciency
advice. such as benefits and grant applications and energy saving
schemes. Customers are offered free. Independent. confidential and
impartial advice on a full range of interseations. The project works by
parlner organisations such as Cilizens Advice taking referrals directly
from NGLED. Fyery customer contacted as part of our Priority Service
Register ("PSR") calls are given the opportunity 1o be referred to a
partner organisation. such as The bLnergs Savings Trust and the
Centre for Sustainable Energs. for support.

«in addition. NGED continues to partner with four community based
organisalions. one in cach of our licence arcas. to deliver an
CAMeedalic Woamuh© fuel poverty scheme. Customers receive the
same assistance and support as those referred 10 a Power Up partner
bat these customers are sell~generated by Alfordable Warmth pariners
und then are signed up 1w the PSR as part of the support pachage.

=We work closely with pariners and our Customer Panel to improve
services and identify innovative ways to support customers, We held
our annual social obligations workshop in the current year in light of
energy price rises and owr C113.000 Energy Allordability Fund
("EAT") has enabled sis new innosvative projects 1o find new ways of
supporting customers in 20230 with a specitic focus on desiening and
delivering interventions to widen parlicipution in the smart energy
transition and addressing digital exclusion.

= in the yeur 202223 our EAF. Power p and Affordable Warmth
schemes contributed to the total 24,463 (2021/22: 25928 customers
who saved over £20.60m (2021/22: £14H6m). Our fuel poverty support
is the largest programme of any UK network company and has
provided support 1o over 142000 customers. helping them o save
over £72ny over the course ol RINO-EDT,
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Our business environment (continued)

Net zero

By connecting @ growing
volume of renewnble genersiion
and reducing our owil
greenhouse gas cinissions, we
are demonstrating our focus on

enabling the energy transition,

National Grid Elecwicity Distribution ple (formerly We

Tmpact on our industry

= The government's
independent Net  Zero
Review slated that

“signaioun poyvernmental
action 5 required o
ensure  that  the UK
achicves net zero in the
best way possible for the
sz and e publie,

= Wioes than #tg of global
Gross  Domestic Product
("GDPYY is now covered
by a net zero target.

Our response

= Our two core strategic tocus areas are, Besamiry a Net Jero
Urrganssatus” and CEasuring we are environmentally  cespensibie’
Following feedback from our customer engagement groups during
2022, we have now further refined our environment strategy so that
we are now gligning our activities to additional UN Sustainable
Development Goals. including *Ersurs access to affordable. reliable.
and modern  enecrgy  for WU “Barilid
infrastructure. promote inclusive and sustainable industrialisation and
EIET R

sustainable and resilient

= As parl of Energy Network Association ("ENA"). we arc working
collaboratizely with other DNOs 1o develop and implement a
comprchensive wol 1o assess the impact of embedded carbon in
relation to our assels and activities.

= We have increased the percentage of cleciric vehicles in our
commercial and leased fleet by 3%0 during the current year.

=By continuing with our vehicle replacement programime and raising
mwareness of the inpact ol driving sty le and the continued roli-out of
our Driver Behavioural System ("DBS")L we have outperformed our
RHO-EDT 5% reduction target for annual tuel use by 9.8%.

=We have signed a eollaboration agreement with the charity. Heart of
England Forestrs. which will enable extensive tree planting, habitat
restoration. biodiversity net gain and community inyvolvement over the
course of RITO-ED2.

= We completed g biodiversity 1oot printing report for owr operational
activitics and our current supply chain. The repori identifies the
{mpact our operations have on biodiversity net gain. This will form
the basis Tor our biodiversity strategs.

« W are wialling the utilisation of a biodiversits nel gain metriy tool
at around 20 substations to establish a baseline from which bespoke
biodiversits management plans will be developed,

= We have continued (o work collaboratively with our waste
management panners 1o significantly reduce the wnount of waste
dispased of to lundfill. Three o! our four licence arcas continue to
routinely report zevo wasle to landfilh on a monthly busis. in 2022/23,
only H.67% of wasle rom our operations i being sent o landfll as

compared w 42% in 261415,

= Por turther details on our actions relating o net zcro. please reter
our detatled environment and innoyation repert ar link below:
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Qur business environment (continued)

Decentralisation

System flenibitiny and resilicnce
arc  becoming  incrcasingly
umportant  as UK moves
away large  centralised
energy generation to a system of
more geographically distributed
mtermittent CNETEYy »0Urees.

the
firom

Impact on our industry

« 2022 saw  significant
crowth in electric
vehicles, with sules
growing by more  than

25% in the UK.

« Driven by policy and
innovation.  heat  pump
prices are reducing  for

CONSHMKES,

= fogam s regulatory deal
for RIFQ-ED2 included
funding to make network
imvestments  that  will
cnable the rapid growth in
electric vehicle chargers.
heat pumps and batterics.

Qur response

= Our DSO team has cstablished flexibility markels that provide an
alternative means of addressing network constraints. [hese harmoess
the power ol new teehnelogy and the ability of some network users to
provide flexibility in their owsn conswmption cither by increasing.
reducing or shifiing their nel impert or export. Tlexibility can provide
miore granular network capacity increases. beter matching the in-y ear
reguirements of network users. lexibility has the potential to manage
capacily shortfalis cconomicatly and responsively until the need for
conventional reinforeement is more certain. Where uncertainty s
high. a greater period of operation ol Hexibility may allow for maore
optimal  longer investment  plans to  be developed and
implemented. Our PSSO is responsible for assessing which investment
option is most ¢fficient and economical. and does so using industry
standard tools. 11 recommends the investment Jecision independent of
the network onvner tunction of the business, To enable this. we have

term

completed the organisational changes o separate our DSO tunetion
from our DNO,

I1 flexibitity has been selected as the optimal choice. a formal process
is used to tender for providers. We curently utilise & IDhvaamic
Purchasing System to procure openly and competitisely against our
reguircments. Before awarding contracts, the Distribution Network
Options Assessment (DNOA) process will be triggered 1o ensure
valire is still being delivered to customers. given the final commereial
terms. We use signposting and forecasting processes to give fexibility
providers u clear picture of requirements. These processes are carried
out bhetoere would need (o start and
thercfore help o identify whether there is suflicient flexibility

convenlional  reinforcement
available to resolhve o network constraint, L his approach ensures that
we consider a flexible alternative for every network constraint.

« We have made signilicant progress on the Equitable Noavel
Flexibility ¢xchange «EOUTREEV™Y project o allow customers (0
play a part in o flexible energy future using heat pumps in their own
homes. We have developed the novel commerciul arcangements and
supporting technologics needed to unlock flexibility from residential
low carbon heating and recruited customers 1o take part in the largest
irial of heat flexibility in the UK. The trial phase i» now underway,
This project is the Grst of its kind to aim to answer kev guestions on
how clectricity network operators can participate proactively in the
decarbonisation ol heat in the most cosi-efticient way for customers.
managing increased network demand while maintaining networ
reliability. The project will assist in the delerral or avoidance of
network reinforcement due w the predicted dramatic uptabe of heat
pumps in the upecoming REO-FD2 price control period and hesond.

Nationa! Grid Electricity Distribution ple {formerly Westarn Power Distribution pic) 19



Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Qur business environment (continued)

Digitalisation

Wa'rz bringes Ssirmers
employees, and assets together
4% WE Progress on our jourte)
lo being an intelligent.
connected enterprise.
Digitalisation supporls our
progress towards nel zero
targets and improyes customer
experience and value.

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Powsr Distribution ple)

Impact on our industry

= (Mpem requires
[PNOs  to publish  a
nelwork digitalisation

strategy. and has
announced its plans tor
the creation of “gomenon

Ny

digital cnergy
ftknstraenars” 0 improve
Ui efficicney and

coordination of flexibility
markets.

= Supported by policy in
the LK. Reraarits’
imestments in
digitalisation will enable
predicative  maintenance.
automate  operations  and
control. and digital tvins,
making jt easicr to plan
network  espunsion and
mahe connection ofters,

Our response

We latinched our digitalisation strategy and action plan last ycar upon
submission of our RITO-ED2 business plan to Ofgem. Digitalisation
of the encrgy syvstem is at the heart of GRS transition to build a
smart and etlicient energy system delivering net zero. Qur focus is W
achicve the best possible positive outcomes for our customers, by
utilising innovative solutions and smarter working practices to drive
efficiency in all we do and our digitalisation strategy scts the
foundation for this. Our innovative new digitalised solutions and
services will transform the way customers interact with us and with
caergy. providing them with real value. Some examples being are:

= A new digital tool has been launched that allows cusiomers to appls
online to connect domestic electric vehicle chargers, It Qs an
automated online application that provides a real-time response to the
customers. By moving the process online. we are able to deal with
significant volumes and respenses are nol restricted 10 normal
working hours. The online digital tool laurched tor damestic clectric
vehicles will be eatended 1o applications for other low carbon
technologics #8875y as well. such heat pumps and domestic solar
installations.  We  also faunched  our online budget 100l
Customers can now obtain an immediate budget estimate tor Tow
voltage connections by entering information into the budget estimate
100! as opposed to having to send the information 10 a local planner.

have

= We have extended our capabilities in relation 1o amarl meter data by
gathering high resolution vohage data for the first time and gathering
anomymised load data at a more granuiar level, There a
low carbon technologies not being registered with the DNOs and
without correct records. the accuracy of network planning witl be

rooissues with

atlected. With the expected increase in load at low voltage from heat
pumps and clectric vehicle charge points. there is a risk that the
degree of unbalance on a network can be significant, The Smart Meler
[nnovatons and Test Network o SMUPNTY project is examining how
the smart melter data can be used to solve the problems of missing or
incorreet data for low voltage networks by applying algerithms to
smart meter daty in a novel way.

()



Strategic report {(coatinued)
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Driseribstian Svsoem Operatar |~ PSP Fezcnian

Dristribution System Operations is all about developing and operating a smarter and more flexibie electricity system. To deliver benefits
from this smarter approach requires not only investment in data, systems and processes 1 enable this capability, but alse for this
capabilily 1o be exploited. This is the mle of the Distribution Systom Opcrator. Through RITO-ED2 we will deliver a aumber of
enhancements to broaden and deepen our DSO capabilities. Our three key roles as a DSO function are:

Planning and network developmeni:

- Plan efficiently in the context of uncertainty, taking account of whole system outcomes, and promote planning data availability.
Network operation:

- Promote operational network visibility and data availability:

- bacilitate efficient dispatch of distribution flexibility services.

Market development

- Provide accurate, user-friendly and comprehensive market information;

- Embed simple. fair and transparent rules and processes for procuring distribution [lexibility services,

To facilitate neulral markets we have identificd functions and activities which are specifically related to DSO and functionally separated
them within our business to avoid any potential for conflict between system operator and network owner. The %723 key focus is to
make decizions which enable capacity to be provided efficiently and economically, through creating competition in how that capacity is
provided. The DNO is responsible for providing accwale Jula and infornation on its asset capabibity and current or historical network
loading. The 717 "¢ key focus is to invest in the data and smart grid technology which can be used by the DSO. Data and its cxchange
will be a significant cnabler in the relationship between DNO and DSO and during RTTO-ED2 this needs to be codified. NGED will take
a lead in this development.

The DSO is responsible for accurately sizing the invesiment in the new capacity required to serve the current and future needs. Tt is
responsible for deing this efficiently through the use of flexibilily, which may be provided by third parties or the ZP0 s own smart grid
network. 1t will also direct traditional reinforcement where this is mosi efficicnt. We were the first DNO to commit 1o a six monthly
procurement cycle for flexibility services through our customer facing flexibility brand, known as Fexlitue Powver  Using flexibility
services we will build in competition. both against alternative options for managing constraints (such as reinforcement), as well as
between providers. This aims to find the optimal sofution for the network. Our Flexible Power product has been adopted by four other
DXOs and is now a national tool for flexibility dispatch. Network Operators are able (o sec availubility of flexible assets under contract
and dispatch that flexibility to maintain the network within limits.

Our DSO Strategy can be found at the link below:

RHO-ED2
The RIIO-ED?2 price contral period will cover the five year period from Aprit 2023 to March 2028, All the DNOs, submilted their final
business plan to Ofgem on 1 December 2021, Ofgem published its {inal determinations on 30 November 2022.

Following the final determination by Olgem allowing us £5 9bn, we have prepared 2 RHO-ED2 Delivery Plan. setting out how we will
coMinue to unprove on our already industry leading standards while adapling to the changing needs of our customers and the
cnvironment in which we operate. Our Business Plan for RIIG-ED1 (2015 to 2023}, was ambitious and industry leading. Building on
this impressive platform, we have listened to our stakcholders and will deliver an even bolder set of strewching commitments for RI10-
ED2, driving a smart. sustainable energy revolution for the communities we serve. The RII0-ED2 delivery plan contains 42 ambitious
core commitments and more than 400 wider commitments, all designed to achieve four crucial cutcomes [or our customers.

Sustennapility. We will support the UK's ambitions to achieve net zero carhon emissions by 2030, driving crucial changes in energy
usage and customer green behaviour. We will set the benchmark by achieving net zero in our own operations by 2043 ({ullowing a
Science Based Target initiative) and we will ensure the network is ready to cnable focal authorities to achicve similar ambitions in their
regions. Last year. we were planning to achieve phased net vero fargets. aiming tn be net zero excluding network losses and scope 3
emission by 2028 and net zero including network losses in ling with our Science Based Targets by 2043, However, following integration
with the National Grid Group, instead of following the previous phased approach, we have now aligned our net zero target with the
targel of the National Grid Group and thus set one single target to be in line with our 1.5°C Science Based Targets by 2043, The
Science Based Targets include Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions including network losses and thus is a step ahead of the initial 2028
target as thal excluded neiwork losses
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RIHO-ED2 (continued)

Conprectability - A Tack of network capacity should not he a bartier for our customers. We will snsure that the network can cater for up o
1.5 million additional electric vehicles, 600,000 heat pumps and a significant increase in renewable generation over the next five years.

Vulmerability. We will deliver a first clags programme of inclusive support. This will include offering 600,000 smart energy action plans
for vulnerable customers each year, ensuring no one is left behind in a smart future. We wilt also more than double our ground breaking
fuel poverty support to deliver over £60m of savings for 113,000 fuel poor customers over the course of RIIQ-EDZ.

Affordabiiity: We will continue 1o deliver the highes! standards of safety. reliability and cusiomicr service that customers have come to
expect from us. We aim to keep the power cuts at their lowest ever levels, whilst targeting customer satisfaction at over 93%. Crucially
we will achieve all of this while keeping our portion of the average domestic customer bill affordable.

We have developed a suite of wide ranging, dynamic, ambitious and Interconnected strategies that will be implemented in RIIO-EDZ.
Each one js designed to contribute towards the delivery of our four overarching strategic outcomes we intend 1o achieve for our
customers over the course of RITO-ED2. Some of the key strategics develaped by the Group in this regard are: Climate Resilignce
strategy, Digitalisation strategy and action plan, Net Zero Jemumumites” stralegy, Environment strategy and action plan, Workforee
Resilience strategy, DSO strategy and Customer Vulncrability strategy. Each of our strategies is embedded across aur operations.

In our business plan submission 1o Ofgem, we had proposed to deliver our commitments with a budget of £6.7 billion. Due to our
proven track record of innovation development and roll out, we had embedded £700m of efficiency savings into the business plan. In its
final determinations, Ofgem has allowed us £5.9 billion. the fargest amount allowed of any DNO Group in the UK. The reduction in
allowances refating to volume adjustments is arcund £200m, plus an cfficiency challenge of L660m.

Ofgem has set a challenging price contro! for the next 3 vears and we are required to be ambitious and significantly improve our services
for our customers with a challenging asymmetrical incentive package in tcrms of rewards and penalties. Our strong ftrack record of
delivering excellent levels of performance for customers underping confidence thal we can build on the successes of RITO-EDY to
detiver our holistic plans for RIIO-ED2. As we plan for the challenges of a rapidly changing energy market, we are more ambitious than

fomr Wr VENT T SI0ETEI NUR SUSTOMESY SDeUunons md Zelvier ;o sisfamattie eiabte and mmovats i e G soery’
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Innovation and Development

NGED. through Ofgem's Network Innovation Funding Ineentives, is developing innovative projects which aim to help make the energy
networks smarter, accelorate the development of a net »ero carbon energy seclor as well as deliver financial bencfits to consumers. The
projects help develop crucial knowledge and expertise which is being shared across the industry.

This year the lnnovation team has continued to deltver a varizd portfolio of prajocts that focus on key areas of decarbonisation and net
zero. heat. transport, data and commumities consumer vulnerability,  New projects this year have included using data from smart imesters
to imprave the cnergy use profiles for distribution substations used by network planners "SMUTNTL investigating the benefits of
difforent encrgy efficiency measures on a sat of building archetypes “ZEFENDER™ and introducing rcal-time agset ratings inte our
aclive network management systems ("Running ceol™).

Many projects have reached their final stages reflecting the end of the current price control period at the end of March 2023, From April
2025 onwards, the larger projects that were previously funded via the Network Innovation Competition wil) be replaced by the Straregic
Innovation Fund ("SIF"). This has the advantage of breaking down these larger projects into Discovery Phase, Alpha and Deta phases
50 that the potential issues with ambitious projects can be identified earlier on in the process before significant costs are committed. Our
application for 3 SIF projects was successful and has been approved. Thess will be implemenied in 2023 24 and will cover a wide range
of themes including developing a digital twin of our network 1w aid local energy planning. creating advanced flexibility services with
water companies that can alter the times at which they use their pumps and using the ability of Electric Viehicles to reverss their power
flow Lo supply energy to help vulnerable customers during outages
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[nnovation and Development (continued)
Our Equinox project, which is investigating how flexibility can be included in the solutions that decarbonise domestic heating. has now
started, being the largest heat flexibility trial in the UK.

Ilelping to understand consumers in a post pandemic world gave an insight into how our largest ever vulnerability led project,
Vulnerability and Energy Networks, Identification and Consumption Evaluation ("VENICE") is exploring the probiems surrcunding
vulnerable customers in light of COVID-19. The project was launched last year and so R has explained what makes & customer
vulnerable, dsscribed ihe persistence of the effects of the pandemic on both our network and customers and has developed models that
will inform the industry on the best ways to cngage communities that are deemed fuel poor in the energy transition, Over the next few
months, VENICE will be modelling an “z% of the sesmble’ solution showing how smart meter data can be leveraged to help all
consUMCrs. Our smart meter dala analysis and business models will be finalised and a sandbox trial will be developed.

After a trial of more than three years, our overhead line power pointer project has provided some exciting results. Our aim was to trial a
self~powered device capable of providing real-time information on voltage, current power flows and conductor temperature. This
information can be menitored remotely as monitors have built in communication; by using 4G sim cards we are able to send all this data
from the overhead network back to our services and to network management system providing real time visibility of our overhead
network, This project supports our commitment to net zerc and sustainability as monitoring through this sell powered device. that can be
clipped on 10 overhead lines, will reduce the amount of resources required to locate the faults, remove the need to use the belicopter unit
and also enable faster restoration of snppliss. New ratings bascd on conduclur lemperature may release latent capacity in the network
allowing more renewable generation to be connected,

The success of vur projects was also recognised with our Take Charge project receiving the 2022 Utility Week EXisruptor award. Take
Charge developed a new type of compact primary substation that can be used to provide large capacity 10 support fast charging facilities
at motorway services, where spacc for a traditional primary substation would not be available. Our Dynamic Charging of Vehicles
project won the Energy Innovation Showease award for Best Collaborative Initiative.

In June 2022, we held 24 to Zero', our first large scale in-person dissemination event afier Covid. The event attracted more than 130
stakeholders. Leading industry cxperts gathered (o explore some of the key challenges confronting the cnergy industry as it strives to
deliver a fair low carbon futwre. This year we have had a record number of abstract submissions accepted for the international
eeirnes A seor oty derrbaten CTIRED who wl allews i e Srare one earng v staeeiciders il waund e wertd

The suceess of the dissemination event and our projects reflects our commitment to excelience. Being able to demonstrate the benelits
from our projects and the value for money that they provide was essential 1o the RITO-ED2 price control negotiations. Ofgem bave
authorised an £18m budget for Network Innovation Allowance projects for the next three years that will atiow us to keep innovating.

Irurther details on our innovation projects can be found at the link below:
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Internal contrels and risk management

The National Grid Electricity Distribution Pic Board has overall responsihility fur %GED ¢ systent of risk management and interoal
control across the NGED Group. The NGED Board is committed to protecting and enhancing our reputation and assets, while
safeguarding the interests of our stakeholders.

Managing our risks

The NGED Group is exposed to a range of uncertainties that could have a material adverse effect on its sirategic objectives, financial
condition, operational resulis, reputation, and ils value The Nationa! Grid Ple Board sets and monitors the amount of risk the NGED
Group is prepared to seek or accept in pursuing its strategic objeciives, within the parent Company. National Grid Groue’ s risk appetite
framawork. The Board assesses the NGED Groug's Principal Risks ("GPRs") and monitors the risk management process through risk
review sessions. These have taken place monthly at Excoutive meetings throughout the year and are reviewed twice per year by the
NGED Board.

Lmerging risks ("ERs™) are less defined than GPRs and typically do not poss an immiediate threat. They are future focused, with a higher
degree of uncertainty and are difficult (o quantify; however, they could have the potential for significant impact and consequences and
so threaten the future achievement of our strategy. Utilising future scenarios, horizon scanning and emerging risk assessments, we
identify ERs and include the identification, assessment, response, and reporting of ERs in our risk management processes. Assessment
includes the polential impact and velocity (tHime to impact) and our response is to then either watch, monitor or manage the risks that are

semerend W dre NJHED Dogrd ard Growe s PRa sy our smergng sk Cwdar
The risk management framewaork and process is further sct out in our Code of corporate governance statemnent on page 36.

Actions during the year

The NGED risk profile continucs io be managed by drawing upon the most significant risks acress our business profile. This year we
reviewsd our risk management framework and principal risks to align better to the National Grid parent Zomgant s Group Principal
Risks along with our own business plan commitments. We asscssed risks against the swrategic business objectives of the parent Group.
and deviscd a new set of principal risks for NGED. ensuring these were assessed in accordance with the parent Group Bl ¢ strategic
objectives. risk appetite and associated key controls, which are clearly defined and assessed

The rapidly evolving political and economic uncertainly continue to dominate. requiring very careful monitoring and assessment of our
~NGED

ofencrgy. political and societal expectations. and satisfactory regulatory risks. whiclh we are continuously moanitoring.

a3 GPRs and Rs. The uncertainty has created an increase in the underlying {inherent} threat across our cyber, disruption

We developed our principal climate change risk during the year. establishing a discrete risk around our energy transition role; and
further incorporated the physical impacts from climate change on our assets {adaptation) into our sustained loss of customer supply risk,
to ensure a clear focus on the actions needed to mitigate these different risks. The "sustained loss of customer supply” risk focuses on
significant distuptions of energy from network reliability and resilience issuas across our operations.

Following the final determinations of the RIIOQ-ED2 price control, the execulive directors revisited the NGED GPRs in fanuary 2023,
focussing on the delivery risk associated with the EEDZ price control and increased scrutiny and complexity associated with regulatory
and legal compliance risks. In the current ever changing ceonomic and political climate, the directors are also focused on our risk
relating to political and regulatory stakeholder and societal expectations. The GPRs are currently discussed monthly by the exscutive
directors, Lo help maintain focus and alignment lo the parent's risk appetite framework and to enhance the monitoring and mitigation of
risks.

Internal controly over financial reporting

Perindic Sarbanes-Oxley ("SOX") reports regarding s -

reporting are received by the Board in advance of the full year resulis Reports conclude the r2 s compliance with the requirsments
of 5404 of the Sarbanss-Oxdey Act. and are received diveetly from the Group Controls Team: and through the Executive und Audit
Comimittees. This is to satisfy the reporting requirements for the parent. National Grid ple

"1 opinion on the effectivencss of internal control over financal

o

We have specific internal mechanisms that govern the fipancial reporting process. Our financial conuvols guidance sets oul the
fundamentals of intemal control over financial reporting. which are applicd across the Company. Our financial processes include arange
of system, transactional and management oversight contrals. In addition. our busingsses prepare detatled monthly management reports
that include analysis of their resulia. along with comiparizons 1o relevant budgets, forecasts and prior year resulis. These are presented to.
and reviewed by, senior management within our Finance function.

Thess reviews are supplemented by monthly business reviews attended by the National Grid Group CEO and CFO. during which

financial and non-financial metrics are considered via analysis of performance contract scorceards Deap dives on particular lopics are
driven by identified risks and opportunities.
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Internal controls and risk management (continued)

The NGED risk profile is presented below:

Strategic risks

7

i Rislk

|

[lr Mitigating actions

Capability and talent:
There is a risk that we fail to attract. retain. cquip and isspire
the necessary diverse talent w lead our business and deliver
our business plans and the pipeline of talent is not sutlicicntly
strong 1o fill roles as collcagues retire.

cnisational capability.

Stratesy link: Grow our of,

Societal and Staheholder expectations:

There is a risk that we fail to undersiand and manage societal
and stakeholder expectations of our business because of weuk
stakeholder engagement. leading o reputational damage or
increased regulatory intenention.

Stryiegy fink: Enable the energy transition for aff.

Energy transition role and delivery of net zero:

There is a risk (hat we {ail to meet our strategic principle ol

enabling the eacrey transition for all and that we fail to change
sulliciently (o cnuble the U8 s trunsilion to net zero or meel
our own net zero commitments. because ol planning o an
ineorreet  strategic emelope. anticipatury
not  being to regufators.
implementing the wrong ensironumental plan. failure 10 meet
customer expectations. and delivery.

investment

arrangements acceplable our

Stratesy link: Fpable cocray fransition 1o all.

We continue 1o evolve initiatives o secure fulure engineering tatem.
including through apprenticeships: and identily high potential talent
in our tcams to build capability through segmoentation and analy sis.
and through leadership training,

We continue to apply rigour in deselopment and suceession planning.
including locus on diversity and inclusion through talent and
development activities. In 2023, we will launch the global diversity,
cquatity and inclusion strategy and resources aligned o our ultimate
parent company, National Grid ple.

We continue to operate a number of stakcholder inclusive activitics,
including:

= Customer Engagement Group ("CEG"). which reflects the needs and
expectations of existing and future consumers in the development ol
its business plans:

» Customer Panel representing a wide range of stakeholders, meeting
guarterly to provide critical review of our performance. provide
extensive expert knowledge and heip steer our strategic priorities:

= Annual workshops. surgeries and webinars to understand the needs
of stakeholders and ensure these are afigned with ouwr stralcgic
priorities.

We also deploy significant resources on:

= Engaging with Ofgem on industry initiatives. new consultations and
decisions:

= Enlancing and consolidating our digital roadmap and social media
channels:

= Pigitvaring on aur el St 6 he @ resporsibl husimess.

We continue to focus on our core priorities 1o improve our strategic
planning capability and appraisal of various options in connection
with the net zero delivery rish.

wWe are developing flexibility in our network 1o manage and monitor
our load rish. whilst we also adept whole sy stem coordination.

Compliance rish

, Risk

Miligating actions

Regulatory and legal compliance;
Ihere s a rish that non-compliance with a regulalory licence

or statutony obligation adversely  impacts  customers or

stakehoklers and {eads to o significant fine or damaged
reputalion,

Streptegy link: Grow onr orggiisctional capahiling,

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple)

We manage and mitigate this rish through having o dedicated
regulation and compliance team with skilled collcagues who track
reaulatony changes and provide advice on interpretation and on-going
compliance plus associated updates and changes. There is regular
dialogue with the ultimate parent’s Boeard on political and regulatory
developments that may impact the NGED Group.

Fhe Board monitors the senior management and sesi ves’ progress
in cusuring compliance with changes to legislation.

(=]
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Strategic repori (continued)
For the year ended 37 March 2023

Internal controls and risk management (continued)

i Operational risks

B

i Risk

]

[ Mitigaging actions

Significant injury or loss of life risk:

There is u risk of significant injury or loss of Tife o employees.
contractors or the public as 2 result of operational business
activity because of a tailure of a criticul asset or system: or
inadvertent deliberate contact with  the  distribution
network, This risk alse includes similar salety impacts from
cnvironmental events,

or

Strategy [ind - Engbie (e eipcrey transition for qff,

Cyber security incident:

‘There is a visk that we {ail to adequately anticipate and manage
disruptive forees on our systems or to protect our systems from
a cyber-ineidem that results  in eleetricity  outages  for
customers. loss of aulomaled control of the electricity network,
daomage to assets. loss of data or compromised ability to
provide critical customer services.,

Straiegn link: Grow o orgaiisationgd capability.

Sustained loss of customer supply;

There s a rish that we fail o predict and respond o a
significant assel failure or severc weather event nhich causes
significant disruption o customer power supply and our asset
pertormanee or our service response is inadequate. leading to
customer harm, lasting reputational damage. loss of tranchise
or damage 1o investor contidence,

Strategy Hak: Deliver for our customers efficieny.

Business transformation:

There s a rish that we (Bl w identily and apply suiwble
technalogies. practices and innovations to eificientiy deliver
our Price Control commitments. position our business tor
success in RIO-ED2 and beyond and meet our business
ubjectives,

Stratesy Jinh: foahie Yie eiteran (ranxition jor all

Delivering ED2 price control:

There i a risk that we fail o deliver the price conrol within
the allovwed setiement revenue becuuse of uncertainly oser
delivery mechanisms. supply  chain industrial
relations, weah resource management or funding gaps. leading

issues. poor
to reputational damage or increased regulators intervention.

Svanegy finhs Fpahle the grergy rgngirion for ol
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Our preventatise and detective safety controls focus on:

« A well-established rvisk manggement procedure including safety
policies. procedures. standards. rish assessments and actions plans:

= ompetency and taming of miucriow s on an ongomy busis

= A clear focus on safe behaviours including leadership level site
safely vidits. safely moments in our meetings. a 'Stand-up lor Safety’
campaign. and support for managers from the specialist salety
professionals’ team to develop and mature sale practices in the
workplace:

= Sared. lewrnimyg and sl from sgstflemn sathny meidens,

= We commit significant resources and financial investment to

maintain the security  and

miecarity of aur data and
technology infrastructure by continually insvesting in strategies that

stems.

are commensurate with the changing nature of the security fandseape.
= Siringent policies and procedures are in place 1o provide conprols
over network seeurity. proactive threat inteliipence gathering. asset
moniloring and management. data infegrity. back-ups and incident
response.

« We work collaboratively with our parent Company. leading cdge
Govermineatt agencivs, and with eyvherspace security frameworks to
build rexilience. incident response planning and contingency,

Our planning and incident response controls are widespread across
out assets. sy stems, communications and inlrastructure including:

= Installations and changes within 2 controlled change managenent
framework and o industiy leading standards:

» Planned.  effective the  network

maintenance ot

preventative tree cutling programs:

including

»Sceurity and management of supply chain or strategic stogk holding
tfevels, delivery lead times and monitoring of purket conditions:

« Reguiar iranitig sexsions e e angivesrs

= Iinereises and practise sessions fo system emergencs seenarios and
response plans:

= Physical and Togical resilience and response planning lor exireme
weather events and 1171 elecoms failures.

Key control arcas to manage business translormation risk nclude:

= % chear ser of priarities and defined Tamiarnabon oureones:

= & mansirmenon s,
“Ng
- Pe

= Haldinng capalh

[LAEA SN

WIARTILS TRPOTTITNE

v oud capueny U fw

To manage this risk we ensure we have:
= An etlzrtive Aowouroing saneg

= Awareness programmes o help our colleagues  understand the
current regulatorny deal and the consequences of our choiees and
deliverables:

= Detailed plans of the volumes and variety of now initiatises we
espact todetiver during o 122 regatators period:

= Patablished the data. processes and technology that are necded to
cnable timely, accurate detivers and regulaton reporting.



Strategic report (continued)
For the vear ended 31 March 2023

Internal controls and risk management (continued)

Financial risks

While alt risks have a direct or indirect financial impact, financial risks are those which rclate 10 financial objectives and performance.
Financial risk management is a critical process used to make investment decisions and aims 1o maximise investment returns and earnings
for a given level of risk. None of our financial risks are currently classified as group principal risks. Our key financial risks are described
om0 e Snaocii mEements on ospas 96 - |

Qur commitment to being a responsible business

At National Grid, we are committed w0 deing the right thing, delivering social and environmental value for our colleagues, customers
and wider society. s enshrined in onr purpose - Bring Fncrpy to Life. We care about our customers and our communities, the way we
engage and interact with our stakeholders and how we take responsibility within the communitics we serve.

We have established a social contract thal sets out how we do business in a way that actively benefhs our region and the people we
serve, both now and into the future. The social contract i3 a promise to listen actively to our communities and colleagues and act with
integrity, contributing positive. locally-tailored solutions to the challenges they face. Structured around three key focus arcas: our
customers and communities, our people and our environment, our annual social contract updatc was published in January 2023, It
includes a progress report and action plan, summarising activities delivered to date and our approach for the year shead and can be
found at the link below:

While the Social Contract provides a framework for us to make a local impact, our alignment with the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals demonstrates the crucial role our communities play in global society. It acts as a platform for our actions to be
shared and up scaled to deliver oven more benefits.

Customers and community
Working with our communities s important fu creating shared value for us as a business, the people we serve and the communitics we
operate in.

Some of the key outcomes in 2022,2023 were as (ellows:

- Wg awarded £3.8 million to loca! good causes via our shareholder-funded Community Matters Fund, This includes £2.3m to help
tackle fus! poverty. £300,000 aimed at supporting mental health and social isolation, £300,000 focussd on alleviating holiday hunger
for school children and £300,000 awarded as a special Christmas fund to support the most vulierable during the winter period.

- In addition to the Community Matters Fund. we have supported 127 charitable and nen-charitable organisations by donating an
additional £109,000 1o good causes.

- We refurbished and redistributed 465 iPads to community organisations, supporting customers who are digitally excluded, providing
devices along with mobile data and digital skills training.

- Our Science, Technology, Engineering and Maths ("STEM™) mmbassador programme has grown te 23 colleagues, who deliver
outreach and education 1o students across our region. We have supporied the Engincering Education Schome Wales "EZX %™ Sixth
Form Project, promising to give a wider understanding of the carcers available through our STEM. The project sees us pariner with
schools to set teams of students a STEM-based task. which they are asked to solve by reszarching, designing and building a prototype
of their idea. The projects last arcund & months, where three NGED STEM ambassadors run them and have regular visits to answcer
sragent 2 questions. The students are alse given the opportunity 1o attend sile visits. At the cnd, the students write a report and present
their solved projects at the EESW awards event, where they have a chance to win awards for their prototypes and innovative idea.

- A pylon w0 power project that gives lalks o students about the future of renewable energy ook place during the year. Siudents ware
invited to lean more about renewables and also the history of coal energy. They also received a presentation from NGED about the
distribution network. Afier the presenration, the students were tasked with designing and building their own towers during an activity
ted by the EESW,

- We provide safety information focussed on poteatial hazards and how to uvoid them, so thal cur customers stay safe around our
clectrical assets. Our comprehensive education programme uses a range of aclivities 1o teach children about the importance of
electrical salety, Our website Powar Discovery Zone won the digital innovation award at the South Wales Argus Education Awards.
The website contains fun education resources and promotes electrical safety, energy saving and renewable energy, with & Jormur

SR DT smerhern Marwiery
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Strategic report (coatinuad)
For the year ended 3) March 2023

Our commitment to being a responsible business (continued)
Customers and conununily (continued)

Customer yulnerability and fuel poyerty

We currently support over 2.0 million customers on our Priority Services Register ("PSR"} that records details about vuinerable
customers so that additional tailored support can be provided when the customer contacts us or when their supply is interrupted. We
have a dedicated team of people to proactively contact customers and check their details at least every two years to ensure thal the
register remains up-to-dats, NGED coalinues to work with \ndustry partners to develop processes to share data with other organisations
that hold informatian about vulnerable customers, in line with data protection laws. NGED already sends PSR data monthly to six water
companies and receives dala from tweo of them and is working alongside industry colleagues to ensure hwo-way data sharing is in place
with all water companies, Links have also been established with many organisations who act as “reterral zarsters’ such as the British
Red Cross to improve the understanding of the needs of vulnerable customers. These 180 referral partners (up from 149 last year)
include charities, local authorities and health organisations who sign customers up to the PSR and share power cut resilience advice with
their clients.

In light of the current cost of living crisis it remains vital that we keep custoiners updated on ways o save energy and manage their
conswmption more effectively. Some customers on low incomes may not be able to efitetively heat their propertics — and those who
were previously © ust ahout mavaging’ may have been tipped in to fuel poverly by soaring energy prices and inflation. We work with
over 100 parmer agencies to provide fuel poverty support and advice. Please refer to the “Saumess and AaSieduiniins” scotion on page 17
for details on work donc by us during the in the area of customer valnerability and fuel poverty.

Our people

We are commited to being a stand out employer, attracling naw talent to the electricity sector and driving the transition to net zero.
While continuing to prioritise safety, health and wellbeing, we are focused on improving diversity, equity and inclusion, upskilling and
empowering our people to thrive in their careers.

Health and Sufeny

The health and safety of owr employees is paramount. Our commitment 1 this is reflected through our training programmes. policies,
processes and procedures - ail of which align with national and international standards and have been tested and implemented aver many
years. Qur safety management system is 1SQ 43001, aceredited and independently audited by National Quality Assurance each year.

We have an annual Safety. tHealth and Environment "3z calendar and programume focussed on key topics identified from owr annual
SHE plan, employee feedback, accident statistics

nd, where appropriate. national programmes. We have collaborative wotking with our
contractor organisations to ensure we share best practice, and all achieve the same SHTL standards.

There is a culture of proactive colleague communications to share learning from incidents or events and we have regular salety surveys,
for colleagucs 1o share their views on the symgnmy 2 safety calture. There are regular mectings belwsen managers and colieague
representatives 1o discuss, agree and implement initiatives related to health and safety. There is proactive colleague communication to
share fcarning from incidems or events. In addition this year, a ~$uafz 10 Saw” initiative was launched with the aim of encouraging staff to
use their voice and speak up without fear, being empowered 1o raise issues, flag concerns and offer ideas.

PP T A e R e L I

it 1s important that our colleagues reflect the diverse communities we serve, By ncreasing the diversity of our organisation, we will be
even befter placed 1o represent these communitics and to drive inaovative solutions for all our customers.

We recognise that this remains a key challenge for our business; the electricity distribution industry as a whole continues o fall short of
other sectors when il cumes to colleague diversity. However, we refuse to be complacent and are commifted to making significant
changes to our approach, to see & real and sustained difference. We have therelore developed a DE&! strategy which we update annually
Lo continue our progress in this area, Some examples of actions during the current year are as follows:

- appointing a Divorsity Officer who drives our diversity and inclusion agenda and attends national events on best practice to recruit.
support and retain diverse talent:

- launching new DE&I training courses for all people managers. helping cquip them with the confidence to handle sensitive issues:
requiring all new colleagues fu review the DE&] policy and Code of Ethics during the induction process;

- using an onkine applicant tracking sysem to anonymise applications and ensure recruiunent and progression is based on merit:

- traiming managers and team members who sit on interview panels to recognise and ovarcome unconscious bias;

- reviewing our job vacancy advertisements to ensure the language is accessible. and assisting candidates who require adjustmsants:

- advertising external job roles more widely to attract more diverse candidates.
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Qur commitment to being a responsible business (continued)
Our people (continued)

Stk it g smnegneer S e

We also engage with a range of partner organisations to improve our approach to recruiting diverse 1alent:

- 10,000 Black lnterns: a programime facilitating paid work experience, training and professional development for young Black people
in the United Kingdom, across a range of industries.

- Change 100: a programme aiming to remove the workplace barriers experienced by disabled people through a programme ol paid
summer work placements, professional development and mentoring.

- Career Transition Portioslip. an vigantyation providing resettlement services for those leaving the Royal Navy, Army, Royal Alr
Force and Marines.

Employee well peing

We are driven to enable our tcams to do their best, by feeling their best. We have several schemes that actively promote the mental and

physical wellbeing of our collzagucs and offer support when they need it, for example:

- Switched on to Health intranet, providing a wide range of resources or the health and wellbeing of cur colleagues and managers,

- Access 10 our in-house occupational health team and Employee Assistance Programmes. Our Employee Assistance Programme is a
247, confidential service providing free acanss to support and counsclling across o 1ange of issucs, including family, legal, financial
or work related difficultics;

- Monthly health communications which raise awareness and provide advice around different physical and mental health topics, based
upon colleagues feedback and health monitoring progranumnes;

- Flexible working policies, providing support to eligible colleagues who wish 1o incorporate homeworking or fexible working;

- Proactive mental health provision including a mental health first aider programme and Employee Assistance Programme aligned to
colemgaes el and tesith Tomorng,

[n addition Lo initiatives for physical and mental wellbeing, we also provide enhanced maternity and paternity support, flexible working
options and care for retirees and terminally ill colleagues. Recognising that significant life transitions can impacl mental health and
wellbeing. we strive to adept leading policics that provide holistic support to our colleagues during ditficult times.

For team members who are nearing retirement. we offer in-house retirement courses. pension support and pre-retirement leave w help
individuals transition 1o leaving the workplace. To protect the rights of terminally ill coYeagues, we arc signatories of the Tiving to
Soert charler, We provide childeare vouchers, adoption leave, shared parental leave arrangemcents and keeping in touch days to
encourage cligible colleagues to continug their careers while caring for a family.

Qur environment

We are committed to leading in the net zero transition, setting an example for others to follow. While rapidly reducing emissions in our
own operations, demonstrating excellent environmental performance and improving biodiversity at our sites, we are also helping others
to achieve their own net zoro ambitions. For further details on this refer to pages 6 and 18 of our Strategic report,

For our commitment to net zero, we have been listed as one of Earane’s Climate Leaders for 2077 in the Financial Times-5iatisla lisl,
More than 4,000 companies were scrutinised in terms of past emission reductiens, current reporting standards and ratings as well as
commitments for the luture. We are featured as onc of the 400 European Climate Leaders in 2022

Since 2011, we we been working to an internationally agreed environmental standard (ISO 14001) to improve our environmental
perfermance. To be certitied to this standard, an organisation must consider all environmental issucs relevant 1o its cperations, such as
air pollution, water and sewage issues, waste management, soil contamination, climate change mitigation and adaptation. and resource
use and efficiency. This certification cnsures we strive for continual improvement and innovation in our approach to the envirenment,

while mainiaining legal comptance.
This year, we supporied our first team to compete in the Greenpower Challenge, a project that enables school children (aged 11-16) to

design, build and race electric cars, with the help of NGED STEM ambassadors. The initiative focuses on renewable energy, recycled
materials and the varied careers available in engineering.
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Our commitment to being a responsible business (continced}

Qur environment (continued)

We are working with third party organisations, such as local gcologists. to understand the impact of our activities on biodiversity. This
includes increasing scrutiny of environmental and sustainability factors in our tendering process. and identifying areas in our business
with the highest emissions, so that we can engage with suppliers and contractors to improve the impact of our supply chain on fhe
environment. As part of National Ted 2 ongoing commitinent to biodiversity and the environment, we plant native frees and shrubs
across our operating regions each year, in partnership with The Conservation Volunteers. This year, we supported planting meadow
flowers at Creswell Crags in Nottinghamshire - one of the most important Stone Age archaeological sites in Europe.

Deaf awarcress clrarterrmark

NGED holds the RNID Londer Than % iriw’ charter mark accreditation which assesses and endorses the accessibility of services for
deafl and hard of hearing people. We have held the accreditation for nine and eleven years respectively for the South Wales and South
West and Fast and West Midlands, We were the first DNO in the UK to launch the “TrasrgrsmesNaas” (now Sign'Video) service. This
cnables deaf customers o contact us in British Sign Language ("BSL™) via an online interpreter by downloading a free app. In addition,
we also provide a series of customer information videos in BSL.

Taxation

As part of the National Grid Group. NGED adopts a responsible approach to taxation aiming to comply with applicable tax legistation.
Delails of the approach are ingluded in the National Grid tax strategy that is published annually and covers all businesses within the
group. The tax strategy can be found an the National Grid websile or using the hink below:

For details of the NGEL Group's effective tax rate sce note 10.

Human rights

NGLD is dedicated 10 conducting its busingss with honesty, integrity and fairness. Jn suppori of these pringiples it is NGED's policy to
observe all domestic and applicable foreign laws and regulations inchuding the Human Rights Act 1998, Equality Act 2010 and Modern
Slavery Act 2015, Training of all employees is conducted in relation to these laws and regulations which has led 10 an understanding
within the Group of issues associated with these statutes. The outcome of our policies and procedures is that there have been no knovwn
instances of any form of discrimination. slavery or human rights vioiatinn,

For our modern slavery statement. refer to the Nationa! Grid website or using the link below:

N s -

~ P T

Anri-corruption and anfi-bribery

NGED has robust policies on anti-corruption and anti-bribery. These policies apply to all employees of the Group and form part of the
employce Code of Conduct. Other individuals performing functions for the Group, such as agency workers and contraciors, are also
required to adherc to our anti-bribery and anti-corruption policies. Through our policiss and procedurss we have been able 1o foster an
enviromment of zero iolerance towards bribery and corruption. As a result there has been no known viclation of applicable laws and
policies.

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD™)
Refer to the Annual Report and Accounts of Nationa! Grid ple, pages 38-51 for TCFD disclosures. including elimae related risks of
National Grid Group.
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Strategic report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Non-financial information statement
1n accordance with section 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 we have reported on various nen financial information as foliows:

- Business model!
Reler v pages 1 - 3.

- Invironment
Refer to pages 6, 18, 29 and 30 for our work done in relation to environment
Refer to pages §-9 for our KP[s in relation to environment.

sLmployres
Refer to pages 28 and 29 for deiails on our policies regarding employees.
Refer to pages 12 and13 for our KPIs in relation to employee satisfaction.

- Social matters
Refer to pages 27 and 28.

- Human righls
Refer to page 30.

- Anfi-corruption and anti-bribery matters
Refer 1o page 30.

Section 172 Statement
Refer to pages 40-41 for our Section 172 slatement.

Approved and authorised for issuc by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Cordelia O'Hara
Direcior
30 June 2023

National Grid Electricity Distribution Ple (formerly Western Power Distribution Ple)
Avaonbank

Feeder Road

Bristol BS2 0B

National Grid Liectricity Distribwion ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc)
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Corporale governance statement
For the year endad 31 March 2023

For the year ended 31 March 2023, under The Companies ( Miscellaneous Reportingy Regulations 2018, National Grid Electricity
Distribution Ple has adopted the Wates Corporate Governanws Principles for Large Private Companiss

The principles below have been applicd throughout the year ended 31 March 2023,

Purpose and leadership

Our purpose is to Bring Energy 1o Life. As described on page 5 of the Strategic report, we work within the purpose, vision, values and
strategy and of the National Grid Group to ensure we are well positioned to respond te changes in the operating environment. The Board
1 respaambie D avertight of fe Comomty s soaesy and oy saesdersd T3 denalovment Jurng rhe troring perind

Our purpose, vision and values are the fundamentals of our business, they are what motivate us and drive how we behave to deliver our
purpose in the rapidly changing encrgy sector.

At National Grid Electricity Distribution we carc about all of our stakeholders. This is a fundamental attribute that allows us o ful(il and
deliver our purpose to meet the needs and expectations of our stakeholders, We do this by listening and taking decisive action on what
out stakeholders tell us.

Our purpose, vision and values are constantly reinforced to the warkforce through various internal communications such gs roadshow
presentations from the President. our in-house magazine, regular intranet news updaies, direct cmails from the President and other
executive directors of the Group and from the Chief Executive of National Grid Group, The Board is confident that they have.
throughout the organisation articulated that we are a purpose-led Group.

Each year, the President conducts roadshows throughout the Group. In addition. the President visits smalter workforce groups to
monitor the alignment of the workforee culture with the Tnoir 'z purpose.  The other dircotors also actively engage with the workforce
through informal and formal methods. | his direcl engagement enables the Board to get invaluable insights into the cufture of the Group
and its alignment to our core valugs. Our senior leadership conferences. presenied by the President and other cxecutive directors to the
senior management, support open dialoguc between the executives and the senior management team. This is an effective way of
strengthening the feedback from senior managers and cascading key messages by the cxecutive directors throughout the organisation
and ensuring all colleagues can contribute to delivering the Group's purpose,

To support this. the directors have introduced a peer to peer recognition campaign 'Living our Values' This campaign helps us celebrate
colleagues from across our business at al! levels, for actions big and small. that showcase the positive impact of our values in action.

Our leadership is driving the transformation in the ensrgy sector. moving towards a smart. low carbon neiwork to enable cur
commihities to reach net zéro, by connecting their renewable generation. electric vehicles and heat pumps. We are in a strong position
to de this being part of the National Grid Group, the largest electricity transmission and distribution business in the UK, giving us a
great platform o play our rofe in the future. The proactive involvement of the Board and the Company as a whole with our
stakeholders, under the Boards leadership is delailed in the 'stakeholder relationships and engagement' scction on pages 37-39.

Board composition

Balance and diversify

Reinforeing its commitment to sound corporate governance, the Board has continucd to strengthen and develop both its composition and
governance framework, implementing. as applicable, many of the best practice govemnance principles in operation at the National Grid
ple level. At the year end. the Board consisted of three executive directors and two Group-appointed non-execulive directors. The non-
executive directors are part of the senior management team of the NGED Group sharebolder. National Grid. wheo between them provide
a broad and diverse rangs of experience and technical skills from both within and external w0 the organisation, from the energy sector
and external bodies. The size of the Board is aligned 1o the organisational structure of the Group with each exceutive dirsctor
respimsible for the oversight of its relevant area under the overall leadership of the President within the Group structure.

The designation of the executive direcior roles are the President. Operations Dirsctor. and Regulation & Corporate Director. All the
executive directors are experienced in their respective roles and responsibilities

Oversight vesponsibilities lie with the Group-appointed non-exscutive directors. The Group-appointed non-executive divectors fulfil
their responsibility in offering constructive chalienge by regularly attending the board meztings of the Company. Ouiside of formal
Imeetings, the non-executive directors are provided with timely information and given acecss o relevant vpdates, including invitations 1o
maeetings, whare they are encouraged to offer constructive feedback.
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Corporate governance statement {continued)
For the ysar ended 31 March 2023

Board composition (continued)

Balance and diversity (continued)

The Group-appointed non-executive directors possess the necessary skills and expeticnee of the utility sector and wider business sectors
to provide oversight of the Company. To fulfil their duties, they have access to the Company Secretary and to legal advisors funded by
the NGED Group. As with all Board members, the Group-appointed non-executive directors have the authority to request Board
megctings.

As at 31 March 2023, the ratio of female directors on the board is 60%. Following the appointment of a female President for the NGED
Group from 1 April 2023, the ratio increased to 80%. The Hampton-Alexander review, an independent voluniary and business-led
iniliative supported by the Government to inerease 1he representation of women in senior leadership positions and on Boards, set a target
of 33% women representation on TTSE 350 Boards and FTSE 350 senior leadership teams. Although the Company is not required to
do so it has excesded this target.

A delailed profile of our Board can be found on our website at the link below:

All dircctors have equal voting rights when making Board decisions. with the Chair of the meeting having a casting vole.

Chair

There is no permanent appointment of the Seard s Chair, however, it is usual practice for the President to be appointed the Chair at each
Board Meeting. The President is the President of Electricity Distribution within the National Grid Group management organisation and
a3 such has extensive engagement with the sharehelder. Through this engagement. the role is well placed to identify and facilitate the
views of the ultimate shareholder. The Board believes this is a valuable part of the overall corporate governance framework which is
appropriate for a subsidiary company that is part of a larger group and provides greater benefits than separating the roies of the Chair
and President.

Appointments

The President of NGED is appointed by the Group shareholder, National Grid. The appeintment of the President and the other directors
follows the National Grid policy on the ~Aoeemomest of Directors of Subsidiary Companies Frezmiuve” (the "Agmomimers
Faewnirs . This is to ensure that appointments and changes to the compasition of the boards of directors of subsidiary companies
within the National Grid Group are fully evaluated in a consistent manner that can be reviewed for compliance with statutery
requirements. U also ensures an appropriate level of representation and the provision of the right skills and cxperience on relevant
company boards,

Other executive directors and Group-appointed non-exseutive director nominations and appointments are recommended and approved
with the support of the President in line with the Appointments Procedure. The process followed for the nomination of these directors
involves the consideration of the relevant skills, expertise, experience. professional background and various other personal attributes.
The People & Governance Commitlee of the parent, National Grid is responsible for succession planning within NGED.

Newly appointed directors underiake an induction programme which is tailored to their specific needs.

‘The Board ensures their knowledge is current and relevant through a variety of means such as attending training programmes and
appropriate industry conferences, holding memberships of relevant institutzs. completing technical training updates and attending
meetings with various industry participants e.g. regulators and investors, The executive directors adopt a hands on lgadership style and
regularly meet with their management teams to ensure that they are updated on the latest business developments and have immediate
access to the current information.

Directors' responsibilities

Accountability and discharge of responsibilities

The Board maintains a schedule of matters specifically rescrved for its consideration and decision. This is aligned, as appropriate. to that
of the National Grid ple beard with additional responsibilities as required by licence obligations. There are well-defined policics, as
approved by the Board, clearly establishing the overall duties and habilities of the directors, the areas of responsibility and
accountabitity for each dircctor and the process for delegation of authonity. Policics have been cstablished that define the framework
within which we expect managers and the workforce to operate. These policies represent one of the means through which decisions on
stakeholder intcrests are enacted and there is a robust proeess in place for the regular review and update of pelicies and processes to
ensure they remain relevant and (0t for purpose.

To support the Board, there is a Finance sub-committes of the Board, to which the Board delegates defined duties under Terms of
Reference and within a framework of the National Grid ple Delegulion ol Authority “Za 2 . Further detail on the work of the sub-
committoes can be found helow.
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Directors’ responsibitities (continued)

Accountability and discharge of responsibilities (continued)
‘There are four principal Board meetings schedulcd each year. The Board meetings arc generally scheduled and communicated well in
advance to provide all direciors with sufficient notice to attend the meetings. The matters to be considered throughout the annual board

meeting schedule fullil the Suwrd s responsibilities in line with its statutory duties, licence obligations and its maitcrs reserved for the
Board.

[fthe need arises, the directors can call additionai meetings at any time, organised through the Company Secretary. The Board receives
and is updated on all key and important busincss information by the executive directors at the Board meetings.

Overall operational responsibility of the NGED Group lies with the President. The President fulfils this responsibility in conjunction
with and through oversight of the other executive directors and senior leadership. Unltil December 2022, regular formal meetings, known
as the Executive Council. consisting of the President, Chief Financial Officer, Operailons [Yirectors, Regulation & Corporate Dircctor,
Dircctor of Distribution System Operator and Director of SIIE. Training and Engineering Policy, were conducted. From January 2023,
this has been replaced with the President's Senior Leadership Group meetings. Semior Leadership Group meetings have a wider
participation than the Executive Council and also nelude the Chief People Officer, Blectricity Distribution Transformation Lead and
Chief Information Officer. These meetings acts as a forum for the discussion of business performance, strategic considerations and
identification of matters to be considered by the Board. Other senior management may atiend the meetings for the purpose of providing
updates to the directors. Any key items are circulated and communicated to the Board in a timely manner.

The executive ditectors are responsible for the organisational performance of their directorate and are accountable to the President and
the Board. Executive direciors regularly mect with their respective senior leadership teams to discuss matters impacting the Group. KP1
monitoring is delegated to the senior managers who report directly to their regpective executive director. In order to operate efliciently
and to give the right level of attention and consideration to relevant matters. while maintaining complete aversight of their area of
accountability. the executive dircctors empower senior management to lake operational decisions, apply their knowledge and utilise thelr
industry experience in the daily management of the business.

The directors are conscious of the changing reporting and governance landscape and are commitied to fulfilling theiv responsibilities
effectively by ensuring that their skills and knowledpe are refreshed and updated regularly. There is an established code of ethics palicy
af the Group which is adhored to by all the werkforce including the executive directors,

The executive ditectors understand the impartance of leading with integrity. Group policy sets out pulential conflicts of interest and at
cach Board meeting the directors disclose any potential conflicts of intercst in any of the Group transaciions or arrangemenis, In
addition the Company Secretary administers an annual process. whereby the directors disclose any intercsts in related parties or any
related parly transactions

Conmitices

The Board has established a Finance Commitiee of the Board during the year. The Finance sub-commitiec is responsible for setting
policy and grants authovity for financing decisions, credit exposure, hedging and forcign exchanpe transactions. guarantees and
indemnities, all subject to the risk appetite of the Board. 1t also approves other treasury, taxation and pension lunding matlers, as wall as
having vesponsibility for the governance of the Jomgpaes's pension schemes and the Jon
recommends these 1o the Board.

oo 3 insurance strategies, and if appropriate.

Membership of the sub-commitiee comprises the Chief Financial Officer and Group Treasurer and Director of Pensions of National Grid
ple. The sub-commities interfaces with the Finance Committes of National Grid plc and the Board. During the vear, the Finance sub-
commitiee met three times

Each Board meeting considers a separate agenda item on the work of the Finance sub-committze. The National Grid ple Group
Treasurer and Director of Pensions reports to the Board on the financing activities, taxation. financial costs and liabilities of the pensien

schenies at Board meetings.
In addirion, the DNO boards also have a Corporate Gavernance Committee,

The Beard and its sub-conunittees are supported by the Company Secrstary who is available to all Board and commitiee members 10
provide guidance as required on all governance matters,

NGED does not have an Audit & Risk Committes. Nomisations Committes or Remuneration Comimittge as these functions are provided
by Nationa! Grid ple ~ see the Annual Repon and Accounts of National Grid ple (page 69) for information about the National Grid
Group Audit Committee, People & Governance Committee (which covers the responsibilitizs of a typical Nominations Committez) and
the Remuncration Commitize.
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Directors' responsibilities (continued)

Integrity of information

At the quarterly Board meetings, the Board receives information on all key aspects of the business including safely, environmental
matters, risks (including eyber security threal) and opportunities, financial performancs, strategic and regulatory matters, operational
matters, markel conditions, changes in the political landscape and updates on relevant technological developments. Board information is
prepared by a centralised team and is subject to detailed review procedurcs at various levels of scnior management prior to submission
to the Board.

Key linancial information is taken from the our financial systems. Our finance team is appropriately qualificd to ensure the integrity of
this information and necessary lraining is provided to keep them up fo date with statutory, regulalory and financial reporting
requircments. NGED continues 1o operate & Sarbanes-Oxley ("the Act”) compliance programme that is aligned to the needs of the parent
company. In accordance with the requirements of the Act, our management team undertakes an annual assessment of internal controls
over financial reporting. This includes ensuring all key financial processes have been documented with specific details on the controls in
place. Key controls over financial reporting are periodically reviewed and tested by National Grid's corporate audit team.

Key regulatory information is prepared annually for submission to the regulator, Ofgem. We have extensive internal data assurance and
governance procedures and established policies [or ensuring data integrity in respect of information submitted. Data is compiled from
source systems that have appropriate validation checks and is prepared, revicwed and approved by %3 &Iy s experienced, senior
management personngl,

KPl information is available to management via the use of dashboards. This system interfaces directly with source systems and data. and
was implemented following extensive testing procedures on data accuracy.

The Bowrs 2review of the information in relation to various arcas of the business allows the dircctors to assess that systems, processes
and procedures continue 1o operate efectively and assists in identifying and strengthening governance arrangements.

Oppoertunity and risk

Opportunity
We strive to create and preserve valus over the long term by consistently providing outsianding customer service at an efficient cost by
combining technical excellence and innovation within a clear organisational structure. Within the parameters of operating within a
regulated environment, the Board identifies and evaluates relevant opportunitics o create long iterm value [or the Group and iis
stakeholders.

The energy sector is undergoing a stgnificant and exciting period of change as the UK works towards a net Zero carbon future. Net zero
cannot happen without us and the Board i3 fully aware of the fact that our leadership will directly impacrt the pace and efficiency with
which it is achieved. Recognising this responsibility, the dircctors have ensured that our RIIG-ED2 business plan places us at the hean
of this transition. The Board agversaw the developrient of “GED s RIO-ED2 business plan and ensured the plan was constructed ta
take full account of the UK Geremtmene s published plans to achieve net zero Carbon Emissions by 2050, The dircctors ensured that the
business plan was prepared with unprecedented levels of scrutiny and collaboration by engaging. directly and indirectly through senior
management, in our largest ever stakeholder consultation process with a broad range of representatives.

2 3 skill and wide expericnce of adapting to change and investing in innovation has demonstrated cur abilily to adopl new
technologics to create an ever more cost-effective electricity network. With final determination of the RILO-ED2 business plan requiring
significant efficiency challenges (rent the IINOs. the Board (s focused on ensuring that we continue to make full use of and further
develop our existing expericnce and gxpertise in innovation and flexibility services. as we provide consumers with the nctwork strength
to cope with a range of increased new demand and accommodate increascd input from green power gencration. The directors are
focused on utilising digitaiised solutions across our operations and aim to instil a culture that maximises every opportunity fo work
smarter for our customers Tor detalls of achievements in the current year in arzas of decentralisation and digitalisation refer to pages 19-
20 of the Strategic rcport.

To enable stakeholders to achieve net zero, our business plan for 2023 to 2028 outlines how we wilf create a smart, flexible energy grid
and facilitate the mass connection of LCTs including electric vehicle charging points, heat pumps and more locally sourced renewable
gencration. Many of these LCTs will be connected at lower voltages making it vital to ensure that there is sufficient capacity for the
LCTs to connect. NGED will proactively identify parts of the network that are heavily loaded and provide more capacity. We will use
smart meter data, increased amounts of network monitoring and enhanced analysis to identify where network reinforcement is required.
We will also look at ways in which the LCT loads can be managed to make greatest use of existing network capacity which may involve
steps including controthing when EVs are charged. Together these proactive actions will enable more 1.CTs to connect overall, in shorter
tintescales and at lower cosi than if conventional reinforcement was requirad.
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Opportunity and risk (continued)

Opportunity (continued)

The Board is invested in ensuring that our own commitment to sustainability includes leading by example and reducing our own
Business Carbon Footprint to net zero by 2043 in line with our verified 1.5°C Science Based Target. This will be delivered by reducing
the ampunt of waste we send to landfill, adopting electric vehicles across our transport fleet to reduce cmissions, significantly reducing
harmful gas and oil leaks from our equipment and ensuring we actually enhance the local envirenment by delivering a net gain in
biodiversity for new major projects and at selected primary substations. Based on feedback from our stakeholders. small scale UK based
offsetting will also be used. Qur intention for RIIO-ED2 is to develop a broad portfoliv of UK based offsetting including habitat
creation, for example tree planting, peatland and sea grass restoration. as well as local community based offsetting schemes such as solar
for schools. All of our offsetting schemes will be UK based within our licence areas and therefore bring direct and tangible benefit to
our customers and the communitics which we serve.

In the wmren & move to decarbonisation, the directors are determined to achieve a sustainable energy future by delivering a dynamic,
innovative and high funclioning energy grid that stands ready to serve many gengrations to come.

Risk

The NGED Board is responsible for the oversight of risk management and internal controls across the NGED group. The responsibility
for the risk management framework and infernal controls cascades from the President and the executive directors to senjor management
teams responsible for risk assessment and the implementation of appropriate mitigation. Managers arc responsible for the identification
of risks and the deployment of appropriate controls within their areas of responsibility. Policies are established, reviewed regularly and
made available on the Group intranet to assist the managers with establishing an appropriate control environment. We consider the
involvement of gualified and competent enmployees with the appropriate level of expertise throughout the business a key factor for
implementing an effective internal control environment.

Risk management is embedded into the organisational structure, with specialist teams established fo manage certain key risk areas.
Specifically, we have long established teams reporting to senlor managers responsible for health and safety, regulatory compliance.
employee relations. eyber security, financial reporting and legal compliance. During the year, NGED started a change process to align ils
risk framework 1o the National Grid Group risk management framework with the support of a tlead of Risk and Compliance sccondee

NGED's principal risks were reviewed and revised 1o align better to the three lines of defence model adopted by the National Grid Group
and its risk maragemant framework in terms of bugingss risk objectives, laxonomy, commeon risk language and scoring scales. By the
yvear end, NGED had established a revised set of principal risks. mitigating controls and an assurance plan aligned to the parent
Mgy @ orisk management framework. Consideration of principal and emerging risks and related decisions are undertaken by the
Fxecutive Council Senior Leadership Group meetings. Menthly reporting to the Executive Council Senior Leadership Group meelings
of the principal risks under development for NGED has been made throughout the yezar. The Executive Council Senior Leadership
Group exercises suitable judgement as to any control decisions that merit Beard attention. Emerging and principal risks are regularly
reported to the Board facilitating the oversight of the risk management process of the Group Pages 24 to 26 of the Strategic report
outline the key risks and the related mitigating actions for the Company.

Remuneration
The remuneration of cxecutive directors, including the role of President and of the Group-appointed non-executive directors is
determined by the ultimate parent company, Natonal Grid ple. Llements of direclors' remuneration and further information on this is
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The pay of the majority of “7EID s wider workforce is negotiated and agreed upon with the recognised trade unions, with the aim Lo
ensure that the terms and conditions are aligned to current industry practices and benchmarked against appropriate energy and
COmIparator groups,
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Stakeholder relations and engagement
The Board believes that the overall success of the business is dependent upon the way we work with our stakeholders and is fully
compyred a eerng afeere sdEheider sliatonsiiny hat are angned © ke Grong s surmose and v

Our key stakeholders are customers, other network users, the workforce, regulators, suppliers and our shareholder. The Beard actively
Promotes engagement and transparency with all these stakeholder groups and the executive directors ensure that a fair and balanced
view of the {wup g position is communicated o the relevant stakeholders. This is evident from the stakeholder engagement that is
cenducted for all our key initiatives and business commitments, recently, the most significant being the stakeholder engagement
conducted in producing our RIIO-ED2 business plan before final submission to Ofgem on 1 December 2021, Using a co-creation
approach, we developed the Business Plan from a blank sheet of paper, ensuring it is prepared with our customers, for our customers
and centains ambitious. impactful commitments. For further details on our stakcholder engagement in relation to the RUIIO-ED2 business
plan, refer to our detailed business plan document which details how we built our plan with our stakcholders:

Detaiis of engagement with each of our key stakeholder are as follows:

Cuasiomers
The Doard strives to deliver the cluss-leuding service our customers expect and iy keen on continuing to support all our customers
including our vulnerable customers, Some of the key customer engagement during the year is highlightad as below:

Customer paitel

Our estabtished customer panel meets quarterly and expert members represent a wide range of customers and key stakeholder groups.
The panel is atrended by the President and other directors and through the panel they seck honesl and challenging customer views about
the way we operate and our future plans. This level of engagement plays an important role in helping NGED achieve its purpese of
delivering good wvalue and quality service for its customers. This year the panz] continued to run topic-specific surgeries between

meetings, for exampie on social obligations and connections.

Stakeholder workshops gnd events

Annually NGED hosts an array of workshops, events, webinars and surgeries to undsrstand the needs of its stakeholders so that they are
aligned with the stratsgic prierities of the group. These arc attended by the directors and senior management, with atl key information
fed back to the Senior Leadership Group and ihe Board 1w ensure there is informed decision making.

In September and October 2022, NGED hasted six workshops across the region, focused on et zdraft detcrminations for the RITO-
ED? Business Plan. The workshops were designed to seek [tedback from stakeholders on our commitments relating 0 a smart and
flexible network, connactions, community energy, innovation, environment and sustainability, customers in vulngrable simations, Social
Contract. customer service. nctwork resilience, safety, 1T and syber and workforee resilience.

In addition to the RIIC-ED2 workshops, many other topic-specific evenis were held for thosc interested in connections, law carbon
technologics, community energy and local investment plans. To address the challenges of engaging with end customers, who often have
little prior knowledge of NGED, we adopted an innovative tailored approach by developing customer knowledge over a prolonged
vetiod ol research exerciscs and deliberative discussions, Customers have undergone a programune of research and focus groups over a
number of years, enriching their understanding and ability to offer informed scrutiny of our plans.

All these events and workshops wslcomed stakeholders from a range of different backgrounds including dnmestic, business, local
authorities, developers, environmental. energy. ulility. repulatory 'governiment and veluntary sactors. In total, during the year, we engaged
with gver 42,000 (2021272 44,0007 stakcholders via a range of methods and delivered 308 (2021 22: 384) improvement actions basad
on leedback received.

Ll 1 Y
The ("CCSG™) 15 held three times a year (o help inform and guide our strategic objectives and future plans for connections services. The
CCSG is chaired by one of our directors and is attended by connection stakesholders representing a cross-section of sectors. The CCSG
covors a broad range of connections related topics and previously Jed into the development of our Incentive Connections Engagement

("ICE™) plan for Ofgem's RITO-EDT incentive, Going forward CCSG will now feed into our Major Connections Strategy for RITIO-ED2.
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Stakeholder relations and engagement (continued)
Customers (continued)

Customer engagement growr ("CHLGY)

As pari of RIIO-ED2's cnhanced engagement, a Customer Engagement Group ("CEG") was established o scrutinise our business plan.
NGED foilowed a robust, independent and transparent process to appoint all 14 members of the CEG. The CEG provided independent
challenge to our business plan and reflected the needs and preferences of existing and future consumers. with a focus on affordability,
the protection of vuinerable consumers, the ervironment, sustainability and the transition to a low carbon energy systen. NGED has
continued to retain five members on the CEG panel, as the RI{O-ED2 Moniloring Group to continue their oversight. remaining focussed
on delivery of the RIFQ-ED2 Business Plan.

Customer awarengss campaign

Annually, NGED delivers an annual customer awareness campaign to customers, reminding them of who we are. what we do, how to
contact us and oftering useful advice on preparing for power cuts and joining the Priorily Services Register “PSR™ In the current year,
we coincided our campaign with the rebrand of the Group, following acquisition by National Grid. This involved delivering leaflets to
all homes and businesses in our operating region informing them of the change from Western Power Distribution to Nationa! Crid along
with useful contact and power cut information, The campaign also included social media promotion. Over the winter period, NGED also
delivered a further campaign centring specifically on being prepared in case ol power culs. with potential of outages heightened by
adversc seasonal weather conditions. The campalgn included a preparation checklist, with links to our online power cut map and signing
up to the PSR, with advertising covering print media, social media and buses o extznd its reach.

The frrxeners” commitment and, in turn. that of senior management and the wider workforce, to being proactive in customer cngagement
is evident from the external assessment of cusiomer service and engagement under the CSE Standard and BSI Standard for Inclusive
Service Provision {(BS18477). For CSE, NGED is the only company 1o have held the accreditation for 30 consccutive years and has
achieved an impressive total of 47 out of 57 *Camgitance #us’ ratings. NGED was also the first DNO group to achieve the BS] and has
achicved 10 years of full compliance, the longest period for any company in UK. Far from providing just validation, accreditations such
as the CSE Standard and the BS1 Standard continue to drive improvements for our customers. They allow our strategies and processes to
obtain critical external evaluation and ensure we receive recommendations for further improvement. This helps us to drive our standards
even higher and continuously improve cur customer service.,

The workforce

The directors recognise and acknowledge how critical our workforee is to our business performance and to achieving our vision to be at
the heart of a clean, fair and affordable cnergy future. The dircctors are keen 1o undersiand how the workforee feel and how best we can
support and develop tham to ensure a happy and healthy workforce. The annual Grid:voice engagemend survey provides insights into
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I'he resubts of the survey were presented 1o the Board and the leedback resulted in a 37 point action plan. The action plan is published
on our intranet showing our progress against each of the 37 actions. Since publication of the action plan in summer 2022, 24 actlions
have now been completed, with many others being continuous areas of improvement.

The President accompanisd by the Regulation & Corporate Director conducted 49 face-to-face roadshow events open to ali collcagues
acress our four regions. sctting out our future as a business and inviting all colleagues 10 have the chance 1o ask questions personally,
Yhe roadshoyws provided an update on key svents. performance 1o date, our integration with National Grid and also provided visibility of
our strategic priorities in action whilst emphasising the vital role of the workforce in achieving those priorities.

In addition o the rnadshows, senior leadership confercoces conducted by the executive directors and our internal communications
through our team briefz,

eagsey webinars and podeasts. n-house magazine. pews bulleting and direct email updates trom the
executive directors, have all been used during the year to conduct meaningful engagement with the workforce. Through thes
communications, the workforce have been kept informed about key business updates and changes such as RILQ-ED2 and our integration
with the wider National Grid Group. In ensuring that the Imegration to Narional Gnd 1z simooth Jor cur workforce, the directors
launched Project Connect to share our purpose, vision. valugs and strategic priorities as we continued to integrate with National Grid.
This alzo included information on how the wider group is organised and various other areas to help the workforee ramiliarise themselves
with the National Grid Group

L3
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Stakeholder relations and engagement {continued)

Regulators
The executive directors are actively involved in ensuring open and transparent communication with industry regulators. most notably

Crdpem mws he Rensih o Sedery Esscuriee  THIE™Y

The directors regularly engage Ofgem with the overall aim of developing a regulatory price control framework that contains the right
balance of customer focused outputs and economic incentives, which help to deliver the Jereument’s energy objectives and de-
carbonisation targeis. All key communications and engagements with Ofgem are discussed at Board meelings.

Siomed s Lhirector of $HE, Training and Engineering Policy is the chair of the National Health & Safety Committse “Hz2 &0 (of
which the HSE is a member), and attends the committee meetings. NGED aligns ils internal safety campaigns 1o support HSE initiatives
and their current "W arung Minds' campaigr, as well as actively participating in the National HESAC led 3oagrng mpravenment
programme which is also supported by the FHISE and Trade Unions. The President is also a director of the ENA and a member of the

=y

Toungtaine 0 Diraee s Tnergy Fomee CREEFTY
Annually the members of the senior leadership and management team attend the Wational S1IE conference run by the ENA.

Suppliers for our gaods and services

Defined policies are in place for procuremant of goods and services and associated supply chain management and engagement, We have
a dedicated procurement tzam that assists with engagement with supplicrs. The Operations Director has oversight responsibility for
logistics, including the supply chain function. The Operations Director is supported by the NGED Logistics Manager and the ultimate
parent, National Grid's UK Procurement Director. Key issues related to supply chain matters are reperted and discussed at the Senior
Leadership Group meetings.

We carry out payment performance reporting for suppliers. We are fair to our suppliers and committed to paying them promptly: on
average. On average we pay our suppliers in 18 days (2021°22: 17 days). Further details on payment performance for suppliers by
NGED Companies can be found at the UK Government website al the link below:

e . e Lt na

Shareholder

The Board actively engages with our single shareholder, National Grid, on all key matters. As stated above. the Group-appointed non-
exccutive board members of the Company are members ol the National Grid ple senior management team. National Jrmd s executive
directors and senjor management has regular contact and dialogue with “=ZE2 v exceutive directors and senior management and all key
information is ted back to the National Grid ple Board on a timely basis. There iy a suite of financial managenient and regulatory
reporling presented to National Grid on established timelines and regular financial and regulatory update meetings are conducted with
Naticnal Jrd’s management team to provide updates on any koy accounting, business. and legal issues. Additionally, as part of the
National Grid Group plan, 33 s financial plan is presented te the National Grid ple Board for detailed review and approval on an
annual basis. Any senior leadership cvents at National Grid are attended by the NGED President and other executive board members.

National Grid Eleetricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 39



Section 172 Statement
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The Board cnsures that the directors have acted both individually and collectively in a way that they consider, in good faith, would be
most likely 1o promote the success of the Company for the bene it of ils ynembers as a whole with regard to all its stakehalders snd to the
malters set out in paragraphs (a) to {I) of section 172. Details on this are set out below:

The likely consequence ol any decision in the long term

Cur long term success is intrinsically linked to our vision of a clean, fair and affordable energy luture. We will achieve our vision by
focusing on our four strategic priorities; enable energy transition for all, deliver for our customers efficiently, grow our organisational
capability and empower our people for great performance. These strategic priorities clearly reflect that the Board is focused oh
promoting the success of the husiness byA ensuring that NGED makes the provision of exceptional service to our customers and the
communities we serve an absolute priority, at the sanie time ensuring that we support their environmental and social well-being.

The four strategic priorities form the basis of all the Rauad’ s key decisions and these are monitored by the Board through established
KPis as detailed in the Strategic report on pages §-13.

The Beard recognises its responsibihities to each of National Ged s stakeholder groups and to wider society. The directors endeavour to
ascertain the interests and views of our stakehelders and consider these when taking decisions. The Board strives to balance the different
priorities and interests of our stakeholders in a way compatible with the long-term. sustainable success of the business and which
maintains a standard of business conduct alignad to our values and purpose.

Most engagement with key stakeholders is carmed out by management teams and takes place at business level and the directors engage
directly with stakeholders where possible. Reporting mechanisms are in place to collate fecdback and developments [toin such
engagement and enable a flow of this information to the Board to inform decision making. By recciving regular updates on business
programmes and objectives. the Board monitors that management is acting in accordance with the agreed purpose, vision and values.
Processes arc in place to ensure that the Board receives all relevant business information to ¢nable it to monitor performance in support
SE R O R -t HLoSes

The Board has oversight responsibility for risk management across the NGED Group. For the purposes of business resilience. the Beard
satisfies itself that there is an appropriate risk management approach and that reasenable mitigations arc in place for the key visks ol the
Group For details on the Group's risk management approach refer to page 24 of Strategic report and page 36 of the Code of corporate
governance statement.

‘The interests of our colleagues
Our workforge are critical to ow suecess. The directors understand how important our employees and the wider workforce are to the
long-term success of the business and are committed to keeping them metivated and fully involved in all aspects of the business.

At NGED we work collaboratively with our trade union colleagues 0 provide g working environment that allows our colleagues to
develop, be motivated 1o succeed, and progress within a team structured organisation where an empowered workloree can and do have
the opportunity to flourish, Ouwr aim is to provide a fair and balanced reward framework that is competitive within the market. It is
underpinned by our strategic priority of ~zmuswery our swieagues’ The dircctors are keen for employees to be able to share in our
success and therefore schemes such as annual Sharesave plan and Share Incentive Schemes axist [or employees o participate in.

Pages 28-29 in the Strategic report provide further details on how the directors continually take measures to promote the interest of the

Conmmarer 3 smohesess amd e cer s

The geed ta Bwter the Company’s usiness relofimasigs with suppliers. eastimers and athers

The Board believes that the overall success of the business is dependent upon the way we work with our stakeholders and is fully
committed to fostering sffective stakeholder relationships that are alignad to the Trrsut” 2 purpose and strategic prioritics, Dotails of this
can be found on pages 37-39 of our Corporate governance statement.

The magact of the Campany’ s aperatans a the enmummnicy sad the nvirwumenr

The service wz provide is critical to cur communitics and impacts the busincssas and homes we serve on a daily basis. The duectors
believe thal working closely with our communities is important in creating shared value for the business. the people we serve and the
communities we operate 1n. Benchmarking has heen conducted to establish best practice regarding Environmental, Social and
Governance - "EST with “ZED s prime ESG rating demonstrating our best in class performance. This rating by the Instifutiona)
Shareholder Services ("ISS8™) 1s enly given 1o companies with an ESG performance above the ambitious threshold for the sector set by
ISS. The rating places us significantly above the majority of 1SS-rated Gas and Elsetricily Network Operainrs and reflects the Bosed’
commitment 1o incorporating sustainability and wider envirenmental and social considerations into our decision making. as we carry out
our work to keep the power Qowing and to mizet the encrgy challenges of the future.
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The mapact of the Campans™s sperations oo the cunmoniey and the envirnmment +esatmmaed)
Pages 27-30 in the Strategic report sel out our commitment to being a responsible business and the actions we have taken during the
year in relation to our comnzunity and environment.

Page 17 of the Strategic report sets out actions taken by us in relation to fairness and affordability.

We face exciling challenges as the UK works towards achieving the Gowermmentt 7 de-carbonisation target of net zero carbon emissions
by 2030. We have long recognised the role that the electricity sector plays in contributing to the & s ambitions towards carbon
reduction. Page 18 sets out how we have responded to net zero developments within our business environment.

The desirability of the Conpany mainiainlpg 4 repulation lor high standards of business conduct

The Board is commitied to the National Grid values of “ia the right fung’. -l a belter w2y and 'make it happen!, providing 2
framewaork for reporting business conduct matters, educating employees and promoting a culture of integrity at all levels of the business.
The Board aspire 1o develop a culture where the management and workforce are motivated for success which is aligned to its
shareholder expectations by creating long term value and al the same time mainiaining its commitment to satisfying customer needs. The
Board also aim for the Group to be a valued member of the community, which includes acling as a responsible steward of the
cavironment. We conduct our business in a responsible manner, considering the needs of the present and future geperations. We are
committed w being an exemplary corporate citizen, seeking to improve the quality of life in the communities in which we de business.
The Board ensures that the purpose, vision, values and the straiegic priorities of the Group support this. Qur ¢ngagement with all
stakcholder groups reflects that this aim is embedded across the business and Impacts the decisions takep throughout the organisation.
Qur employee Grid:voice survey is an example of one such engagement. The survey helps us understand the thoughts of our colleagues,
not only on malters impacting our workforce, but also on our strategic priorities and how they feel we are showing up for our customers.
This helps us engure that we continue to build on what works well and improve in arcas where we can do better. The aim of the survey is
to continue making NGED a great place to work, a great experience for our customers and a greater leader for the energy transition.

Pages 27-30 in the Strategic report set out our commitment to being a responsible business.

The Board is committed to an inclusive, respectful and diverse workplace that rewards performance, enables professional development
and cncourages employee engagement. We value inclusiveness and diversity as essential components of our identity and long-tcrm
success. Pages 28-29 in the Strategic report provides further details.

We strive hard to gei things right first time but sometimes things can go wrong. When we reccive complaints we treat them with urgency
and aim t¢ deal with them to the cusmree's full satisfaction as quickly as possible. We resolved 83% (202122: 84%) of complaints
within one day, beating the RIIO-ED1 target of 70%. We resolved 99% (2073722 98%%) of complaints within 31 days and there have
been no repeat complaints across any o our licence areas.

s workibree have access to the National Grid's internat cthics helpline at all times. The contact information is publicised to all
colleagues so that concerns can be reported anonymously. We will support and protect whistle blowers.

Our dedication to conducting cur business to the highest standards is also demonstrated by the emphasis placed by the directors on the
safety environment within the organisation. Safaty and training videos arc available lo the workforee to view and a programme of
bulletins is provided on soreens in offices to keep staff aware of key safety information. In support of an zmual safety action plan,
monthly colleague communications focussed on health and safely topics is provided. Safety conferences and presentations arc held each
year 10 ensure that a safe working cnvironment is a key priority throughout the organisation. There is a diligent system for reporting near
misses and incidents to aveid fulure recurrences. Safety is a crucial KPT for the Board thal is monitored stringently and the Board is
focused on developing a fair culture of accountability as opposed ™ & zerzesel culture of Time . when an aceident happens. Page 28
of the Strategic report sets out Aurther details in relation to focus of the directors on the health and safety of employees.

‘The nced 10 act fairly between members of the Company

The aripary g wltimate shareholder is National Grid. The Board has developed a robust corporate governance framawork which allows
the directors 1o understand the visws of the shareholder. This allows the dirsctors 10 both cffectively and constructively engage with and
repotl to the sharcholder.
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Pirectors' seport
For the year ended 31 March 2023

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the NGED group, together with financial statements and auditor's report. for
the year ended 31 Murch 2023.

Results and dividends
The NGED Group reports a profit for the financial year of £536.2m (2022: £373.3m). Profit before tax is £681.4m (2622: £746.9m).

The NGILD Group also reports other comprehensive loss, which was posted directly to capital and reserves, of £644.2m (2022: £743 9m
profit). This primarily relates to the defined benelit pension plan remeasurement, net of tax.

Dividends of £8.2m (2022: £1401.2m) have been paid during the year. No dividend has been paid subsequent to the year end, All
dividend payments are madc out of the distributable reserves of the Company.

In considering capital distributions, the Board is mindful of sticebelders’ views and takes account of our latest financial position, the
long-term sustainability for the NGED Group in addition to the allowed rate of reiurn and any incentive rewards received. In its
capacity of providing oversight for the operational performance of the business, the Board also takes account of the prevailing
performance against customer performance targets, other RIIO-ED] putput commitments and fulure requirements such as DSO, 1o
458e5S investment requirements.

As part of the regulatory process. Ofgem sets the allowed rate of retum within each price control period; Ofgem set NGED's cost of
equity at 6.4% (9.6% when normalised for a long-run inflation rate of 3%) for RIIQ-ED1. As is cvident from the lovels of our annual
capital expenditure (sce page 13 of the Strategic report), we reinvest in excess of our profits back inte the network to ensure an efficient.
reliable and environmentally sustainable network., The Board ensures that it understands and takes account of the views of our
shareholder in order to preserve positive investor relations. The Board acts in the siwergnnder’ s best interests by proposing an amount of
dividend in accordance with the financial parameters of our regulatory altowance whilst maintaining strong financial health metrics.

Political affiliations, denatigns and expenditure
NGED is a politically neutral organisation and, during the year, made no political donations.

NGED doss not engage in any lobbying activities with the Government. As part of the RIIO-ED2 business planning process, NGILD has
engaged with a wide range of stakeholders to seek their input on the business plan which has driven the outputs that the Group has
committed to deliver. NGEI) is a member of the industry trade association, the ENA, which provides a strategic focus and channel of
communication for ithe industry.

Financial assistance trom the Government

NGED has not received any financial assistance from the Government during the year. The Group can potentially access an additional
10% of its Apprenticeship Levy payments in order to fund approved training programmes for apprentices: however, for the year ended
31 March 2023, the payments into the fund by the Group were in cxcess of the funding the Group reclaimed.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
NGED does not undertake transactions in f{inangial derivative instruiments for speculative purposes. For further details of risks in
relation t treasury operations, see the refer note 22 page 96.

Liguidity and going concern
The following credit facilities were in place at 31 March 2023, in respect of which all conditions pressnt had been met at that date.

letters of Unused

Expiration Capacity Borrowed credit issued capacity

date £m £m £m £m

NGLED South West - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 220.0 - - 220.0
NGED East Midlands - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 2500 - - 250.0
NGED West Midlands - Syadicated Credit Facility Mayv 2025 230.0 - - 230.0
NGED South Wales - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 125.0 - - 1250
Bank overdraft 20.0 20.0
Uncommitied Credit Facilities 6.0 - 4.1 1.9
Total Credil Facilities 871.0 - 4.1 866.9

In addition ty the above facilities, the NGED Group alzo has uncommittzd two-way logn agreements with its ultimate parent. National
Grid FPle, of which £367.9m is drawn as at 31 March 20723, The loan from the ultimale parent company is repayable on demand.
£146.0m is also lent uader that same facility 1o the parent and is recoverable on demand. On 3 April 2023, the above RCE facilities of
ihe Group expiring in May 20235 were cancelled and replaced with a new facility of £843m with a 3 year maturity expiring on 5 April
2028, The new facility had tha same split between the DNOs as the existing facilities above.

National Grid Llectricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 42



Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Financial risk management objectives and policies {continued}

Liguidity and going concern (confinued)
NGED Group debt balances, cash and short term deposits as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

External debt Cash and short term
Long-term (due after 12 Shori-term (due within deposits (excluding
months) 12 months) restricted cash)

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£tm £m £m £m £m £m
NGED South West 1,104.00 1,033.60 237.4 149.6 4.7 5.8
NGED South Wales 776.6 763.8 76.0 0.1 (0.1) 13.8
NGED Fasi Midlands 1,912.5 991.3 - 700.6 0.1 81.0
NGED West Midiands 1,485.5 1,480.1 38.6 58.2 0.5 1.2
Western Power Distribution plc 507.1 994.6 709.2 76.6 .1 0.2
Other subsidiarics 4.4 1.0 0.8 0.6 27.1 34.4
5,790.1 5,284.6 1,082.0 1,385.7 324 136.4

Short term deposits arc considered corporate assets and ¢an he acceseed by any entity within the Group.

The Group has net cuwrrent liabilities of £1,205.7m (2022; £1,589.0m). The Group's net current liabilities will be settled with a
combination of cash flows from operating activities. use of existing facilities and issuances of long-term debt. The Group can access
either short or long term borrowings in order to finance repayment of the loan due within the next 12 months. The Group has credit
ratings abowve the investment grade and there is suflicient evidence, including historical analysis of the Geiue s ability 1o raise debt. to
indicate that the Group will be successfully able to raise debt to finance repayments as needed. A letler of support has also been obtained
from a parent undertaking confirming that it will provide financial support to the Group for not less than 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

D\Os are essential in keeping critical infrastructure asscets operating safely and securely and in making sure that homes and businesses
across the country are receiving the cnergy needed. The work of the Group is crucial for the continuation of existing essential services,
the establishment of new critical infrastructures and for keeping the public, including the most vulnerable in cur society, safe. Due to the
liegnsed regulatory obligations ol the business, the nceessity of continued operations even in times of economic uncertainties and having
access to sufficient liquidity, the Group does not consider that ihere is material uncertainty over the 2w 3 ability 1o continue as a

going concern.

The directors have considercd the availability of facilities as set out above, the relatively stable and regulated nature of the business, the
forceast long term business plan, the consistent credit ratings of NGED, the existing and future forecasted covenant compliance of the
Group. which includes the gearing ratio, the anticipated ability of the NGED Group to be able to raise additional long term debt in the
futbre and the ability of the parent undertaking 1o provide financial support. The directors bave also assessed the principal risks
discussed in the Strategic report (pages 24 to 26) in artiving at the going concern assumption for the preparation of the financial

statements.

Thus, the Directors have concluded that the NGED Group has sufficient resnurces available to enable it to continue in existence for the
foreseeable future and for a period of at lzast 12 months from the date of signing the accounts and have therefore continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Corporate governance statement
The Group's Corporate governance statement is delailed on pages 32 to 39.

Employee engagement statement

Details of the directors' engagement during the year with employess and consideration of emplovees' interests can be found i the
Bag 2 Y ploy ¥

Corporate governance staloment on pages 38.
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Directors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Business relationships statement

The Group's key business relations are with its customers, suppliers and reguiators. Details of how the directors foster the Graug's
business relationships and have regard 1o their interesis have been stated in our Strategic report, Corporate governance statement and
Section 172 statement.

Customers
- Strategic report - sce pages 9, 10, 11. 27 and 2§;
- Corporate governance statement - see pages 37 and 38

Suppliers
- Corporate governance statemment - sce page 39,

Regulators
- Corporate governance statement - see page 39.

Policy for disabled employees

Employees are selecied and promoted according to their abilities and merits and to the requirements of the job. Applications for
employment by people with disabilities are fully considered and in the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made
te ensure that their employment with the Group continues by way of making adjustments 1o their role and’or working environment or
through retraining arranged as appropriate. Tt is the policy of the group that the training, career development and promotion of disabled
persons should, as far as possible. be jdentical to that of other employees

For further details on cur DE&] policies refer to pages 28-29 in the strategic report.

Strategic report

The following information required in the Directors' report has been included in the Strategic report:

- an indication of future developments in the business - see pages 21, 22 and 23;

- an indication ol activities of the Group in the field of research and development - sce pages 22 and 23;
- employee policies - sec pages 28 and 29,

Streamline energy and carbon reporting ('SECR")

DI cerns Jucivis IFBRIGSUIWS LYV L2500 00 ey 17

o e W ke per emplaves
2023 2021 2023 2021
Scope 1 (direct emissions)
Operational transport 17.980 18.433 2.70 2.78
SF6 gas 9,063 9,200 1.36 1.39
Fuel combustion (diese!. gas oil) 2,316 3,212 4.35 0.48
Buildings 387 388 0.06 0.06
29,748 31,242 4.47 471
Scope 2 {eaergy indirect entissions)
Buildings electricity 3,680 4,130 .35 .62
Substation clectricity 10,280 11.539 1.54 1.74
NCED Telecoms 610 525 0.09 0.08
14,570 16.214 2,18 2.44
Total scope 1 & 2 44,318 47,436 6.65 7.15
Scope 3 (other indirect emissions)
Business ransport 1.146 1.954 017 0729
Operational transport (contractors) 11,725 §.657 i.7e .31
Fuel combustion {diesel " gas oil) (contractor) 4,897 7.920 0.73 1.19
Total scope 1,2 & 3 62.086 65,987 9.31 9.54

The Group's chosen {ntensity measurement is tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalznt per employee

Aggregate in kWH of anaual guantity of energy consumead for business achivities and own use
Electricity energy consumied for the year to 31 March 2023 is 21 458,300 kWH (2021: 21,920.87% KWH).

Gas energy comsimed for the year 0 31 March 2023 is 2.1 18,998 kKWH (2022: 21135692 K\WH ).

Energy consumed for helicopters for the year 1o 31 March 2023 15 3,167,756 kWL (70221 6,469,237 kKWTH ).
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Direetors' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Streamline energy and earbon reporting ('SECR') (continued)

Methodologies used in calculating energy and carbon reporting data

Our Business Carbon Footprint 28 ™ details the impact that our operational activitics have on the environment in terms of tonnes of
equivalent carbon dioxide {"CO2e") eiissions and takes account ot cur encrgy usage from offices, transport emissions (operational and
business), fuel combustion and the release of greenhouse gases (SF6). The reported data for operational transpert {road} and fuel

combustion also takes account of a number of our larger contractor emissions as required under the Ofgem reporting requirements.

The data compiled and reported by the NGED Group follows a recognised methodelogy as described within intemational business
carbon footprint standards, the Greenhouse Gas {"GHG") carbon reporting guidance as provided by BETS / DEFRA, the 2020 UK
Government GHG Canversion Factors for company reparting and 15014064-3. The cmission-relsasg aclivities are categorised into
thres groups known as scopes. Tach activity is listed as either Scope 1, Scope 2 or Scope 3.

- Scope 1 {direct emissions) emissions are those from activities owned or controlled by the Group. Examples of Scopc 1 emissions
include emissions [rom combustion in owned or controlled boilers, generators and vehicles; and releases of fugitive emissions, for
example SF6,

-+ Scope 2 (energy indirecl) emissions are those releascd into the atmosphere that arc associated with consumption of purchased
electricity, heat, steam and cooling. These indirect emissions are a consequence of the Group's energy use, but oceur at sources that
the Group do not own or control. Network losses are identified by Ofgem as being Scope 2 cmissions (pending clarification from
Ofgem).

- Scope 3 (other indirect) emissions are a consequence of the Group's activities that occur at sources that are not controlled by the
Group and are not classed as Scope 2 emissions. Examples of Scope 3 emissions include business travel by means not owned or
controlled by the Group, water supply and materials / services that the Group purchases.

For further details on our methodology please refer to the link below:

Measures for iwcreasing the Group's efficiency during the year
During 2022,23, the Company has implemented the following energy efficiency measures:

replacement of older operational fleet vehicles with more fuel efficient alternatives and improving awarzness of the impacts of driving,
style on fuel efficiency and vehicle emissions;

+

the purchase and roll-out of electric operational fleet vehicles;
installation of electric vehicle charging points at many of our non-operational depot sltes for both ficet and employze owned clectric

vehicles;

improvements to the reporting of SF6 gas leaks from our installed equipment and fully utilising the infrared SF6 detection cameras
enabling us to quickly pinpoint the scurce of leaks;

ensuring that all newly built NGED depots achicve the BREEAM standard of ‘Excellent’ as a minimum and that refurbished existing
depots achieve the 'Very Good' standard,; and

the on-going replacement with more modern and cnergy efficient heating and cooling systems throughout our property portfolio plus
undertaking an cnorgy efficiency review at many of our non-operational and operational sites including cmployee encrgy awareness
campaigns.

Subsequent events
On 3 April 2023. the £843m RCF facilities of the Group expiring in May 2023 were cancelled and replaced with a new facility of
£845m with 2 5 year maturity expiring on 3 April 2028,

On 24 April 2073, the Group repurchased £115.8m of the £800m 5.75% bond due in April 2032, The bond was repurchased at a fair
value of £117.2m.

Directors and their interests
The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and up to the date of signing the financial statements were:

Cordelia O'tlara, Director {appointed 1 April 2023)

Graham Roy Halladay, Director

Alison Janc Sleightholm, Director

Laura Sophic Scudamore Barbrook. Group-appoimed non-executive Director
lustine Campbell, Group-appointed non-cxecutive Director

Philip Swift, Director {resigned 31 March 2023)

lan Robert Williams, Director (resigned 31 July 2022)
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Directors' report (continued)
For the ycar ended 31 March 2023

Directors and their interests {(continued)
During and ai the el of the financial vear, no director was interested in any contract of significance in relation to the NGED Group's
business other than service contracts.

Insurance in respect of divectors and officers is third party qualifying insurance and is maintained by the NGED Group's ultimate parent,
National Grid ple. The insurance is subject to the conditions set out in the Companices Acts and remains in force at the date of signing
the Directors' report.

Statentent of disclosure to independent auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information, of which
the auditor is unaware. Each director has taken all the steps that he'she ought to have taken as a direclor to make himseif‘herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of 841§ of the Companies Act 2G06.
Independeat auditor
Deloitte LLP have expressed iheir willingness to continue in office and a resolution proposing their reappointment will be put hefore the

shargholders of National Grid Ple at the 2023 Annual General Mecting.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

s
e T
Pt

Cordelia O'Hara
Director

30 June 2023

National Grid Electricity DHstribution Ple (Tormerly Western Power Distribution Pic) Registered Number: 09223384
Avonbank

Feedor Road

Bristol

BSz0T8H
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annuzl Repert and Financial Statements, including the NGED Group financial
statements and the Company financial statements, the Strategic report and the Directors’ report in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year. Under that law the directors have elected to
prepare the NGED Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") as adopted by
the Buropean Union and the parent company financial slatements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom accounting standards and applicable law). including Financial Reporting Standard ("FRS") 101 "Reduced
Disclosure Framework!.

Under company law the dircciors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisficd that they give a true and fair view
ul the Group and the parent Comnpuany und of the profit or loss of the Group tor that peried.

In preparing the Group financial statements, the directors are required to:

= properly select and apply accounting policies;

« present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;

= provide additional disclosures when compliance with specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Group's financial position and Mnancial performance; and

= make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

[n preparing the Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

= seloct suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed subject 10 any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue 1n
business.

The direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Cowgmry s
transactions and disclose with reasonable aceuracy at any time the financial position of the Company on a consclidated and individual
basis, and 16 enable them to ensure that the individual and consolidated financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
with rogard to the Group financial statemients, article 4 of the TAS rogulation. They are also responsible for the system of internal
control, for safeguarding the assels of the Company and its subsidiaries and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
website. Information published on the Company's website is accessible in many countries with different legal requirements. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Direcraes’ respansibificy waremene
We conlivm that to the best of cur knowledge:

+ the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framewaork, give a true and fair view of the
agsets, habilities, financial position and profit or less of the company;

= the strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face; and

* the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the inforination

TECEISACS T srareho’ders W mEess Tie sowrpary § pomtor md serlirmandes msinesn nakes gl sy

This responsibility statement was approved and authorized for issue by the board of dirzctors and is signed on its behall by:

Cordelia O'Hara
Director
30 Junc 2023
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Independent auditor's veport
to the members of Nationa! Grid Electricity Distribution ple

Report on jhe audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

In vur opinion:

« the financial statements of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (the *pareat compasy ™) and ifs subsidiaries (the "Graap™
give a true and fair view of the state of the Graap's and of the parent comapaays affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the
Corwap's profic for tie vear then ended:

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepaved in accordance with United Kingdom adopted international
accounting standards and lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1ASB);

= the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with United Kingdem Generally
Aecepoed Aceannimyg Praoctice, inchading Fmanciol Repovtng Seandard (81 ~Redaced Dsclosare Framewvari”: and

= the financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

» the consolidated income statement:

= the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

» the conselidated and parent company statement of changes in equity;
» the consolidated and parent company balance sheet;

» the consolidated cash Now stalement; and

= ihe related notes 1 to 32.

The financial reporting framework that has been applicd in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the 1ASB. The [inancial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Srpugaras, noilcng FRY DL Redues? Tesalosuez Framewary” - onied Kingdon Gererslly Acceid Acuianting Practos.

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audil in accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilitics under these standards are further described in the wd
scction of cur report.

responsibilities Tor the audit of the financial statcimems

We ace independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical iequirements that are relevant to ouy audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting - e s (the FROy  Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public inlercst entitics, and we have fulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We conbirm that
araveden BT Ten-audin s

Vi TP cr

sees aranimed e FROT s BEdvea Sarcerd mome Troag or fle SRrEnm sonikny

We believe that the audit evidence wo have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters "The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
= Capitalisation of overheads :

i Impairmant of goodwiil

“Within this report. key audit matters arc demtified as follows:
: Similar leve! ol risk

Materiality EThe materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was L3dm (2022: £38m) which was
‘determingd on the basis of profit before tax.

"The materizlity that we used for the parent company financial statcments was £13.6m (2022: £13.2m),
Iwhich equates 1o less than 1% of net assets, and was capped at 40% of Group materialiry.

i
i
|

1This is consistent with the methodology applied in 2022,

Scoping Based on our assessment, we focused our Group audit work on five components (2022: ﬁ\tai
rcomponents) which were subject tu & full scope audit of their financial infarmation. Our full scope!
CHLAT soversd LbanrTe v al e Groug 3 rzuence oot sedire ue G oer assers.

Significant changes in our ‘There were no significant changes in our approach compared to the prior year.

'

‘approach ;
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of ational Grid Fleetricity Distribution ple (continued)

4. Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, ws have concluded that the Jirzorors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the Zirswiers” assessment of the JGraug '3 and parent anmeans s ability 1o continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

= Assessing the comrpany’s financing facilities including the nature of facilities, repayment terms, covenant compliance and support
from the ultimaite controlling parent, National Grid Ple;

Assessing the assumptions used in the forecasts including the impact of the current magroeconomic envirenment;

Testing the mechanical accuracy of those [orecasls and appropriateness of the medel used to prepare the forecasts;

Assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management,

Evapnaring wheriter the Grodrn's Halosures noraseess o7 gong somears Sotinn e Tnanodh Sulatlenth e arnmnrule md
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties rclating to events or conditions that,
mdividually or collectively. may cast significant doubt on the Group's and parent amtigsn s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report.

3. Key audit matiers

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not duc to fraud) that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatcst effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the linancial staternents as a whele, and in forming cur opinion therzon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5 I Capitalisation of overfeads

Key audit maller descripticn

Amounts capitalised as nstwork assets include indirect cosis associated with overhead costs. The costs are capitalised based on
I ELIRe I T e e wery seriiemesd
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A key audit matter has been identified in respect of the key assumptions relating to the capitalisation of corporate overheads.

There is a judgement in relation to the nature of costs included within each cosi classification and cstimation in relation to the
appropriale percentage of costs to capitalise.

Corporate oveiheads of £101.7m (2022: £88.1m) have been capitalised during the year as shown in note 2. These are included within
the fixed assets additions of £1.202.2m (2022: £1.063.0m) as shown in noic 12,

Refer o note 1 - pigrTcanr accounting gy’ pote 2 zntead accounting judgements and key sources of estimation e and

note 12 vzoer, pland and 220 grert in the financial statements for further discussion of the Svan’s policy and judgements in
capilalisation of overheads.
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of National Grid Elfectricity Distribution ple (continued)

5. Key audit matters (continued)
3.1 Capitalisation of overfieads (continued)

How the scope of our audit responded to the kev audit matter
We obtained an understanding of. tested and rclied on relevant conurols.

We evaluated the appropriateness of the accounting treatment for capitalising overheads by reference to the requircments of 1AS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and evaluated the policies, procedures and assumptions used in estimating the value of overheads that
are directly attributable to capital projects.

We tested a samiple of overhead costs capitalised, agreeing thcn to appropriate supporting evidence, to test whether they have been
recorded accurately. We also tested manegement ¢ estimate of percentage of costs that are directly attributable to capital projects
through verifying the inputs into the calculation and agreeing these to appropriate support and evidence. Further, we have challenged
fenagenienr @ nerhodo gy ud ssimere dnaugh smsideros wherhier Rers are Atraline JCETINr A aSSUNpLens

Key observations
Based on the work performed we are satisfied that the assumptions made in respect of the capitalisation rates applied to overheads
within the fixed asscts balance arc reasonable as at 31 March 2023,

3.2 Impairment of goodwil!

Key audit matter description

Management is required to assess the carrying value of goodwill and acquired intangible asscts and perform an impairment review under
TAS 36 Impairment of Assels on an annual basis and whenever an indication of impairment exists. Goodwill was acquired through
business combinations.

Management prepared a discounted cash flow maodet to estimate the value-in-use and compared this to the carrying value; this indicated
there was headraom and accordingly no impairment was recognised. The value-in-use was measwred for the cash-generating units to
wliich the goodwall relates.

As disclosed in note 14 of the Minancial statements the carrying value of goodwill in relation to Bast Midlands is £518.8m (2022:
£318.8m), West Midlands £614.4m (2022, £614.4m) and South Wales £120.9m (2022: £120.9m).

We have identificd a key audit matter around key sssumptions used in Taodgzment 1 impairment model. The most complex assumptions
that require judgement are the discount rate uzsad to caleulate the present value of future cash flows and the premium applied to the
Fo@iaalrr, haaet vale AW H e and T

e RIDTRED Y dvrzeanted lash Toow zeread e each oash gErendiog unc

From ED3 onwards, future allowances arc unknown and require a greater level of judgement. although can be guided by net zero
legislation.

We did not wdentify impairment of goodwill as a key audit matier in the prior year. Dug to the acquisilion of the NGED Group by
National Grid ple. the recoverable amount of goedwill was determined using the fair value less costs to sell method. Therefore. the
overall impairment assessment was less complex and the judgemental assumptions of @ value i usc calculation were net applicable.

Refertonnte 1 °%
and note 14 Inpnug

sex Nole 2.0
statements for further diseussion of the

it Accounting # cat Accounting Judgenients and Key Sources of Estimation Txcermamr:

& Aaasemy In the finandi

# policy and judgements in the goodwill
impairment review. ncluding the Srase’s disclosures of the sensitivity and reasonably possible changes of the East Midlands, West
Midlands and South Wales cash generating units to ¢hanges in the key assumptions.

tiow the scope o our audit responded to the key audic matter
We obtained an undersianding of and tested the effectiveness of the management revicw contrels over waragarens  impaiment review
of the cash-generating units.

We havz challenged the underlying cash floyw forecasts, with reference to Ofgem guidance on RITO-ED2 forecasted cash Nows.

With involvement of our internal valuation specialists. we have challenged the reasonablencss of the discount rzte and premium applied
to the RAV at the end of the cagh flow period gnd challenged —zrag=erT s position using key assumpiions developed independently
based on external mearket data.

ared md rrizananel ToarGgRTerT s
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Independent audilor’s report
to the members of National Grid Eiectricity Distribution plc (continued)

5.2, Impairment of goodwill {continuad)
Llow the scope of our audit responded Lo the kev audit matter (continued)

Further, we developed independent expectalions of goodwill impairment using alternative assumptions around returns in the RI1O-ED2
cash flow period.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Jraun s disclosures of the sensitivity and reasenably possible changes of the Tast Midlands, West
Midlands and South Wales cash generating units to changes in the key assumptions.

Key observations

We concluded that the key assumptions underpinning the value in use calculation uscd by the Group in its assessment of the carrying
value of goodwill for each of the three cash-generating units, East Midlands, West Midlands, and South Wales, when considered in
aggregate, le within the range of reasonable estimates.

We concluded that the valuation of goodwill is appropriate.

6. Our application of materiality

& 1 Metericloy

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of
a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work

and in cvaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

{Group financial statements Parent Company ftinancial statements ;

Materiality 34m (2022: £38m) £13.6m (2022: £15.2m) .
5% of profit before tax (2022: 3% of prefit Parent company maleriality equates to lessi

before tax). than 1% of net assets, which is capped at’

Basis tor determining materiality ! 40% of Group materiality. This isi
consistent with the methodology applicd in.

2022. ‘

|We have determined materiality based on We have determined materiality based on:
o : |
,profit before tax as this is the key metric net assets as the company holds the,

Rationale for the benchmark applied jused by management, investors. analysis. investments for its subsidiary companies |
and ienders, with shareholder value being Therefore, a balance shect basis s
driven by the result. appropriate. :
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of National Grid Flectricity Distribution ple (continued)

6. Qur apptication of materiality (continued)
6.2 Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected
misstatcments exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

G roup financial statements “Pareatl Company {inancial slalements

Pertformance materiality T0% (2022: 70%) of Group materiality

i
i

“70% (2022: 70%) of parent company;
materiality i

1n determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:
= Qur cumulative experience from prior year audits; i
« The level of corrected and uncorrected misstatements identified from prior veari

‘Basis and rationale for determining audits; i
‘pertormance materiality = Qur risk agsessment, inctuding our understanding of the entity and its environment;

i
« Our risk assessment of the Jroeng' s overall control environment and that we consider,

it appropriate to rely on internal contrels over a number of busincss processes!
including fixed assets, revenue and impairment of goodwill. .

6.3 Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Board of Direclors that we would report (o the Board all audit differences in excess of £1.7m (2022: £1.9m). as well
as differences below that threshold that. in ocur view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Board of
Directors on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the fingncial statcments

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1 Identification and scoping of components

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an undersianding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls. and
assessing the risks of material misstalement at the Group level. We used data analytic toals to help inform cur understanding of the
business, identify key risk areas and evaluate the level ol audit coverage required

Based on that assessment we focused our Group audit scope primarily on the audit work of five components. which were subject o a
full scope audit. Analytical procedures were performed on the remaining non-significant components. Audit work o respond to the risks
of material misstatement was performed dircetly by the Greup andit engagement team.

Those five components represent the principal business units within the Group and the parent company and account for over 99% of
revenue (20220 99%). 97% of profit before tax (2022: 99%) and 98% of net assets (2022: 97%,). They werc also selected o provide an
appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstatemont identified above. Our audit work of the five
componeants was executed at a leve!l of maweriality applicable to the individual compenent and was lower than Group materiality. This
approach was consistent with the prior vear.

The parcni company is located in Bristol and audited directly by the Group audit engagement teanm.

b4 Ec %
3 it
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72 Chur considerarion of the conirol environment

The e 3 1T environment contains a number of 1T systems, applications and tools used to support business processes and for
financial reporting. In line with our scoping of components (see section 7.1) our work in relation to 1T controls focused on the five
identified components. Wz performed an independent risk assessment of the systems, applications and tools to determine those which
are of greatest relevance to the J=zu.z 1 financial repariing, including those that contain system configured automated controls that host
hnancially relevant data and associated reports.

h
()
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of National Grid Tlectricity Distribution ple {continued)

7.2 Our consideration of the control environment (continued)

With the involvement of vur specialists, we performed testing of general IT controls of these systems, typically covering controls
surrounding user access management, change management and interfaces with other systems relating to in scope [T systems as well as
controls over key reports penerated from the 1T systems and their supporting infrastructure.

We performed walkthrough procedures of the key 1T controls relevant to a number of business processes: to understand whether the
controls were effeclively designed to address the 1T related risk. We subsequently performed testing of the controls across the audit
period, to determine whether the controls had been consistently applied as designed.

Our procedures enabled us to place reliance on 1T controls, as planned, in the audit approach across a number of business cycles.

We have also obtained an understanding of and tested the controls over a number of financial statement line item processes. We have
taken controls reliance in our testing vf a number of business processes including fixed asscts, revenue and impairment ol goodwill.

We performed walkthrough procedures of the key controls relevant to a number of business processes; to understand whether the
controls were effectively designed to address the identified risks of material misstatement. We subsequently performed testing of the
controls across the audit peried, to determine whether the controls had been consistently applied as designed.

73O copwideraiion of cliraie relaicd rsks
Climate change impacts the Jawmag s business in several ways as set out in the Strategic Report on page 25 of the annual report. It
represents a key strategic consideration of management.

We reviewed managerent s climate change risk assessment and evaluated the completeness of identified risks and the impact on the
financial statements. We also considered the impact of climate change in our risk assessment procedures. MWanggemenr s assessment
included environment and sustainability as core commiiments in the RUOG-ED2 Delivery Plan. The Group will support the UK's
ambitions to achigve net zero carbon emissions by 2050 by setting the benchmark of achieving net zero in its own operations by 2043.

In addition to the procedures mentioned above, with the involvement of our climate change specialist we:

~ made enquiries of senior management o understand the potential impact of climate change risk including physical risks to producing
network assets, the potential changes to the macro-economic environment and the potential for the transition to a low carbon
environment to occur quicker than anticipated; and

» read the climate-related statements made by management (as disclosed in * T Zaveeannmrent section of the T commitment te being
a responsible 'exder in the Shrategic Report) and considered whether these waere in line with our understanding of ~tumyagenent s
approach to climale change and the narrative reporting was in line with [nancial statements and the knowiedge obtained throughout
the audit,

8. Other informution
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our sudrer’s
report thereon. The directlors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 1o the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report. we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thergon

Our responsibility is (o read the other information and. in doing so, consider whather the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

1f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to delermine whether this gives rise 0 4
material misstatement in the financial statements themsclves. 1f, based on the work we have porformed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are regquired to report that fact.

We have nothing (e reportin this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the 2w
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due o fraud or error,

ey responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial

In preparing the financial statcments, the directors are responsible for assessing the Zenuz 3 and the parent wowweses s ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors cither intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
o do so.

wh
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (continued)

R Ardiver's respossibidities by the andic of the Boanciof stasements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free {rom material misstatement,
whether due to [raud or error, and to issue an sudivor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonablc assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantec that an audit conducted in sccordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misslatement when
it exists. Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or crror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these (inancial statemcats.

A Sirther Jesergmion of cor responsbilives for e aodit oF the Snenciel saements @ ocansd an the FRIT s websie o
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11. Extent to whick the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Trregularities, including fraud, are instances of mon-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedurcs in line with our
responsibilitics, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularitics, including fraud is detailed below.

111 Identifving and assessing potential risks refated to irregularities
In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatcment in respect of irregularities, including raud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations, we considered the following:

ihe nature of the industry and sector. control environment and business performance including the design of the Jroug s remuneralion
TR T Arvars e SrECry  CEMIaeraton, Tenus eveis md merbrnance NrETs

results of our enquiries of management, internal audit, and the Board of Directors about their own identification and assessment of the
MEHE 2T ©w T Gross T deciarn

regaderres nouding hose far o e

any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group documentation of their policics and procedures relating to:

- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual. suspected or alleged fraud,

- the internal controls cstablished to mitigate risks of fraud or non-cenipliance with laws and regulations:

the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and relevant inlernal speciakists, including tax, pensions, treasury and TT
specialists, regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements and any petential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures. we considered the opportunities and incentives thal may exist within the organisation for fraud. In
common with all audits under 1SAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures fo respond to the risk of management
override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Greup operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of wmaterial amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companics Act. Listing Rules. pensions legislation and tax
legislation.

In addition. we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statcments but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the Croge': ability o operate or to aveid a material penally. These inciuded
. e UrIne 3 UTerInOg OSnOE a8 ST oul v the evergy ot

anor OgE.

1120 Audit response to risks identifiod
As a rzsult of performing the above, we did not identify any key audit marters relatzd to the potential risk of fraud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the ollowing:
- reviewing the financial statement disclosures and lesting to supperting documentation tw assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statemeants:

enquiring of management. the Board of Dirsctors and external legal counse] concerning actual and potential litigation and claims:
performing analyvtical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatemicnt
dus to fraud;

reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance. reviewing internal audit reports and revizwing correspendence with
HMRC and Ofgem: and

in addrezsing the rizk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropristeness of journal entries and other
adjusiments: assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potentizl bias: and evaluating

the business rationale of any significant transactions that arc unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicatad relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks 10 all engagement tcam members inctuding
internal specialists and remained aleit to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the audit.
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Independent auditor's report
to the members of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (eontinued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

Trn our apinion, based on the work nndertaken in the course of the andit

« the information given in the Strategic report and the direcmrs report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared s consistent with the financial statements: and

= che Soegic o and fe dirsorors Teoort wave feen prepied noacoorimics WD prickie e tEluraments.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their envirenment obtained in the course of
e udin we e aer Cernried M malerin MEEHenents o e STiegc "enart O fe Sraduny

13. Matters on which we arc required to report by exception

13.1. Adequacy of explanalions recefved and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opininn:

» we have not received all the inlormation and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branchcs not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retum,

We have nothing 10 report in respect of these matters.

T

DamesaIrs | LI I
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report il in our opinion certain disclosures of drzswrs’ remuneration have not

been made.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
14. Other matters which we are required to address

141 Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Roard of Directors. we were appointed by the sharcholders on 16 June 2017 to audit the financial
statements for the yoar ending 31 March 2017 and subssquent {inancial periods. The period of total uninterrupied engagement including
previous renewals and reappointmients of the firm is 7 years, covering the years ending 31 Mareh 2017 to 31 March 2023.

/4 2 Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Board of Iirectors
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report 1o the Board of Directors we are raquired to provide in accordance with ISAs
(UK).

15. Use of our report

This report is made solety to the wiregsrs’ s members, as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 ol the Companies Act 2006,
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state o the semuany 3 members those matters we are required o state to them in
an auditer 1report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assumc responsibility to anyone

B otor oo andie werln S fig cpoer it e popiteong we Tatr rnesy

afrer e The SDmERn arn Te Lomimaiy nemneess g 3w

Suzanne Gallagher (Seninr statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Reading. United Kingdom

30 June 2023

[
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National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Nute £m £m
Revenue 3 2,096.5 1,886.0
Operating costs 3 (1,079.6) (830.1)
Other pperating income 6 15.4 3.9
Other operating expense 6 (4.4) {1.0)
Operating profit 3 1,027.9 1,058.8
Finance income 7 19.6 0.2
Finance costs 7 (399.4; (318.3)
et finance income relating to pensions and
other post-retirement beneflits 25 33.3 6.2
Profit before income tax 681.4 746.9
Income tax cxpense 10 (145.2) (373.6)
Profit for the year attributable (o equity heolders of the parent 536.2 3733
All operations are continuing.
The accompanying notes | to 32 are an integral part ol thesc financial statements.
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National Grid Eleetricity Distribution ple (formerly Weslern Power Distribution ple) consolidated statement of comprehensive

income
Forthe year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Note £m £m
Prolit for the year 536.2 3733
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Other comprehensive (expense)/income to be reclassified 1o profit or loss in subsequent periods
(Loss)'gain arising on cash flow hedges during the year {1.9) 9.9
Reclassification adjustments for gains on cash flow hedges
included in profit v luss (fnaice costy) (1.6} (7.5)
Nel movement in cost of hedging reserve 0.0
Income lax effect 10 4.3 0.7
(12.6) 31
Other comprehensive (expense)/mcome not 16 be reclassified to profit or loss in subseguent periods:
Re-measurement (losses)gains on defined benefit pension plan 25 (852.3) 1,021.1
Income tax effect 10 220.7 (280.3)
(631.6) 740.8
Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax (644.2) 743.9
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year, net of tax,
attributable 1o equity holders of the parent {108.0) L117.2
27
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National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated statement of changes in equity

Far the year ended 31 March 2023

Non-cash
capital

Share Merger Hedging  contribution Retained Total

capitat resetrve reserve reserve earnings equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2021 1,037.6 (963.1) (16.9) - 5,301.6 35,3792

Profit for the ycar - - - 3733 3733

Other comprehensive income - - 3.1 - 740 8 743.9
Tolat comprehensive income

for the year - - 3.1 - rit4 1,172

Share based payment 28 - - - 0.5 - 0.5

Fquity dividends paid 1 - - - - (140.2) (140.2)

AL31 March 2022 1,037.6 {963.1) (13.8) 0.5 02753 6,356.7

Profit for the ycar - - - - 536.2 3362

Other comprehensive expense - - (12.6) - (631.6) (644.2)
Total comprehensive expense

for the year - - (12.6) - {95.4) (108.0)

Share-hbased payment (net of tax) 78 - - 3.0 - 3.0

Equity dividends paid il - - - - (0.2} (0.2)

At 31 March 2023 1,057.6 (963.1) (26.4) 35 6,179.9 6,251.5
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National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated balance sheet
Asat 31 March 2023

2023 2022

Note £m Em
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 12 15,562.8 14,697.3
Investment property 13 279 37
Intangible assels 14 1,311.6 £,305.4
Trade and other receivables 16 4.0 3.5
Derivative financia! instruments 27 48.4 35.9
Retirement benelii assets 25 652.8 1,448.1
Non-current assets 17,607.5 17.523.9
loventories 13 36.4 36.5
Trade and other receivables 16 340.2 3275
Loan receivable 17 146.0 -
Cash at bank and in hand 18 48.0 148.8
Current assets 570.6 512.8
Total assets 3 18,178.1 18,036.7
LIABILITIES
Luuus and other borrowings 20 1,082.0 1,585.7
Trade and other payables 19 769.2 689.2
Current tax liabilities - 13.6
Provisions 26 15.1 13.3
Current liabilities 1,866.3 2,101.8
et current liahilities {1,295.7) {1.589.0)
Loans and other borrowings 20 5,790.1 5,284.6
Deferred tax lighilities 24 1,190.4 1,328.6
Trade and other payables 19 2,9542 2.806.8
Dertvative financial instruments 23 4.6 -
Retirement benefit liabilities 23 6.4 7.7
Provizions 26 114.6 150.3
Non-current liabilities 10,0603 9,578.2
Total liabilities 3 11,926.6 11.680.0
Nel assets 6,251.3 6,356.7
EQUITY
Sharc capital 27 1,057.6 1,037.6
Merger reserve 8 M63.1) {963.1)
Hedging reservg 28 {26.4) (13.8)
Non-cash capital contribution reserve 28 3.5 0.5
Relained earnings 28 61799 6.275.5
Total equity 6,251.5 6,356.7

Asg at 31 March 2022 lease liabilities and right-of-use assets were presented on the face ol the balance shest. On the basis of materiality.
during the current year, lease liabilities and right-ol-use assets have been reclassified to loans and other borrowings and property, plant
and equipment respectively. Comparatives have been reclassificd and presented on the same basis as the current year.

The financial statements on pages 56 to 123 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2023 and
signed on its behalf by:

_j’/"‘:f;;,-,.‘,
Cordelia O'Harg Graham Roy Halladay
Director Dircctor
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National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated cash flow sialement

For the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2622
Note £m £m
Qperating activities - continuing operations
Profit for the year 536.2 3733
Adjusinients to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flow
from operating activities;
Income tax expense 145.2 373.6
Finance costs 366.1 312.1
Finance revenue (19.6) ©2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 286.3 271.0
Amortisation of customers’ conirtbutions (51.3) (49.23
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 3.3 31
Gain on disposal of propetty, plant and eguipment (0.8) (1.3
[.oss op disposal of investment properties - 0.1
Fair value gains on investment properties 13 (0.1} @7
Fair value losses on investmeni properties 13 4.4 1.0
Investment income (1.1) -
Profit on sale of subsidiary 6 (12.0) -
Share based payments 2.6 0.5
Difference between pension contributions paid and amounts
recognised in the income statement (53.8) (11.3)
Decrease in provisions (5.3) {15.2}
Working capital adjustments:
{Increase). decrease in inventories (1.1) 10.3
Tncrease in trade and other receivables (10.0) (1.0}
Increasc in trade and other payables 70.7 23
Interest paid (272.9) (250.2)
Inierest receivad 13.6 0.1
Cusgtomers’ contributions received 201.3 200.3
Income laxes paid (77.4) (82.8)
Net cash from operating activities 1,124.3 1,133.8
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,138.7) (1.017.4)
Procecds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2.4 1.5
Purchase of investrcnt properties (0.5} (0.2)
Purchase ol intangible assels 9.8) (7.8)
Disposal of subsidiary 0 19.6 -
L.oan proceeds te ultimate parcnt company i7 (146.9) -
Dividends received 1.1 -
Net cash used in investing activities {1,271.9) (1,023.9)
Financing activities
Net {(decrease)increase in shaort-term borrowings {107.2) 661.2
Payment of lease liabilities 2.7 (1.
Proceads from long-term borrowings 866.7 -
Repayment of long-term borrowings net of related swaps (700.0) (618.1)
Dividends paid (0.2) (140.2)
Net cash from/{used in) financing activities 56.6 (98.8)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (91.0) 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18 127.7 116.6
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 36.7 127.7
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Notes to the National Grid Eleetricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Signilicant accounting policies

The financial statemenis of National Grid Electricity Disiribution (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) (the "Company"} and its
subsidiaries (the "NGED Group” or "WGED" or "the Group™) for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 30 June 2023 and the balance shect was signed on the Board's behalf by Cordelia O'Hara and Graham Roy Halladay
The Company is a public limited company, limited by shares and incorporated and registered in England and Wales. The address of the
Company's registered office is stated on page 133,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and
in accordance with the provisions of the UK Companies Act 2006. The lnancial statements have also been prepared in accordance with
LFRS adopted by the European Union. The accounting policies that follow have been consistently applied to all years presented.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. except for the revaluation of investment properties and financial
instruments that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporiing period. as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair valuz is the price that would be reocived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 1o an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price i1s directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue. In estimating the fair valuc of an asset or liability, the NGED Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
Hability if market participants would talke those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement datc,
Fair value for measurement and’or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis. except
1ot share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions thal are within the scope of IFRS 6, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value such as net realisable value in 1AS 2 or value in use in [AS
36.

These consolidated financial statcments are presepted n sterling as this is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the NGED Group operates. All values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand pounds except when otherwise indicated.

The Comparative financial information has been presented on the same as basis as current year {inancial information with exception to
the presentation of right-oFusc asset and lcase liabilities in the consolidated balance shest. As ar 31 March 2022, lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets were presented on the face of balance sheet. On the basis of materiality. during the current year. leasc liabilitics and
right-of-use assets have been reclassificd to loans and other borrowings and property. plant and equipment respectively. Comparatives
have been reclassificd and presented on same basis as current year,

The significant accounting policies and critical accounting judgements, cstimates and assumiptions of the NGED Group are set out
below.

Goiny concern
The directors have prepared the financial statcments on a going concern basis as ihey have a rcasonable oxpectation that the NGED
Group hay adequate resources o continue in operational existence for the foresesable fuure.

The Group has net current liabilities of £1,2957m (2022: £1,389.0m). The Sriun 3 net currcnt liabilitiss will be settled with a
combination of cash flows from operating activities, use of existing fong-term facifitics and issuances of fong-term debt. The Group can
access either short or long term borrowings in order to finance repayment of any borrowings duc within next 12 months. The Group has
crediv ratings above the investment grade and there is sufficient evidence, ncluding historical analysis of the Gewur’z ability to raisc
debt, to indicate that the Group will be successfully able o raise debt fo finance repayments as needed. A letter of suppart has also been
obtained from a ultimate parent undertaking confirming that it will provide financial support to the Group for not iess than 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements.

DNOs are essential in keeping critical infrastructure assets operating safely and seourcly and in making surce that homes and businesses
across the country are rccelving the energy necded. The work of the Group is crucial for the continuation of existing essential services.
the establishment of new critical infrastructures and for keeping the public, including the most vulnerable in our society, safe. Due to the
licensed regulatory obligations of the business, the necessity of continued operations even in times of economic uncertainties and having
access 1o sufficient liquidity, the Group does not consider that there is material uncertainty over the s=rr . 1 ability Lo continue as a
gixing concern.
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accouating policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

‘The directors have considered the availability of facilitics as set out above, the relatively stable and regulated nalure of the business, the
forecast long term business plan, the consistent credit ratings of NGED, the existing and future forecasied covenant compliance of the
Group, which includes the gearing ratio, the anticipated ability of the NGED Group to be able to raise additional long term debt in the
future and the ability of the parent undertaking to provide financial support. The directors have also assessed the principal risks
discussed in the Strategic report (pages 24 to 26) in arriving at the going concern assurnption for the preparation of the financial
statements.

Thus, the directors have concluded that the NGED Group has sufficient resources available to enable it to centinue in existence for the
foresecable future and for a period of at least 12 menths from the date of signing the accounts and have therefore continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The NGED Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements ol the Company and ihe entitics it controls (its subsidiaries)
drawn up to 31 March each year. Control of an investee exists when the investor is exposed, or has rights. to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has ihe ability to affect those returns through its power over the invesice. To have power over an
investee, the inveslor must have existing rnights that give it the current ability to dirsct the relevant activities of the investee.
Subsidiaries, other than those acquired under common control transactions, are consolidated from the date of their acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains conuol, and continue to be consclidated until the dawe that such control ceases. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent Company, using consistent accounting policies. Inter-
company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits arising [rom intragroup transactions, have been eliminated. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides cvidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.

For business combinations involving cntities under common control, the pooling of interest method is applied. The assets and liabilities
of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts ™o adjustments arc made to reflect fair valucs. or recognise any new
assets or liabilities, at the date of the combination that would otherwise be done under the acquisition method. The unly adjustments that
are made are 1o harmionise accounting policies. No new' goodwil! is recognised as a result of the combination. The only goodwill that is
recognised is any exisiing goodwill relating 1o the combining entities. Any difference between the consideration paid transferred and the
cquity "acquired' iz reflected within equity. The income stalement reflects the results of the combining entitics for the full yzar
irrespective ef when the combination took place.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on dispesal recognized in profit or loss is caleulated as the difference
between (1) the aggregale of the fair valug of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets {including goodwill). less liabilitics ol the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had dircetly
disposed of the related assels or labilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassilied to profit or loss or transferred io another category of equity
as required permitted by applicable TFRS Accounting Swandards). The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is regerded as the fair vaiug on initial recognition for subsequen( accounting under IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments when applicable, or the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Impact of new Infernational Financial Reparfing Stundards

The following new standards are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2022:

= Amendments to [FRS 3 - reference w the conceptual framework. cffective (or annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:
Amendments to TAS 16 - amendments regarding proceeds before intended use. effective for annual periods beginning on or after |1
January 2022

Amendments to TAS 37 - amendments regarding onerous contracts - cost of fultiliing a contract, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2022:
* Annual improvements 1o JFRS standards 2018 - 2020 ¢ycle - effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 20272

The Group has assessed the impact of these standards and concluded that there is no material change to the Group's financial statements.
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Notes (o the National Grid Electricily Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) conseolidated financial
statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accountiing policies (continued)
Impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards (confinued}

Not yet adopted
The following pronouncements from the International Accounting Standards Board will become effective for fulure financial reporting
periods and have not yet been adopted by the NGED Group:

= Amendments to [AS 1 - amendments in relation to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current, cffective for annual
perluds beginning on or akler | January 2023;

* Amendments to IAS 12 - amendments regarding deferred tax related to asscets and liabilitics arising from a single transaction, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023;

= Amendments to JAS B - amendments regarding issuance of definition of an accounting estimate, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023;

* [FRS 17 (including June 2020 amendments to TFRS 17} - Insurance Contracts, effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023:

* Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Amendments in refation to disclosure of accounting policies, effective for
annugl periods boginning nn or after 1 January 2023,

NGED does not anticipate these standards and inferpretations will have a material impact on the Group.

Business combinations and goodwill

Busingss combinations, other than the combination ¢f businesses under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The identifiable assets acquired and Iiabilities assumed are measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The cost of an
acquisition is nicasured as the aggregats of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair valus. and the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquirec. Acquisilion costs incurred are expensed and included in distribution and administration
BxXpenses.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the apgregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for any non-
controliing interest and the acquisition-date fair values of any previously held interest in the acquirce over the fair value of the

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated o each of the cash-generaling units, or groups of cash-generating units,

SELBCAED W 2eier T S0 e SOnIEmanan $ fenegies

Following imtial recognition, goodwill is measured at cnst jess any accumudaled impairment losses.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in forcign currencies are initially recorded in the entity's functional currency by applying the spot exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabitities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. AN differences are taken Lo the income statement.

[For debt not in sterling. sce "Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities” below.

Non-monetary ilems that are measured m terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates ag at the
dates of the initial transactions.

National Grid Electricity Distribuiion ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) 63



Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Distribution Use of System ("DUoS") Revenue
The Group consisis of four distribution nctwoerk operators ("DNOs") in the UK that earn the majority of their revenue from providing

distribution use of system services. The services are provided under a Distribution Connection and Use of System Agreements
("DCUSA") with their customers.

There is a single performance obligation under the DCUSA: the DNO is required to use its distribution network to deliver electricity
from metered entry points to exit point. NGED's performance obligation of delivering clectricity represents a promise to deliver a series
of distinct services that should be accounted for as a single performance obligation. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as:

&) Customery immediately control and corsume the benefits NGED provides;
b} NGED's service does not create or enhance an asset with an alternate use to NGED; and
¢} NGED has the right o payment from the customer for the service that has been provided.

NGED measures the progress of the performance obligation using the output method. The output method recognises revenue based on
the direct measurements of value transferred to the customer. Accordingly NGED records revenuc on a monthly basis, based on the
amount of kilowatt hour ("KWH") of electricity delivered.

Revenue includes an assessment of the volume of unbilled energy distribuled to customers between the date of the last meter reading
and the year-end.

Where revenue reccived or receivable exceeds the maximuwm amount permitted by regulatory agreement and adjustments wiil be made to
future prices to reflect this over-recovery, no liability is recognised as such an adjustment is to future prices and relates to the provision
of future services. Similarly no asset is rccognised where a regulatory agreement permits adjustments 1o be made to future prices in
respect of an under-recovery.

Finance income

Finance revenue comprises interest receivable on funds invested, [nterest income 1s recognised in the income statement as it acerues, on
an effective rate basis.

Renfal income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Engineering recharges

Engineering recharges relate to the recovery of costs incurred in relation to construction work requested by customers. such as re-routing
of existing network assets. The performance obligation relates to completion of work as per the terms of the contract. The consideration
received is recognised as revenue as the construction work is completed.

Customer contributions

Contributions receivable in respect of additions to property. plant and equipment for new connections arc treated as deferred income.
which is credited to the income statement within revenuc over the estimated weighted life of the refated assets of 69 years, The
pertformance obligation for customer contribution contracts is te provide customers with an ongoing network connection and thus is
satisfied over a period of time instead of at a peint of time. Customers immediately control and consume the benefits NGED provides.

Other operating income and expentse

Other operating income and expense includes movements in the fair value of investment properties and gains and losses arising on the
disposal of properties by the NGED Group's property management business which is considered to be part of the normal recurring
operating activities of the NGED Group.

Finance costs

Finance expenscs comprise interest payable on borrowings. aceretion relating to inflation on index linked debt, the release of discount
on provisions. ineffectiveness on hedges and intergst on pension scheme liabilities. Interest charges are recognised in the income
statement as they accrue. on an effective rate basis.
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Nutes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution plc (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consoflidated [inancial
statements (continued)
For the vear ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued})
Leases

NGED Group as a lessee
The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease il the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period ol time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recoguises a right-ofuse assel and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which 1t is the
losse, excepl Tur shori-leem leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low valuc assets {assets with a
purchase price of less than £3,000). For these leases, the Group recognises the fease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

The lease lability is initially measured at the present value of the unpaid lease payments at the commencement date, discounted by using
the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liabiliy is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount fo reffect interest on the fease Hability (using the effective
interesi method) and hy reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability {and makes a correspending adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

* The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances rescling in a change in the assessment of
exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is rameasurad by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

* The lease payments change duc to changes in an index or rate, in which case the lease {iability is remeasured by discounling the
revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a fioating interest
rate, in which case a revised discount rats is used).

* A lease contract iz modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lcase, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the lease term of the moditied Tease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective datz of the medification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial neasurement of the corresponding lease liability, less any lgase incentives received and any
initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets arc
depreciated over the shorter period of the lecass term and ihe uscful life of the underlying asset,

Variable reats that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease lability and the right-of-use assct.
The related payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

[ease liabilities are presented within loans and other borrowings and right-of-usc assets are presented within property plant and
cquipment.

NGED Group as @ lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the case transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerslup to the
lessee. All other leases are classificd as operating leases. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the hicad lease and the
sub-lease as two scparate contracts. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operaling lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. The Group has no finance leases.

Assets leased out under operating leases are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the estimated useful lives
Rental income, including the effect of lease Incentives, is recognised on a straight linc basis over the term of the lease. lease
termination fees are allocated to the income staternent upon terminaiion. lnitial divect costs incurred in negotinting and artanging an
operating lease are added w the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lcase term.

Nanonal Grid Electricity Distribution ple (Iormerly Western Power Distribution ple) 65



Notes 1o the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consobidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plani and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairments. Borrowing costs directly attributable to
assets under construction and which meet the recogaition criteria in $AS 23 arc capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Expenditure on clectricity infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or cnhancements of the network including qualifving
replacement expenditurc are treated as additions. Other costs incwred In maintaining the operating capability of the network in
accordance with defined standards of service are expensed in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset and includes costs
directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended. Employce costs incurred in implementing the capilal schemes
of the NGED Group arc capitalised within infrastructurc assets together with the cost of materials and an appropriate proportion of
ovcrheads.

Contributions received towards the cost of property, plant and equipment which include low carbon network funding are included in
trade and other payables as deferred income and credited on a straight-line basis to the income statement over the estimated cconomic
usctul lives of the assets to which they relate.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than land. on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life as
follows:

Years

Distribution network asscts:

Overhead lines and poles 63

Underground cables 85

Plant and machinery (transformers and switchgear) s3

Meters 3

Other (towers and substation buildings) Upto 80
Buildings - frechold Upta 60
Buildings - long lcasehold Lipto 60
Fixtures and equipment Upto 20
Vehicles and mobile plant Lpto 10

The carrying values of properiy. plant and equipment arc reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying value may not be recoverable, and are written down immediately to their recoverable amount. Useful hives and residual values
arc reviewed annually and where adjustments are required these are made prospectively.

An item of property. plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future cconomic benelits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement in the period
of derecognition.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost. including transaction costs, The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing pant
of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred i the recognition criteria are met: and excludes the costs of day to day
servicing of an investment properiy. Subsequent to initial recognition. investment propertics are stated at Fair valuc. which reflects
market conditions at the reporting date and the highest and best use. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair valugs of investment
properiies are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Investment propertics are derscogniscd when either they have been disposed of or when the investment properly is permanently
withdrawn from use und no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

The difference between the net disposal procezds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement in the
peried of derecognition.

Transfors are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to owner
property y g property
occupied property. the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use 1f owner occupicd property
becomes an investment property, the NGED Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated undsr property. plant
property P property p Y property. p
and cquipment up o the date of change m use.
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MNotes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Wesiern Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting pelicies {continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets, other than goodwill, include customer contracts and computer sofiware and are stated at the amount initially
recognised, less accamulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carried initially at cost. The initial cost is the aggregate amount paid and the
fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the assel. An intangible asset acquired as part ol a business combination is
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and is recognisced separately from goodwill il the asset is separable or arises from
contractual or other legal rights.

Intangible assets with a finite life are amortised on a straight-linc basis over their expected useful lives. The expected uscful lives of
assets are reviewad on an annwual basis and, if necessary, changes in useful lives are accounted for prospectively.

Comtracts
The value recognised for customer contracts relating to acquired telecommunications activities is amortised over 10 years. [l is subject
to an impairment test al least on an annual basis. Tt is written off if the activity is sold.

Computer software

Costs directly associated with the development of computer software for internal use are capitalised where echnical feasibility can be
demonstrated, the NGED Group is satisfied thai future cconomic benelits will flow to the NGED Group and the cost can be separately
identified and reliably measured. Soflware is measured initially at cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life. The carrying amount is reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary. The estimated useful life assigned to computer
soflware is up to five years

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill

The NGED Group assesses goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives for impairment annually and other assels or groups of
assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ol an assct may not be recoverable.
If any such indication of impairment exists, the Group makes an estimate of the zsger s recoverable amount. Individual assets are
grouped for impairment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash flows that are fargely independent of
the cash flows of other groups of assets. An asset gvnig 3 recoverable amount is the higher ol its fair valus less costs of disposal and s
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset group exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset group is considered impaired and is
written down o its recoverable amount.

The business plan, which is approved on an annual basis by senior management, is the primary source of information for the
detennination of value in use. In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the asset
group and are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money.

Fair valuc less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants
and does not reflect the effects of factors that may be specific to the enlity and not applicable to entities in gengral. For acquisifion
purposes, the value of a regulated DNO is usually seen as the RAV plus a premium. The premium takes into consideration NGED's
performance and any recent market transactions.

An assessient is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication cxists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if thers has beca a change in the estimates used to determing the asser s recoverable amount since the
last impairment Joss was recognised. 1f that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrving amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been
recognised for the assel in prior vears. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is
adjusted in future periods 1o allocate the sser’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its
remaining uszlul life.

Goodwill 18 reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-gencrating units ("CGUs") to which the grodwill relates should be assessed. In assessing whether goodwill has
been inipaired. the earrying amount of the group of CGUs {including goodwill) is compared with their recoverable amount. ‘The
recoverable amount of a group of CGUs to which goodwill is allocated is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs to which poodwill has been allocated is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment lnss is recngnised. An impairmeant loss recognised for goodwill s not reversad in a subsequent periad.
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Notes o the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Wesiern Power Distribution ple) censolidated financial
sfatements (continved)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible ossets, and goodwill {confinued)

The NGED Group records all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions, including goodwill, at fair value. Goodwill is nol
amortised butl is subject, at a minimum, to annual tests for impairment. The initial goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment
analysis require management to make subjective judgements concerning the recoverable amount of cash-generating units, specifically in
relation to cash flows, discount rate and estimated fair value Jess cost to disposc. At 31 March 2023, the carrying value of goodwill
amounted to £1,254,1m (2022: £1.254. 1m).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method and includes
expenditure incurred 1n acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. 1t excludes borrowing
COsts.

Taxation

The income tax expense (or credit) for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income stalement
unless it relates 1o an itsm that has been recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case it is also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Current tax i$ measured at the amount expected w be payable (or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or loss) for the period
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or subslantively enacted at the balance sheel date. This includes UK. corporation tax
payabie to HM Revenue & Customs ("TIMRC") and amounts payable to {or receivable from} other UK Group companies for losses and
other amounts transferred between them ("group relief).

A pravision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considered probable that there will be a
future outflow of funds to HMRC. The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount expected {0 become payable. The
assessment is based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Group supported by previous experience in respect of such
activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice.

Deferred fax is the tax expected to be payable {or recoverable) in future periods due to differences betwsen the time when profits and
lesses are recognised in the financial staternents and the time when those profits angd losses are included in tax returns filed with HVIRC,
These temporary differences arise in the current period and then reverse in future periods. The temporary difTerznces are caleulated by
comparing the carrying valuc of assets and liabilitics at the balance sheet date with their corresponding tax bases included in tax retums.

Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences except:

* where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

= in respect of taxable temporary differences asseciated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. where the timing
ol the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

* deferred tax assel(s are recognised only 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the asset may
be recovered,

Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods when the temporary
differences will reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities ars offset only 1o the cxtent permitted by tax legislation.

Pension benefits

The NGED Group operates four defined benefit pension plans, all of which require contributions 1o be made to separatcly adminisiered
{funds. The larger plans are the two unitised sections of the industry-wide Electricity Supply Pension Scheme ("ESPS™). The ESPS
scheme i, with very limited exception, closed w new members. A defined contribution plan is offered to new employees. The final two
plans. which are also closed to new members and have no active cmployees, are the Western Power Utilities Pension Scheme
("WPLPS") and the much smaller Infralec 1992 Scheme. NGED also has an unfunded obligation which relates to previous exzcutives of
NGED East Midlands, NGED West Midlands and NGED South Wales.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Pension bengfite (continied)

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the projected unit credit
method, which atfributes entitlement to benefits to the current period (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior
periods (to determine the present value of defimed benefit obligation) and is based on actuarial advice. Past service costs, resulting from
either a plan amendment or a curtailment (a reduction in future obligations as a result of a material reduction in the plan membership),
are recognised immediately when the NGED Group becomes committed to a change. The current service cost (including administration
costs) is allocated to the income statement or capital expenditure as appropriate.

Net interest expense related to pension benefits represents the net change in the present value of plan obligations and the value of plan
assets resulting from the passage of time, and is determined by applying the discount rate to the present value of the benefit obligation at
the start of the year and to the fair value of plan asscts at the start of the year, taking into account expected changes in the obligation or
plan assets during the year. Net interest cxpense relating to pension benefits is recognised in the income statement.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit lisbility or assef, comprising actuarial gains or losses, and the return on plan asseis
(excluding amounts included in net interest described above) are recognised within other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur.

The retirement benefit obligation or asset recognised in the balance sheet represents the deficit or surplus in the NGED Group's defined
benefit pansion plan. Surplus or deficit comprises the total of the present value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate
based on high quality corporate bonds). less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair
valuc is based on market price information and in the case of quoted securilies is the published bid price. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of a reduction in future centributions to the
schemes.

Contributions to defined contribution schemes are recognised in the income statement or capital expenditure as appropriate in the year
in which they become payable,

Share-based paymenis

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees arc measured al the fair value of the equity instrument at the grant date. The fair value
cxcludes the effect of non-market vesting conditions. The fair value determined al the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company's estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will cventually vest. At cach reporting date, the Company revises ils estimate of the number of equity instrumeants
expected to vest as a resull of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in the profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to reserves.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the NGED Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; it is probable that an
outflow of cconamic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amoeunt of the
obligation. 1If the effect is material, expected future cash flows are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that rcflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the NGED Greoup's financial statements in the year in
which the dividends are approved by the Company's directors.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as debt instruments at amortised cost; debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"); financial assets at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL"); derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
cffective hedge; or as equity instruments designated at FVOCL, as appropriate. Financial assets include cash at bank and in hand, trade
and other receivables, investments at amortised cost, and derivative financial instruments. The NGED Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, normally being the
transaction price plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. For
Mnancial assels at FVTPL, transaction costs are immedialely recognised in the income statement. The subscquent measurement of
financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:
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1. Signihcant accounting policies (continued)
Financial gssets (continued)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Decbt instruments that meet the hold-to-collect business model test and sole payment principal and interest ("SPP1Y) contractual cash
flow test are carried at amortised cost using the effective intcrest methed, if the time value of moncey is significant. Gains and losses are
recognised in income when the debt instruments are derecognised or impaired. as well as through the amortisation process. This
category of financial assets includes cash at bank and in hand excluding the short tenn deposits, trade and other receivables including
accrued income and loan receivable.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried on the balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses recognised in the income statement. Short
term deposits are included in this category. Short term deposits arc highly Tiquid short term investments that are readily convertible to
known amnunts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in valuc.

Fmancial assets at FVOC!

Financial asscts at FVOCH, that mect the sole payment principal and interest ("SPPI") contractual cash flow test and the objeciive of the
group is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asscts, are carried on the balance sheet at fair value with
gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive income. This category of financial assets include derivatives designated as hedging
instrumeants in an effective cash flow hedge.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge
These derivatives are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. ‘Fhe treatment of gains and losses ansing from revaluation is described
below in the accounting poelicy for derivative financial instrunients and hedging activitics.

Derecognition of financial assers

The Group derecognises a financial assel only when the contractual rights to the cash Mows from the assel expire. or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. Lf the Group neither transfers
nor retains subsiantially all the risks and rowards of ownership and continues to control the transferred assct, the Group recogniscs its
retained intcrest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 1f the Group rctaing substaniially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial assct and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derccognition of a financial asset measured at amortiscd cost, the difference betwesn the wer’s canrying amount and the sum of the
consideration reccived and receivable is recogaised in profit or loss. In addition. on derecognition of an investment in a debt inslrument
classified as at FVOCT, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified (o profit
or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
NGED recognises impairment on financial assets following the expected credit loss ("ECL") model in [FRS 9.

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in measuring the amount of ECL. as
default is a component of the probability of default ("PD") which affects the measurements of ECLs. NGED constitutes the follewing as

an event of defanlt:

(i) Burrover 15 past dus by more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Grovp: or

(i Borrower is wunlikely to pay its credit abligarion to the Group in full
NGED has the following financial assets not measured at FNTPL that are subject to ECL:
Trade and other recenvables including accrued income

NGED appliss the IFRS 9 simplificd approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime cxpectad loss allowance for all
receivables. Lifetime ECLs resull from all possible defauit events over the life of financial instrumsents.
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1. Significant accounting policies (conlinued)
Impairment of financial assels (continued)

Trade and other receivables including accrued income (continued)

To measurc the expected credit losses, trade and other receivables have been grouped based on shared risk characteristics and the days
past due. Accrued income is effectively a receivable as well for the purposes of the expected credit loss model since it is unbilled only
beeause a passage of time is requited. NGED has therefore conciuded that expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for accrued income as well.

The expected credit loss rates are primarily based on historical credit losscs experienced. The historical loss rates arc then adjusted for
forward looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the customer's ability to pay. The general gconomic trends and
conditions impact the customers ability to pay. Another key factor to consider is the liquidity and overall financial position of the key
electricity suppliers.

Trade and other receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recevery include, amongst others, liquidation of the debtors, the faiiure of the debtor to engage in a repayment plan, and a
failure W make payimeuls for 1 peniod greater than 120 days past due.,

Loan receivable
Loan receivable is subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 but the impairment loss on this is deemed immaterial since this has
an insignificant risk of change in value,

Cash at bank and in hand

This comprises cash at bank, in hand and short 1erm dcposits, Since short term deposits are FVTPL, they are not subject to the
impairment rcquirements of IFRS 9. Whereas cash at bank and in hand is subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 but the
impairment Joss on these is deemed immaterial since they have an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cuash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow stalement and related notes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and in hand and short term
deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and have a maturity of three months or less and which are subject o
an insignificant risk of change in value, nct of any bank overdrafis swhich are payable on demand.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial labilities at FVTPL; or as [inancial liabilities measured at amortised cost, as appropriatc.
Financial liabilities include trade and other payables including accruals and loans and other borrowings. The NGED Group determines
the classification of its financial 1iabilities at initial recognition. The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification,
as follows:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. For interest-bearing loans and borrowings this is the fair value of the
proceeds received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing.

Aftcr initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measurcd at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or

cancellation of liabililies are recognised respectively in interest and other income and finance cosis.

This category of financial liabilities includes trade and other payables (excluding prepayments, deferred income and deferred
contributions) and loans and other borrowings.
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L. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Graur's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in prefit or loss.

When the Group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument inte another one with the substantially different terms, such
exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial lizbility and the rccognition of a new financial liability.
Similarly, the Group accounts for substantial modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability.

If the modification is not subsiantial, the difference between the carrying amount of the lability before the nodification and the present
value of the cash flows after modification is recognised in profit or loss as the modification gain or loss within other operating income
and expenses

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

The NGED Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Derivative financial instruments are initially rccognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets
when the fair value is positive and as labilities when the fair value is negative

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated by taking the present value of future cash Nows, primarily incorporating
market observable inputs. The varipus inputs include foreign exchange spot and forward rates. yicld curves of the respective currencies,
currency basis spreads befween the respective currencies, interest rate and inflation curves, the forward rate curves of underlying
commoditics. and for those positions that are not fully cash collateralised. the credit quality of the counterparties.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not designated as cffective hedging instruments arc
recognised in the income statement. For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classificd as:

» Cash flow hedges when hedging exposurs to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised assel or liahility or & highly probable forecast transaction: or

» Fair value hedges when hedging the exposwre to changes in the fuir value of a recognised asset or lability or an unrccognised firm
commitmsnt

Iledge relationships are formally designated and documented at inception, logether with the risk management objective and stratcgy for
undertaking the hedge. The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument. the hedged item or transaction. the naturc
of the risk being hedged, and how the entity will assess the hedging instrument effectiveness in oflzetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged wemt s fair value or cash flows attributable 1o the hedged risk. Such hedges meet the hedge cffectiveness requirements within
FRS §. Hedge accounting is discontinucd when a hedging relationship no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Hedges meeting the
criteria fur hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

For cash flow hedges. the effeciive portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s recognised directly as other comprehensive
income in the net unrealised gains reserve. while the ineffoctive portlon Is recognised in the Income statement as remeasurements within
finance cost or fncome. Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement when the hedged
transaction affects the income statement. such as when a forecast sale or purchase occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or liability. the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liabiliy.

1f'a forecast transaction is no longer expected to oceur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement.
If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is
revekad, amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income remain in equity unui! the forecast rransaction occurs and are
transferred to the income statement or to the initial carrving amount of a non-financia! asset or lisbility as above. Tf the related
transaction i3 not expected 1o occur, the amount is taken to the income statemant.

Fair value hedges
Changes n the falr value of the derivative and changes in the {air value of the hedged item in relation to the risk being hedged are both
adjusted on the balance shest and offsct in the income statement tu the extent the fair value hedge is effective, with the residual

difference remaining ag inz{¥:

zetiveness,
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a lHability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. The Group categoriscs assets and liabilities measured at [air valuc into one of three levels depending on the ability to
observe inputs employed in their measurement. Level | inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level
2 inputs are inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within Level 1 for the asset or
liability. Level 3 inputs arc unobscrvable inputs for the asset or lability reflecting significant modificalions to obscrvable related market

L
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Qffsetting of financial assets and lighilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented gross in the balance sheet unless both of the following eriteria are met: the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and the Group intends to either seltle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultancously. A right ol set off is the Zraag s legal right to settle an amount payable to a creditor by applying
against it an amount receivable from the same counterparty. The relevant legal jurisdiction and laws applicable to the relationships
between the parties are considered when assessing whether a current legally enforceable right to set off exists.

Borrowing casts

Barrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that nccessanily take & substantial period
of time to get ready for its intcnded use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asseis. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the peried in which they oceur. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and arc recorded at the par value of procecds received, net of direct issue costs. Where shares
arc issucd above par value, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premivm account.

Merger reserve
A merger reserve 15 tecordaed as a result of the application of the "poaling of interests” basis of conselidation for the reorganisation of
entitics under common control.

2, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Veoug s accounting policies, which are described in Note 1, the direciors are required to make judgemenls
{other than those involving estimates) that have a significant impact on the amounts rccognised and to make estimates and assumptions
aboul the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical cxperience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assunptions arc reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to asccounting estimales are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or  the peried of the revision and luture penods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The key assumptions comcerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance shest date. that have a
significant risk of causig a matenal adjusiment w the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitics within the next financial year, are

discussed below,

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from (hose involving estimations (which are deali with separately below), that the
directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policizs and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Capitalisation of overheads - NMature of costs capiialised

Amounts capitalised as network assets include indirect costs associated with the engincering department and an clement of corporate
overhead costs. The costs are initially expensed 1o the income statement with a portion being capitalised based on management's
assessiment of the costs incurred that are directly linked to the capital work performed. The nature of costs to be included for
capitalisation is a key judgement and is based on an analysis of the activities dircctly atlribulable to capital work,

=]
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

Capitalisation of overheads - capitalisation rate
Amounts capitalised as network assets include indircct costs associated with the engineering department and an element of corporate
overhead costs. The costs are initially expensed (o the income statement with a portion being capitalised using an appropriale rate.

The capitalisation rate is based on an analysis of total costs or total labour costs, as appropriate, split between capital and expensc. The
rate is reviewed in detail annually and a reasonableness test is performed in light of total capital spend during the year.

The total amount of everheads capitaliscd to properiy, plant and equipment at 31 March 2023 is £181.7m (2022: £88.1m). Information
on sensitivity to the rate is as below:

2023 2022
Income Income
statement statement
(before tax) (before tax)
+- £m ©-Em
Change in rate =~ 1% 1.6 1.4
Change inrate /- 3% 7.8 7.2

Pension obligalions

The NGED Group has a commitment to pay pension benefits. The costs of these benefils and the present value of the NGED Group's
pension liabilities depend on such factors as the life expectancy of the members. the salary progression of current employees which is
based on inflation rate and the discount rate at which the futuwre pension payments arc discounted. Advice is taken from independent
gcluaries rchating to the appropriateness of the key assumptions applied, including life expectancy, expected salary and pension
increases, and ioflation. Based on advice from external actuaries, the Company uses estimates for all these factors n determining the
pension costs and liabilities incorporated in the financial statcments. The assumptions reflect historical experience and management's
judgement regarding fulure expectations.

See Note 26 for further details and information on sensitivities

Gogdhwilf

The NGED Group records all assets and Tiabilities acquired in puwrchase acquisitions, including goodwill. at fair valuc. Goodwill is not
amortised but is subject, at a mintnum, to annual tests for impairment. Following the assessment of the recoverable amount on a valug
in use basis for the East Midlands, West Midlands and South Wates, to which goodwill of £318.8m, £614.4m and £120.9m has been
allocated respectively, the directors consider the recoverable amount to be most sensitive to pre-tax discounl rate of 5.32%, 5.63% and
5.37% for East Midlands, West Midlands and South Wales respectively and the assumied terminal value multiple of 37.3% applied 10 the
RAY on the assumed exit date at 31 March 2030

The sensitivity analysis in respect of the recoverahle amounts of the CGUs are presented in Note 14,
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3. Operaling segment information

The NGED raeg s operating segments are those used internally by the Board of Dirgclors to run the business, allocate resources and
make strategic decisions. The NGED Gran’s reporlable segments are Lhe regulated distribution of electricity in the Scuth West, East
Midlands and West Midlands of England and South Wales. and other businesses. Distribution involves the delivery of electricity across
the NGED Group's distribution network. Other businesses relate to non-regulated activities including telecommunications, property
management and helicopter operations which principally support the main business.

‘The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

Management moniters the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is cvaluated based on operating prefit or loss on the same basis as in the
consolidated financial statements. However. NGED Group [Inancing {inciuding finance costs and finance income} and income taxes are
managed on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm's length basis in a manner similar to fransactions with third parties. Segment
revenue, segment expense and segment results include transfers betwecn business segments. Those trangfers are eliminated on
consolidation.

Analysis of revenue., operating profit, and assets and liabilities by segiment is provided below. Substantially all revenues and profit
before tax arise from eperations within the UK.

a) Revenucs Total revenue Inter-segment revenue External revenue
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m £tm £m

Distribution network sysiems

South West 447.4 410.3 (1.3) (0.6) 446.1 409.7
South Wales 304.3 273.8 (0.3) 0.3) 304.0 273.5
East Midlands 666.0 579.3 (0.0) (0.6) 665.4 578.7
West Midlands 670.0 599.0 (0.3) (1.3) 669.7 598.7
2,087.7 1.862.4 (2.5 (1.8) 2,085.2 1,860.6
Other businesses 48.3 61.9 (37.0) (36.5) 11.3 254
2,136.0 1.924.3 (39.5) {38.3) 2,096.5 1,886.0

information about major customers

Revenucs from the NGED Group's largest five customers amounted to £337.9m, £330.1n1 £2537.9m. £160.9m and £1538.1m (2022:
£203 4m. £272 2m, £260.3m, £127.0m and £125.8m) arising from sales reported across the South West. Soutly Wales, East Midlands
and West Midlands segments.

~a
A

National Grid Electiicity Distribution ple {formerly Western Power Distribution ple)



MNotes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
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3. Operating segment information (continued)

b) Segment profit

2023 2022
£m Lm
Distribution network systems
South West 209.6 2244
South Wales 141.3 1523
East Midlands 341.9 346.1
West Midlands 340.8 346.7
1,033.6 1.069.5
Other businesses 14.3 15.5
Corporate and enallocated(i) (20.6) (26.2)
Operating profit 1,927.9 1,038.8
Finance revenue 19.6 0.2
Finance costs (399.4) (318.3)
et finance income relating 1o pensions and other post-retirement benelis 33.3 6.2
Profit before tax 681.4 746.9
Taxation
South West (28.9) (82.8)
South Wales 24.7) (61.6)
Fast Midlands (47.7) (121.3)
West Midlands (54.5) (125.4)
Other businesses 10.6 17.5
(145.2) (373.6)
Profit for the year attributable to eguity holders of the parent 336.2 3733
(i} Corporatc and unallocated comprises primarily current service pension costs (net of capitalisation).
¢} Assets, habilities, and capital expenditure
Segment assets (i) Segment liabilities {ii} Capital expenditure (iii)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m im £m £m
Distribution network systems
Sauth West 3,638.9 3.420.3 792.2 748.8 301.3 244,
South Wales 2,537.4 2,412.9 538.8 314.7 178.3 161.6
Fnast Midlands 35,7228 5.403.0 1,342.8 1.258.5 378.0 3393
West Midiands 5,349.8 3.081.8 959.0 893.3 358.7 334.4
17,248.9 16.318.2 3,632.8 34175 1,276.3 1.079.4
Other businesses 304.2 1933 44.5 392 4.0 4.0
Corporate and unallocated 625.0 1.523.2 8.249.3 8.223.5 {0.6) (6.4)
18,178.1 18,036 7 11,926.6 11,680.0 1.219.7 1.077.6

(1) Szgment assets consist of property. plant and equipment, investment properties. goodwill, other intangible assets, inventories,
reczivables and cash. Corporate and unallocated assets includes loan to related party, derivative financial instruments. pension asscts
and deposits {including deposits classified as cash).

(i) Segment liabilities consist of deferred cusiomer contributions and operating liabilities. Corporate and unallocated liabilites includes
current taxation, corporate borrowings. derivative financial instruments and deferred taxation.

{111y Capital expenditure consisis of additions to property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.
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statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

3. Operating segment information {(continued)

d) Depreciation and amoriisation

Depreciation on
property, plant and

ple) conselidated financial

Amortisation of
intangible assets (Note

equipment (Note 12) 14)
2623 2022 2023 2022
£m £m £m £m
Distribution network systems
South West 734 68.9 4.7 4.4
South Wales 50.2 47 1.3 1.0
East Midlands 103.0 97.6 25 2.1
West Midlands 95.5 90.5 2.3 1.9
3221 3047 10.8 9.4
Other businesses (0.5} 0.4 @.1) -
3216 3051 10.7 9.4
Less: recapitalised to property, plant and equipment (35.3) (34.1) (7.4) {6.3)
Charged to consolidated income statement 286.3 271.0 33 3.1
4. Revenues
2023 2022
£m £m
Revenue from custemer contracts 2,119.2 1,911.6
Leage incomie 16.8 12.7
Tolal revenue 2,136.0 19243
The following table shows revenues from contracts with customers disaggregated by customer class:
2023 2022
£m £m
Licensed energy suppliers - DNO 1,946.1 1.697.6
Other customers - NGO 141.6 iad.8
Other businesses customers 3.5 49.2
2,119.2 1.911.6

The licensed ensrgy supplier revenue forms the majority of the external revenuc of distribution network systems as disclosed in the Note

3 (a).

Network assets with a net book value of £15.1bn (2022: £14 3bn) are used (o fUlfil the contract with customers (refer to note 12).

3. Operating costs

NGED Group operating costs can be analysed as follows: 2023 2022
£m £m

Emplovee benefil expense (Notc §) 167.1 165.7
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 286.3 271.G
Property taxes 95.8 97.9
Last Resort Supply Payment ("LRSP"™) claims* 2722 9.6
Other operating charges™* 238.2 2835.9
1,079.6 830.1
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Notes o the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
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5. Cperating costs {continued)

* When a supplier fails, Ofgem cnsures conlinuity of supply to the failed soeiier’s customers by appointing a Supplier of [ast Resort
%R to supply the failed sugmirer s customers at short notice. The 8oL.R may then recover certain costs from the DNOs via a LRSP
claim. These LRSP claini costs are recovered by the Group via its DUsS charges. The amount recovered during the current year is
£261.8m and the balancing claims will be recovered during the year ending 31 March 2024,

*= Other operating charges includes costs in relation to engineering recharges, National Grid exit charges {charges levied by National
Grid Electricity Transmission for connection to the electricity transmission system), tree cutting, inspections and maintenance and

wayleaves, as well as other overheads incurred.

NGED Group operating profit is stated afier charging the following items:

2023 2022

£m £m

Fmployee benefit expense Note §) 167.1 165.7

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (i) 286.3 271.0

Amortisation of intangibles (ii) 33 3.1
Rent expense (1ii):

Plant, machinery and equipmant 13.2 12.8

Land and buildings 0.6 0.6

Research expenditure (iv) 0.2 0.2

INct other aperating expenses (Note 6} 11.0 29

{i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipmeant is stated nct of depreciation capitalised of £35.1m (2022: £34.1m) in respect of
equipment consumed during the construction of the ¢lectricity network. It also includes depreciation of right-of-use-assets amounting to
L£22m (2022 £1.53m).

(i1) Amortisation of intangibles is stated net of amortisation capitalised of £7.4m (2022: £6.3m) in respect of software consumed during
the construction of the electricity networlk.

(iii) Rent expense comprises of short term and low value leases (reler to note 19).

{(iv) Research costs above exclude expenditure on Low Carbon Network and Network Innovation Allowance projects which is
capitalised together with associated funding received.

Services provided by the XGED Group's auditor
During the year the NGED Group obtained the following scrvices from the Company's auditor and its associates:

2023 2022
£m £m
Audit fees
Annual audit of the Company and consolidated financial statements 0.1 0.3
Audit of subsidiary companies 0.8 7
Other audit related services 0.4 0.3
1.3 1.3
Non-audit lees
Audit related assurance services - -
Total fees within operating costs * 1.3 1.3

*Iotal audit fees in 2022 include £0.1m in relation to the prior year UK statutory audit.
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Notes to the National Grid Elecirieily Distribution ple {formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated Fnancial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Other operating income and expense

2023 2022
£m Lm

Other operating income
Gain on disposal of subsidiany™ 12.0 -
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.6 1.1
Increase in falr value of investment properties 0.1 2.0
Income from fixed asset investments 1.7 0.1
154 39

Other operwling expense
Reduction in fair value of investment properties (4.4) (1.0
Net ogther operating income 11.0 2.9

* Gain on disposal of subsidiary pertains to the sale of WPD Smart Metering Limited, a former subsidiary of the Group. The sale
concluded on 1 June 2022. The sale proceeds amounted to £19.6m and the net asset value of the subsidiary on the date of disposal was
£7.6m1, resulting in £12.0m gain on disposal.

7. Net finance costs 2023 2022
£m £m

Finance income

Interest on bank deposits 1.3 0.1
Intarest on loans to NG affiliate 12.3 0.1
Remeasurements gain (i) 6.0 -
Total finance income 19.6 0.2

Finance costs

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts {2.2) (3.5)
Interest payablc on other loans (391.8) (318.1)
Inlerest payable on loans from WG affiliate (16.2) (1.9
Interest payablc on lease liabilities (0.5} (0.3)
Lesg: interest capitalised (i) 11.3 3.5
Total finance costs (3%9.4) (318.3)
Net [inance costs (379.8) (318.1}

(i) Remeasurements gain pertains to an unrcalised net gain on derivatives designated as hedges, to 1he extent that the hedge is not fully
effective or to other components such as credit spread that are not part of designated hedge risk. This includes net foreign exchange loss
on the borrowings of £20.0m (2022: £7.2m) ofiset by foreign exchange gain and losses on the fair value of derivalives.

(11) Interest in 2023 was capitalised at a rate of 5.1% (2022: 2.8%). based on the yield on the Group's borrowings.

8. Employee benefit expense

Linployee benefit expense. including directors’ remyuneration, was as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Wages and salarics 402.2 378.2
Social security costs 50.3 45.2
Pension costs 66.2 §2.5
518.7 5039

Less: amounts capitalised as part of property, plant and equipment (351.6) (340.2)
Charged to the income statement 167.1 163.7
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8. Employee benefii expense (continued)

There are no personne!. other than the directors, who as key management have autherity and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities. directly or indirectly, of the NGED Group.

The average number of employees during the financial year (including directors) analysed by activity was:

2023 2022

Number Number

Electricity distribution 6,549 6,466
Other activities 1i8 166
6,667 6,632

Employee ¢osis in the ycar were capitalised at a rate of 69.0% (2022: 69.0%).
9. Directors' emoluments

The service contracts for the executive directors are wilh WGED Scuth West. Tlowever, the emoluments detail given in this note
represents total emaluments of the directors for all services provided to NGED companies as a whole. The total costs below are
apportionzd between NGED South Wales. NGED South West, NGED West Midlands and NGED East Midlands.

Highest paid director Total

NGED Group 2023 2022 2023 20232
£000 L0060 £000 £000

The emoluments of the excoutive directors comprised:
Base salary (note i) 4758 463 1,279 1,372
Performance dependent bonus (note 1) 681 $A4t 1,774 3.288
Termination benefils (note iii) 5,453 - 8,703 -
Peusion compensation allowance (note iv) 247 271 322 736
Sub-iotal directors' renuneration 4.857 2,145 12,278 5.396
[.ong term incentive plan (note v) - 1,285 135 2,739
Fees to the independent non executive directors {uote vi) - - 100 100
6,837 3.430 12,534 8235

(1Y Base salary also includas benefits in kind.

{ii} The amount of the annual hanus is based on NGED's financial performance, the reliability of the efectricity network, and other
factors, 2023 includes retention award payments and 2022 includes a transition incentive payment in relation to the announcement and
the completion of the sale of the WPD Group to National Grid pic on 14 June 2021,

(iiiy Termination benefits wers made in respect of two exceutive directors wha resigned from the business during the reporting period.

{(iv} As aresult of changas in tax applicable to UK pensions. the exceutive directors have resigned as active members of the Electricity
Supply Pension Scheme ("ESPS" - Note 23). Thus NGED no longer contributes for ongoing service 1o the BSPS in respect of the
executive direstors. Instead. NGTD pays cash compensation o them individually equivalent (o the value of “GED 3 contribution in to
the ESPS that would have been made had they remained active members (as determined by external actuaries)

(v) Under the previous owner's long term incentive plan, the executive directors received an annual grant of PPl Cerporation shares:
these shares vested on completion of the sale of NGED to National Grid on 14 June 2021, The value of the sharss gramted under the
National Grid ownership is shown within this ling.

{vi) The two independemt UK non executive directors are entitled to fees as detcrmined by the appropriate Board However no

emoluments are paid o Nationa) Grid non-cxecutive directors appointed on 31 Japuary 2022, wha are officers of National Grid. in
respect of their services as directors 1 the Group.
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statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

9. Directors’ emoluments (continued)
(viiy During the year, four executive directors (2022 four) were members of the defined benafit ESPS.

(vil) An employee share option scheme s offered by the parent to be settled in the shares of the parent. No shares were vested during the

year.
10. Income tax expense

The major components of income tax expense are:

2023 2022
£m £m
Current tax

Current tax expensc {see below) 59.0 94.6
Adjustiments in respect of prior years 6.2 (3.2)

Deferred tax (Note 23)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 64.7 46.6
[mpact of tax rate change 20.6 2247
Adjustiments i respect of prive vears 0,7 0.9
1452 373.6

The tax on the NGED Group's profit before tax differs from the theorctical amount that would arise using the standard rate of
corporation tax in the LK of 19%% (2022: 19%) as {ollows:

2023 2022
fm £m
Profii before income tax 081.4 746.9
Profit before income tax multiplicd by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2022: 19%) 128.5 1419
tifects of:
Net {income not laxable) expenses not deductible for tax purposes (2.8) (0.7
[inhanced tax reliel on capital expenditure 3.0
Tmpact of tax rate change 20.6 2347
Adjustments o tax charge in respect of prior years 0.9 (2.3)
1452 373.6

Total taxation {continuing operations)

The total tax expense as a percentage of profit before income tax gives an effective tax rate of 21.3% (2022: 530.0%) compared to the

stanclard rate of 19% (2022: 19%) due to the effects of the llems stated above. The increase in the rate is mainly due to the impact of the
tax rate change - see "Change in corporation tax rate” section at the end of this note. Expenses not deduclible and incemce not taxable
have been netied off as individually they arc not material.  The enhanced tax reliel relates to the 30% uplifi on capital expenditure
incurred in the two years to 31 March 2023 that qualifies as super-deduction expendilure. Adjustments in respect of prior years mainly
relate to the revized analysis of capital expenditure included in tax returns filed with HMRC.
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For the year endcd 31 March 2023

10. income 1ax expense (continued)

Tax refating to items charged or (credited) to other comprehensive income:

2023 2022
£m £m

Deferred tax:
Revaluation of cash flow hedges 143) (0.7
Re-measurement of pension liabilitics (220.7) 2803
(225.0) 279.6

Current (ax expense

The current tax expense for the year is the aggregate of the amounts of UK corporation tax pavable by cach Group company on its profit
for the year. The calculation of the amount of UK corporation tax pavable is determined by tax legis'ation. The starting point for the
calculation is the profit before tax shown in the income statement and adjustments requircd by the legislation are made to arrive at the
profit chargeable to corporation tax. The calculation of the amount of corporation tax expecled to be paid for the year is shown below.
The actual amount payable will be detcrminad following further detailed analysis at the time when the tax returns for the year for sach
Group company are filed with ITIMRC.

2023 2022
£m £m

Profit before income tax multiplied by standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 1926 (2022: 19%) 129.5 141.9

Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortisation {(note 1) (18.0) 39.8}
Pensions (note ii) (16.9) (3.5)
Other timing adjusiments {note iii) 0.2 (3.3)
Other adjustments (note 1v) (5.8) (0.7)
Corporation tax payable on profits after group relief 539.0 94.6

(i lexpenditure on tangible and intangible assets (net of refated custumer contributions) is initially 1ecorded on the balance sheet and
then depreciated or amoriised over the useful economic lives of the sssets, Tax deductions are not allowed for the depreciation or
amortisation. cxcept 10 the extont that the expendilure is regarded as mamntaining or replacing part of an asser, and instead tax deductions
are given for eligible expenditure at the rates preseribed by tax legislation ("capital allowances").

(i) The expense of providing pensions to emiployees is deductihle from taxable profits at the time when contributions are paid into the

pension schemes and not when the expense is charged to the mcome statement. As a proportion of the pension expense is capitalised
(see Note 8). the deduction for contributions paid in the year is greater than the expense in the income staiement.
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10. Income tax expense (continued)

Current tax expense (continued)

(i) Adjustments arc required for the timing of other deductions. These include interest capitalised (see Note 73 and employee benefit
expense (see Note 8). A proportion of interest cxpense i included in tangible fixed asset additions, but the tax legislation provides for
this cxpense o be deducied against profits for the year. Conirary to this, a deduction lor employee benefit expense must be deferred
until the year of payment if the payment is not made within nine months of the year end.

(ivy Other adjustments are required for costs that are not deductible, such as legal fees relating to certain property transactions, and non-
taxable income, such ns dividends recelved Nonn investments that have alrcady pard tax on el income. 1n addition, the profit or [0ss
on disposal of tangible fixed assets shown in the income statement is not taxable or deductible and is instead replaced with a gain or loss
calculated in accordance with tax legislation.

{v} All undertakings within the Group are tax resident in the UK, except for Aztec lnsurance Limited which is tax resident in Guernsey
where the statutory tax rate is 3%. However, the results of Aztec Insurance Limited are included in the UK corporation tax returns filed
by its parent company, National Grid Electricity Distribution Network Holdings Limited. Therefore, all of the group's activities are
subject to UK taxation rules and the group's current tax charge comprises solely of UK tax

Lnange 1 corporation fax rafe
The corporatien tax rate increased to 25% from 1 April 2023 as enacted via Finance Act 2021. ‘Lhis rate has been reflected in the

deforred tax balances as at 31 March 2023,

11. Dividends

2023 2022
£m Lm
Eguity dividends - 0.02 pence (2022: 13.26 pence) per £1 share 0.2 140.2
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For the year ended 31 March 2023

12. Properiy, plant and equipment

Non-network Vehicles
Distribution fand & Fixtures & & maobile
Generation network buiidings  equipment plant Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At] April 2021 0.3 16,4851 182.5 302.8 1534 17,1245
Additions - 1,011.2 43 37.0 10.5 1,063.0
Dispoesals and retirements - (2.2) - (23.1) (8.0) (35.3
At Aprii 2022 0.5 17,4941 186.8 314.7 155.9 18,132.0
Additions - 1,109.0 6.1 687 18.4 1,2022
Transfers from intangiblc assets - - 0.7 (0.2) - 053
Disposals and retirements - (20.8) - (52.3) (8.3) (81.8)
Al 31 March 2023 0.5 18,582.3 193.6 330.7 165.8 19,2729
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 0.1 2,928.4 233 130.6 821 3,184.7
Depreciation charge for the year - 2473 29 42.0 12.9 3051
Disposals and retirements - (2.2) - (25.1) (7.8) (35.1)
At 1 April 2022 01 3,173.5 26.4 167.5 87.2 34547
Dgpreciation charge for the year - 263.0 33 411 142 321.6
Fransfers - - 0.2 - - 0.2
Disposals and retirements - (5.8) - (52.3}) (8.3) (66.4)
At 31 March 2023 0.1 3,430.7 29.9 156.3 93.1 3,710.1
Net book value
At 31 March 2023 0.4 15,151.6 163.7 174.4 72.7 15,562.8
At 31 March 2022 0.4 14.320.6 166.4 1472 68.7 14,697.3
At 31 March 2021 0.4 13.5356.7 159.0 1522 71.3 13,9366

Included in distribution network and vehicles & mobile plant at 31 March 2023 was an amount of £188.7m {2022: £197.6m) relating to
expenditure on assets in the course of construction

Included in additions are staff’ costs of £344 6m (2022: £340.2m). gencral overheads of L101.7m (2022 £88.1m), capitalised
depreciation of £33.3m (2022: £34.1m) and interest of £11.3m (20220 £5.5m).
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The table below shows the not book value of right-of-use assets included wilhin tangible fixed assets at 31 March 2023 and 31 March
2022, split by category. The associated lease Habilitics are disclosed in note 20.

Land & Radio
buildings Fibres sites Vehicles Total
£m £m £m fm £m
AT Al 2021 7.4 1.7 0.2 - 073
Additions 03 - 3 1.4 2.0
Depreciation (0.6) (0.7 (0.1) 0.1y (1.5)
At 31 March 2022 7.1 1.0 0.4 1.3 9.8
At 1 April 2022 7.1 1.0 0.4 1.3 9.8
Additions ni 1.5 0.1 4.1 8.8
Depreciation (0.6) (0.6) (0.1) (0.9) (2.2)
At 31 March 2023 6.6 4.9 0.4 4.5 16.4
13. Envestment properly
Retail Office Tadustrial Total
£m £m £m £m
Fair value
Atl April 2021 18.9 5.1 5.9 299
Valuation gains 0.2 1.9 0.6 2.7
Valuation losses {0.9) - 0.1 (1.0)
Transfers to property, plant and equipment 2 - - 02
Disposals (0.1 . - (0.1)
At 1 April 2022 18.3 7.0 6.4 31.7
Valuation gains - - 0.1 0.1
Valuation losses (2.6) (0.9 (0.9 (4.4)
Additians 3 02 - 0.3
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2023 16.0 6.3 5.6 27.9

the fair value of the investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a valuations carried out by cxternal independent valuers.
‘The valuers are regulated by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors ("RICS™) and follow the rules. codes, and guidance in the
RICS Rules of Conduct for Firms. The valuations have been prepared in accordance with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements and
represent the 'highest and best use' of the property.

In arriving at the valuation. tenancy details and market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties are taken into consideration,
lnvestiment properties generating rental revenue are valued using an investment appreach and vacant buildings are valued using the
compalison method of valuation, Where land is being held for development, the valuation technique is based cither on the camparison
method or residual method

The amounts recognised in the income statement for rental income from investment property are £2.3m (2022: £2.5m).
Investment properties are lel on either fuli repair and imsuring leases, under which all outgeings are the responsibility of the lessee, or
under tenancies. where costs are recovered through a service charge levied on tenants during the period of occupation. This service

charge amounted to £6.9m (2022: £0.5m) for which a similar amount s included within operaling costs.

In determining the appropriate classes of investment property the Group has considered the naturc. characteristics and risks associated
with itz properties. As a consequence the Group has identificd the following classes of assots:
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13. Investment property (continued)

Surghary
o
L

L2 - epresentg & oorsinie e maidieys aeress NWOED s raton.

» Ingusivial - eoresenng 3 gorthuae oF ndustmk and storage Seoilites aoroes NGED's region

The tables below show details for the larger properties. Within other assets, recorded at £4.6m (2022: £4.6m), arc a further 22 (2022:
22) investment properties with an average value of £210,932 per property (2022: £208.864), valued by the NGED Group's internal
qualificd surveyor.

All of the valuations fall within Leve! 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see Note 23}, The table below provides details by class of properly
of the fair value ascribed to sach class of asset, an indication of the key inputs used in deriving the valuation, together with other key
features which inform the valuation process. in light of the immaterial nature of the other assets below to the financial statements as a
whole, the directors have elected not to provide the equivalent detailed information in respect of these valuations,

The valuations are sensitive o movements in key variables, notably the yields applied to valuations based on income capitalisation
which can change due to general market conditions and also an assessment of the quality of the underlying tenant. Broadly. a #.5%
increase/decrease in an assumed yield of 3% will result in a 10% decreaseincrease in lhe value of a property, whilst a 0.5%
increase/decrease in an assumed yield of 10% will result in a 5% decreaseincrease in the value of a property.

Unobservable and observable inputs used in determination of fair values Other key information
Class of Carrying Valuation Input Range Range
propetty amount/Fair technique (weighted 2023
value average)
2023 2023
£m
Retail 130 Income > Length of leases in place 6y > Age of building 25y
Tevel 3 capitalisation {in years) > Remaining useful life of 20
>Yield 5.2% butilding
> Passing rent {per sqm p.a.) £201.4 > Square metres 3,308
> Long tera vacancy rate 0%
Other refail 2.1 Income S Net rent (per sqm pa) £0-£230 > Age of building 50—
Level 3 capiialisation : (£94) > Remaining uscful life of 30~
> Length of leases in place Oy - dy buitding -
(in years) (3.0v) > Sguare metres 2,173
>Yield 0% -9.0% > Actual vacancy rate 19%
> [ong ternt vacancy rate 19%
Oftice 5.7 Tncome . £0-£129 > Age of building 23y - 40y
T >Net rent (per sgm p.a.) L. R,
Level 3 capitalisation L4100 > Remaining useful lile of
> Lengih of leases in place  Qy - 4.5y building -
(in years) (1.6v) > Square metres 8,224
>Yisld 0% - 10.4% > Actual vacancy rate 0% - 100%
> Long e vacancy ratc 0% - 100% (48%)
Industrial 2.5 Income > Net rent (per sqm p a.) £33-£84 > Age of building 67y
Level 3 capitalisation . ' L5y > Remaining usctul life of 20-
> Length of leases in place 2.3y - 19y building
{1n years) (7.8y) > Sguarc metres 3106
=>Yield 9.7% > Agtual vacancy rale 0%
> Long term vacancy rate 0%
Total 23.3
Other assets 4.6
Total fair value 27.9
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13. Invesiment property {continued)

Unobservable and observable inputs used in determination of fair values

Other key information

Class of Carrying  Valuation Tnput Range Range
property amount/Fair technique (weighted 2022
value average)
2022 2022
£m
Retuail 15.0 income > Lengily o} leases m place Ty > Age ol building 28y
[evel 3 capitalisation (in years} > Remaining uselul life of 20
>Yisld 3.2% building
> Passing rent (per sqm p.a.) £201.4 > Square metres 5,308
> Long ternt vacancy rate 0%
Other retail 23 [ncome £82 - £230 > Age of building 50+
S =Netrent (persgmp.a.} . e
Level 3 capitalisation (£131) > Remaining useful life of 20,
> Length of lcases in place Oy - 3y building
{in vears} (3.0v) > Sqguare mcires 2,175
> Yield 6.4% - 9.0% > Actual vacancy rate 0%
> Long term vacancy rate 0%
Office 7.0 InC(_)mi? A > Net rent (per sqm p.a) £(? -£138 > Age OvI"l?uilding - 24y - 39y
Level 3 capitalisation (£29.0) > Remaining useful lifc of 20+
> Length of lcases inplace Gy - 3.3y buiiding
(in ycars) (0.5y) > Square matres 8,224
> Yield 0% - 9.4% > Actual vacancy rate 0% - 100%
> [Long term vacancy ratc 0% - 100% {54%)
Indust:ia] 2.8 Incc‘)me' A > Net rent (per sqm pa) L:S}: L84 > Age ofl?uilditﬁg B 66y
Level 3 capitalisation (£73) > Remaining useful life of 20-
> Length of leases in place Oy - 20y buitding
(10 years) (8.6y) > Square metres 3,006
> Yield 9.1% > Aciual vacancy rute 0%
> Long term vacancy rate 0%
Total 271
Other assets 4.6
Total fair value 31.7
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14. Intangible assets Computer Customer

Goodwill software contracts Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At | Aprif 2021 1.574.5 75.8 6.2 1,656.5
Additions - 14.0 - 4.0
Transfers to property, plant and equipment - (3.1) - (3.1)
At ) April 2022 1,574.5 86.7 6.2 1,667 .4
Additions - 17.5 - 17.5
Transfers to property. plant and equipment - (0.5) - 0.5)
Disposals - {(5.4) - (5.4)
At 31 March 2023 1,574.5 98.3 6.2 1,679.0

Aggregate amortisation and impairment

At L April 2021 3204 291 6.2 3537

Charge for the year - 9.4 - G4

Disposals - 3.1) - (3.1)
At D Aprit 2022 3204 35.4 6.2 362.0

Charge for the year - 10.7 - 107

Transfers to property. plant and equipment - {0.2) - (0.2)
Disposals - (5.1 -

At 31 March 2023 3204 40.8 6.2 367.4

Carrying amount

At 31 March 2023 1,254.1 57.5 - 1,311.6
At 31 March 2022 1.254.1 S51.3 - 13054
At 31 March 2621 1,234.1 40.7 - 1.300 .8

Included in additions is capitalised amottisation cost of £7.4m (2022: £6.3m).

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has bzen allocated for impairment testing purposes to three cash-generating units
("CGUs"), East Midlands, West Midlands. and South Wales, which are also operating segments, These represent the lowest level within
the NGED Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

At 31 March 2014, an impairment loss of £186 2m and £62.2m was recognised in Tast Midlands and West Midiands. respectively. The
impairment was mainly as a result of changes in cash Mow projections. largely foliowing the agreement of the RIIO-ED1 price control
during that ygar. A further impairment loss of £72.0m was recognised at 31 March 2015 in West Midfands. This impairment had largely
arisen as a result of changes to the short-term inflation assumption which had reduced both the operating cash flows and the erminal
value used in the discounted cash flow model. This was partly offset by higher than previously anticipated levels of capital expenditure
in that year. increasing both the future operating cash flows and the termina! value, and reducing the discount rate. For the East
Midlands CGL, the increase in anticipated levels of capital expenditure was such that no overall impainnent loss was recognised in the
year,
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14. Intangible assets (continued)

Carrying amount of goodwill ailocated to cash-generating units {"CGLs™)

2023 2022

£fm £m

Fast Midlands 518.8 518.8
West Midlands 614.4 014.4
South Wales 120.9 120.9
Carrying amount ol goodwill 1,2341 1.254.1

Goodwill is reviewed annually for impairment and the recoverability is assessed by comparing the carying amount of the CGU
{including goodwill} with the recoverable amount of the CGU on a value in use basis.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rate and the multiple applied to the Regulatory
Ager waite TRAYT 1 e pwd 27 fe sered w ieErmime e PTIOOR GETE

CGU cash flows are derived from the corporate business plan approved by the management. ln determining the value in use, cash flows
for a period of 27 years (until 2050) have been discounted and aggregated with a terminal value, which is calculated by applying a
multiple to the RAV at the end of the period. A period of greater than five years has been used as this duration more accurately reflects
the regulatory environment in which we operate. Most significantly. it is alighed to the UK Government's legisialed commitment to
reach nel-vero by 2050, The longer cash Aow forecasts reflect the expected investment required In the network, in excess of the
economy wide long-term growih ratcs in order to deliver the encrpy transition commitments, before applying a terminal value at the
point those commitments are due to be fulfilled and market growth is expected to stabilise. Management believes that this commitment
will require a significant shift in the "% 2 encrgy mix towards greater electrification of encrgy supply and the electrification of transporl
and domestic heating and thus the cash flow period is important because it mirrors the timing of the cash outflows associated with major
capital replacement cycles and their subsequent recovery undzar electricity distribution regulation.

Typical industry practice to estimate the value of a UK wutility is based on a multiple of the s’ s RAV. Based on our experience, and
the general principle that the RAV broadly represents the basis upon which future refurns to a business are determined, we consider a
RAY based multiple at the terminal year 1o be the best estimate of terminal value. The terminal value multiple applied to the RAV at the
cnd of the cash flow period i.e. 31 March 2030, is 37.3% (2022: 37.5%).

The cash flows during the electricity price control period from ¥ April 2025 to 31 March 2028 ("RIIO-ED2") are based on revenues
allowed and cost of capital assumptions agreed in the RIIO-ED2 final deterninations, together with management’s expectation of the
related cost and capital expenditurc requirements during that period. Cash flows beyond this period are based on the approved budget
and the management's expectation of the investment required to meet the nct-zero target,

The pre-tax futurs cash flows are discounted uzing a pre-tax rale discowin rale ol 5.52%, 5.63% and 5.37% (2022: 5.11%. 5.24% and
5.12%) for Fast Midlands, West Midlands and South Wales, respectively. The NGED Group's post-tax weightad average cost of capital
("WACC)" is caleulated to be 4.91%. This is converted to a pre-lax discount rate for each CGU using an iterative caleulation approach
in the value in use methodology.

The pre-tax cash flows reflect an implicd long term growth rate of 2.3%-3.0%. Management supports this long term growth rate and
considers this to be consistent with long tern CPIT1 forceasts of 2%, reflecting continued expansion of clecrrification and clectricity
demand in the long run. This also justified by the fact that the Group has a historic track record of achieving performance targets and
forceasts a consistent level of performance in the future

At 31 March 2023, the East Midlands, West Midlands, and South Wales recoverable amounts exceaded their carrying amounts by
£1,369.9m, £1,3153.9m, and £759.7m (2022: £640.9m, £823.3m, and £347.4m). respectively.

In assessing the carrying value of goodwill, the cash flows have been sensitised to reasonable possible changes in key assumptions and
the analysis reflects sufficient headroom. No reasonable changes o inputs to the impairment test performed over the East Midlands,
West Midlands and South Wales were identified as resulting in an impairmeni. The key reasonable possible changes and sensitivities to
assumptions are presented below:
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14. Intangible assets (continued)

Reasonable possible changes in key assumptions:

Reduction in recoverable amounts

East West South
Midlands Midlands Wales Total
£m £m £m £m
0.5% increase in the pre-tax discount rate to 6.02%, 6.13% and 6.06% (638.0) (550.2) (306.0) (1.534.2)
for East Midlands, West Midlands and South Wales, respectively
10% decrease in terminal value multiple on the RAV to 27.5% {372.0) (333.0) {163.0) (868.0)
Change in assumption required to eliminate all hsadroom and bring value in use cqual 1o the carrying value of CGUSs:
Increasc in the pre-tax discount ratg by 1.78% by 2.10% by 2.05%
10 7.30% t0 7.73% 1o 7.62%
A decline in the terminal value multiple to 0% does nor climinate all the headroom.
All changes in assumptions in above sensitivities assume that other assumptions remain the same.
15. loventories
2023 2022
£m £m
Raw materials 352 356
Work in progress i.2 0.9
36.4 36.5

The gost of inventories recogniscd as an cxpense during the year was £11.2m (2022: £3.8m). The cost of inventoriss recognised as an
expense includes £0.3m (2022: £0.6m) in respect of wrile dawns of inventory to net realisable value and has been reduced by £nil

(2022 £0.3m) in respect ol reversal of such write duwns,

16. TFrade and other receivables 2023 2022
£m fm
Current receivables
Trade reccivables 261.1 282.5
Crther reccivables 14.8 14.2
Accrued income 3.8 8.1
Current tax receivable 4.7 -
Prepayments 23.8 227
Total current receivables 340.2 3275
Non-current receivables
Orher receivables 0.7 1.3
Reimbursement asset re unfunded pension liability 27 3.2
Prepayments 0.6 1.0
Tetal non-current receivables 4.0 33
Totat trade and other receivables 34142 333.0
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16. T'rade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are considered to approximate their fair value.

Trade receivables includes unbilled DUoS income of £171.2m (2022: £150.2m).

Other receivables relate primarily to insurance claims and the non-current balances that are expected to be recovered over the next three
years

NGED South Wales has an wifunded oldivation 1 relution  previous executives.  This s subject to reimbursement by National Grid
Electricity Distribution Holdings Limited (formerly Western Power Distribution llolding Company Limited), and therefore a
corresponding reimbursement asset is stated on the balance sheet and matches the liability recorded under IAS 19 (Note 25).

As at 31 March 2023, 1rade receivables and accrued income at a nominal value of £2.6m (2022: £2).4m) were impaired and fully
provided for. Movements in the provision for impairment were as follows.

2023 2022

£m £m

At 1 April 21.4 3.5
Provision for impairment 1.9 254
Amounts written off as unceollectable (20.3) (6.7)
Amounts recovered during the year (0.4) {0.8)
At 31 March 2.6 21.4

The XGED Group considers 100% of its credit risk to be with counterparties in related industries. The maximum credit risk exposure is
represented by the carrying valuc as at the balance sheet date.

As at 31 March, the aged analysis of trade reccivables is as follows:

Neither past due Past due but net impaired
Total  nor impaired <30 days  30-60 days  60-50 days 90-120 days =120 days
£m Lm im Em Em £m £m
2023 251.1 2835.7 3.7 0.4 0.5 - 0.8
2022 2825 274.6 4.3 23 0.5 0.5 0.3

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate iargely to charges made to electricity suppliers for the use of NGED's
distribution network. Credit risk management for these receivables is performed in accordance with industry standards as sct out by
Ofgem and governed by the credit rujes within the DCUSA.

In order to minimise exposure to debt, the DCUSA requires NGED to monitor electricity suppliers’ (NGED's customers) indebledness
ratios datly to ensure it dozs not exceed 85%. The indebtedness ratio is delined as "Value at Risk/Credi Limit' where "Value at Risk' is
the suppliers' current autstanding invoices plus a 15 day estimate of unbilled amounts and 'Credit Limit' is calculated by reference to
NGED's RAV, the supplicrs' credit rating from an approved credit referencing agency, and the supplicrs’ payment performance history.

Where necessary, suppliers can ensure they are within the 85% indebtedness threshold by providing collateral to increase their 'Credit
Limit". This can be in the form of a lenter of credit or equivalent bank guarantee, an escrow account deposil. a cash deposit, or any other
form of collateral agreed between NGED and the supplier. At 31T March 2023, the NGELD Group held collateral in relation to trade
receivables in the forin of cash £16.0m (2022: £4.9m), letters of credit £84.5m (2022: £106.2m), and parent company guaranlecs
£13.6m (2022: £16.6m). Letters of credit have a rating of whwniy s A28&P A or greater. The maximum amounts for parent company
guarantees are based on their credit ratings as per the DCUSA regulations.
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17. Loan receivable

2023 2022
£m fm
Loan reccivable from uitimate parent company 146.4 -

Loan receivable from ultimate parent company pertains to amount lent under the two-way loan agreement with National Grid Pic. The
loan is unscecured and is repayable on demand. Interest is accrued on the balance at daily SONIA plus 0.25% margin.

i8, Cash at bank and in hand

2023 2022

£m fm

Cash at bank 47.5 47.2
Short-term bank deposits 0.5 101.6
Cash at bank and in hand 48.0 148.8

The fair value of cash at bank is considercd te approximate its carrying amount, Short term deposits are measured at fair value through
profit and loss ("FYTPL."). Cash at bank earns interest at floaling rates based on short-term bank deposit rates. Short term deposits are
all instant access funds.

At 31 March 2023, the NGED Group had available £845.0m (2022: £845 .0m) of undrawn commitied borrowing facilities in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been mct. All facilities incur commitment fees at market rates. At 31 March 2023, it also had
availablc undrawn uncommitted facilities of £1.9m (2022: £1.9m).

tncluded i cash and short-term bank deposits are restricted amounts totalling £15.6m1 (2022 £12.4m} which are not readily available
for the gencral purposes of the NGED Group. The restrictions relate largely to minimum cash balances that are required to be

maintained fur insurance purposes and cash balances that can only be used for low carbon network fund projects.

For ihe purpose ol the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalenis comprise the following at 31 March:

2923 2022

£m m

Cash at bank and in hand {from above) 48.0 148.8
Bank overdrafis (INote 20)* {11.3) (2L
Cash and cash equivalents 36.7 1277

*Rank overdrafts comprize principally unpresented cheques and BACS at the year end.
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19. Trade and oiher payables

2023 20272
£m £m
Current payables

Trade pavables 86.0 53.0
Social security and other taxes 71.0 63.6
Payments received in advance 246.2 214.5
Other payables 20.6 4.9
Deferred contributions 51.8 49.2
Deferred income 12.6 12.3
Acerugls 281.0 2853
Amounts due 1o allihiated National Grid Companics - 4.4
769.2 £89.2

Non-current payables
Deferred contributions 2,954.2 2,806.8
29542 2,806.8
3,723.4 3,496.0

Trade and other payables comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchasss and ongoing costs. Other payables include £16.0m {2022:
£4.9m) DUoS collateral deposits received from suppliers in accordance with the DCUSA, Deferred contributions are those amounts
received from customers in respect of new connections to the network.

The carrying amount of trade and other payables is considered to approximatc their fair value.

20. Loans and other berrowings

2023 2022
£m £m

Current
Bank overdrafts 11.3 211
Loan with uliimate parent company (i) 567.9 662.6
Lcasc liabilities™ 32 1.7
5.253% GBL700m bonds due 2023 (i) - 700.3
3.623% GB£300m bonds duc 2023 499.6 -
1,682.0 1,385.7

(i} The loan with ultimatc parent company pertains to smounts drawn under the two-way loan agreement with National Grid Ple. The
loan 15 unsecured and is repayable on demand. Interest is accrucd daily on the balance at SONIA plus 0.25% margin,

{11} 3.25% GB£700 bond dug 2023 was repaid in January 2023,
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20, Loans and olher borrowings (continued)

2923 2022
£m Lm

Non-current
Lease liabilities* 133 8.2
5.875% GB£250m bonds due 2027 (iv) 249.4 249.2
5.73% GBL200m bonds duc 2040 (iv) 198.0 i97.9
2.375% GBL£250m bonds due 2029 248.0 2477
4.804% GBL225m bonds due 2037 (i) (iv) 221.6 221.4
5.75% GBE£200m bonds due 2040 {iv) 198.0 197.9
1.625% GBL250m bonds due 2035 246.6 2464
6.25% GB£230m bonds due 2040 (iv} 256.3 256.6
6.00% GBREL250m bonds due 2023 (iv) 251.1 2516
5.75% GBL8U0m bonds dug 2032 (iv) 793.9 7932
3.873% GB£400m bonds due 2024 (iv) 399.2 398.6
3.625% GRE300m bonds due 2023 - 4989
7.373% USS2062m bonds due 2028 159.4 1487
3.3% GBL3IS5Om bonds due 2026 347.7 347.0
1. £250m bonds due 2031 246.7 2463
34 o andg Jue N7 432.2 -
T By e SiHim nonds due BIED 430.5 -
1.341% * RPL GB£103m index linked bonds 2033 (i) (iit) 188.9 166.6
1.541% ~ RPL GBL120m index linked bonds 2056 (ii) (1) 2459 150.4
0.010% - RP1 GBE3Om index iinked bonds 2029 (ii) 69.0 61.2
0.010% ~ RPT GBL30m index iinked bonds 2036 (iii) 39.9 353
2.671% - RPI GBL140m index linked bonds 2043 (iii) 244.9 220.6
1.676% + RPI GBL105m index linked bonds 2032 (iif) 164.2 146.7
0.4975% 1 RP1 GB£100m index linked bonds 2030 (iii) 136.1 119.5
1.25% - RP1GBE3Om index linked bonds duc 2028 (iii) 39.3 34.7
3,790.1 5.281.6
Total lpans and other borrowings 6.872.1 6,670.3

(1} May be redeemed, in total but not in part. on 21 December 2026, at the greater of (he principal value or & vaiue determined by
reference to the gross redemption yield on a nominated UK Goveranient bord.

(i) May be redecmed, in total by series, on 1 December 2026, at the greater of the adjusted principal value and a make-whole value
determined by reference to the gross real yield on a pominated UK Government hond

{iil} The principal amount of the notes iz adjusted based on changes in a specified index. as detailed in the terms of the related
indentures. The adjustment to the principal amounts in the current year was an increase of approximately £67.8m resulting from
inflation.

(iv) May be pul by the holders to the issuer for redemption il the long-term credit ratings assigned 1o the notes are withdrawn by any of
the rating agencies {Moody's or S&P) or reduced to a non-investment grade rating of Bal or BB in connection with a restructuring
event which includes the loss of, or 2 material adverse change to. the distribution licences under which the issuer operates

Nane of the outstanding debt securities noted above has sinking fund requirements.

*L.ease liabilitics

2023 2022

£m £m

Opening 9.9 2.4

Additigns 8.8 2.0

Paymenis during the year 2.7 (1M

Interest expense 0.5 02

AL 31 March 16.5 9.9
of which

Current 3.2 1.7

Non-current 13.3 8.2
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10. Loans and other borrowings (continued)

*Lease liabilities (continued)

The NGED Group leases various proparties under non-cancellable opeiating lease arrangements. In addition 1o this, NGED leases in
rights 10 capacity on third party fibre optic networks, and space and equipment at third party telecommunication sites, under non-
cancellable lease arrangements, in order to extend its core fibre network for its point to point transmission services. The lcases have
various terms, escalation clauses and renewable rights, Lease terms and rentals to be paid during the lease term are defined within the
agreement. In some cases, lease rentals may be subject to 2 rent review on dates specified within the agreemient at the then prevailing
market rale,

Shert o ledses und low vatue leases are excluded from recognition on the balance sheet. The amount charged to rent expense
pertaining to short term leases amounts to £8.1m (2021: £7.4m) and pertaining to Tow value leases amounts to £0.8m (2021: £0.8m).

The carrying amounts of the NGED Group's barrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
+ = p =

2023 2022
£m fm
UK pound 5,850.0 6,521.6
L'S dollar 159.4 487
kuro 862.7 -
6,872.1 6,670.3
21. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
2023 2022
£m £m
Borrowings (excluding lzase liabilities and bank overdrafis) 6,844.3 6,639.3
Lease Liabilities 16.5 9.9
Derivatives in hedging relauonship (43.8) (35.9)
Gross debt net of refated derivatives (excluding bank overdraft) 6,817.0 6.613.3
Change in hiabilities arising from financing activities
2023 2022
im L£m
Cash flow per financing activity section of cash fiow staterment
Net (decreass) increasc in short term horrowings (107.2y 661.7
Proceeds from long term borrowings net of issue cosls 866.7 -
Repayment of long term borrowings (700.0) (618.1)
Payment of lease liabilities 2.7) (1.7)
Change in liabilities arising Jrom financing activities 56.8 41.4
Non-cash adjustments
Iair vatue change in derivatives (7.9) (7.9
Fair value gain on borrowings related 1o fair value hedges (14.0)
Forcign exchange loss on borrowings 20.0 72
Net increase in borrowings due to indexation 125.0 67.8
Amortization of premiums, discounts and issuc costs 2.0 2.0
Interest payable balance rolled into ultimate parent company two-way toan 12.5 1.4
feascs acquired during the year §8.8 2.0
Inferest expense on lease 0.5 0.2
Movement in gross debt net of relaled derivatives in the year 203.7 114.1
Gross debt net of related derivatives at beginning of year 6,613.3 6,499.2
Gross debt net of related derivatives (excluding bank overdralts) at end of year 6,817.0 66133
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statements (continued)
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22. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Risk management related to financing activities is carried out by the National Grid ple central treasury department under policies
approved by the Finance Commitiee of the National Grid ple Board. These policies have been deemed applicable at NGED companies
by their respeclive board of directors. The objective of the treasury department is to manage funding and liguidity requirements,
including managing associated financial risks, to within acceptable boundaries. The Finance Conmittee provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risk, interest vate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk. use of derivative financial instruments and non derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity. Details
of key activities in the current year are sel out in the Finance Commitiee report on page 89 of the National Grid ple Arnual Report and
Accounts,

The NGED Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafis, bonds and trade payables.
The main purpose of these financial labilities is to raise finance for the NGED Group's operations. The NGED Group has various
financial assets such as trade receivables and cash and short-term deposits. which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the NGED Group's financial instruments are fair value interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk
and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Where appropriaie, derivatives are used for hedging currency and interest rate risk, and exposures are formally designated as fair value
or cash flow hedges as defined in IFRS 9. Hedge accounting allows the timing of the profit or loss impact of gualifying hedging
instruments to be recognised in the same reporting period as the corresponding impact of hedged exposures. To qualify for hedge
accounting, documentation is prepared specifying the risk management objective and strategy. the component iransactions and
methodology used for elfectiveness measurement

Hedge accounting relationships are designated in line with risk management activities further described below. Categories designated at
NGED are:

- currency risk arising from our forecasted foreign currency transactions (debt issuance) is designated in cash flow hedges:

- currency and interest rale risk arising from borrowings arc designated in cash flow or fair value hedges.

The assessment of whether the derivative will be effective is determined by comparison of the critical terms of the hedging instrument
{i.e. cross-currency interest rate swap) with the critical terms of the hedged item. Critical ierms of hedging instruments and hedged items
are transacted to match on a 1:1 ratio by notional values. Because of the fact that the critical terms are the same, the entity can conciude
that changes in cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged are cxpecied to be completely offset by the hedging derivative. Hedge
ineffectiveness can nonetheless arise from inherent differences between derivatives and non-derivative instruments and other market
factors including credit, correlations, supply and demand, and market volatilities. Ineffectiveness is recognised in the remeasurements
component of finance income and costs (see note 7). Hedge accounting is discontinued when a hedging relationship no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting.

Certain hedging instrument components. such as gains or losses arising from foreign currency basis, are treated separately as costs of
hedging with the gains and losses deferred in a component of other eqguity reserves, and released systematically into profit or luss to
correspond with the timing and impact of hedged exposures, or released in full to finance costs upon an early discontinuation of a
hedging relationship.

‘The hedge ratio is calculated from the quantity of the hedge item being hedged and the quantity of the hedging instrument being used to
hedge that quantity of the hedged item. There is no imbalance between the weightings of the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

It is. and has been throughouwt 2023 and 2022. the NGED Group's pelicy that no speculative trading in financial instruments shall be
underiaken.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that movements in market rales. including foreign exchange rates, interest rates and inflation will affect the NGED
Group's profit. The management of market risk is undertaken with risk limits approved by the Board.

Interest rate risk

The NGED Group has issued debt to finance its operations, which exposes it to interest rate risk. The NGED Group's interest rate risk
management policy includes achieving the lowest possible cost of debt financing, while managing volatility of interest rates, applying a
prudent mix of fixed and floating debt, either directly or through the use of derivative financial instruments affecting a shift in interest
rate exposures between fixed and floating. and also matching debt service requirements to projected cash flows.
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22. Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting for interest rale risk

Rorrnwings issued at variable rates eapuse the NGED Group 1o cash flow interest rate risk. Where a hedging insfrument resuls in
paying a fixed rate, it is designated as a cash flow hedge because it has reduced the cash flow volatility of the hedged borrowing,
Changes in the fair value of the derivative are initially recognised in other comprehensive income as gains or losses in the cash flow
hedge reserve, with any ineffective portion recognised immediately in the income statement.

Borrowings paying fixed rates expose NGED to fair value interest rate risk. Where the hedging instrument pays a floaling rate, it is
designated as a fair value hedge heoause it has reduced the fair value wolulility of the bouuvwing. Changes in the fawr value of the
derivative and changes in the fair value of the hedged item in relation to the risk being hedged are both adjusted on the balance sheet
and offset in the income statement to the extent the fair valuc hedge is effective, with the residual difference remaiming as
ineffectiveness.

The NGED Group has entered into cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as fair value hadges in order to hedge the fair value
risks associated with the Euro horrowings arising from fluctuations in interest rates.

NGED may also hedge the variability in the semi-annual interest paynicnts related to the forecast debt issnance attributable to changes in
the benchmark intersst rate (ie. swap rate) hetween hedge inception and the smuawres’s pricing date. This can be achieved through the
use of a forward-starting intercst rate swap, whereby NGED pays fixed and reccives floating, that will be terminated when the debt
issuance is priced. Through interesi rate swaps NGED wants to benefit from lower gill rates at a point of time. Locking in the rates at
the lowest possible levels assists NGED 1o outperform the allowed cost of debt under Ofgem's price control mechanism.

The possible sources of hedge ineffectiveness are if the hedged transaction does net ocour or if the transaction dogs not oceur at the
initial agreed terms such as timing, principal and tenor of issuance. Another possible source of hedge ineffectiveness is the credit risk of

the swap counterparty.

The net exposure Lo inlerest rates at the balance sheet date can be sunmmarized thus:

2023 2022
Carrying Carrying
Interest bearing earning assets and habilities: amount amoun
£m £m
Fixed 5,148.0 4.975.7
Floating 388.1 334.9
tndex-linked 1,098.2 975.0
6,634.3 6.485.6
2023 2022
Carrying Carrying
Represented by: amount amount
£m £m
(ash at banl and in hand 48.0n {148.8)
[oan receivable (146.0) -
Derivative financial assets, liabilitics {43.8) (35.9)
Loans and borrowlngs 6,872.1 6,670.3
6,0634.3 6,483.6
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Notes to the National Grid TElectricity Distribution ple (formerly Wesiern Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the ycar ended 31 March 2623

22. Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rare sensitivity

The impact of a change in interest rates is dependent on the specific details of the financial asset or liability in question. Changes in
fixed rate financial assets and liabilities. which account for the majority of loans and borrowings, are not measured at fair value through
the income statement. In addition to this, changes 10 fixed-to-fined hedging instruments which are recorded under cash flow hedge
accounting also do not impact the income statement. Changes in variable rate inswruments are recorded through the income statement.
The exposure measured 1s thercfore based o vartable rate debt.

The following table demonstraics the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
on the NGED Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrawings). There is no impact on the NGED Group's
equity.

The sensitivity analysis exeludes all non-derivative fixed rate financial instruments carried at amortised cost but includes all noa-
derivative floating rate financial instruments,

Crrrency derivatives have not been included in the sensitivity analysis below as they are not eonsidercd to be exposed to interest rate
risk.

All sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of the proportion of fixed to loating instruments being eonsistent as af the
balance shect date. The sensitivity analysis is indicative only and it should be noted that the NGED Group's exposure to such market rate
changes is continually changing. The calculation is based on linear cxirapolations of rate changes which may not veflect the actual result
which would impact upon the NGED Group.

2023 2022
Income Income
statement statement
(before tax) Equity  (before tax) Equity
+/-£m +i-£m - Em =~ Em
Interest Rate - 100bp 3.9 - 53 -

nflation risk

The NGED Group's index-linked borrowvings and intercst liabilities are exposed 1o a risk of change in the canying value due to changes
in the UK RPL This form of lability is a good match to the NGED Group's regulated assets ("RANV")Y. which are also linked 1o RP1 duc
to the price setting mechanism imposed by the regulator, and also the price cap s linked to RPL By matching labilities 1o assets, index-
linked debt hedges the exposure to changes in RPL and delivers a cash flow benefit, as compensation for the inflation visk is provided
through adjustment to the principal rather than in cash.

The carrying value ot indev-linked debt held by the NGED Group is as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m
index-linked debt 1,098.2 975.0

.

nflation sensitnaty

Assuming sensitivity to the RPI does not ke into account any changes to revenue or operating costs that are affected by RPI or
inflation genzraliv. the following table shows the illustrative effect on the income statement that would result from reasonably possible
movements in changes in RPI before the effects of tax.

2623 2022
Income Income
statement statemsnt
(before tax) Equity  (before 1ax) Equiity
+i-£m +-£m —-fm - - Ekm
UK Retail Prices Index -~ 1.00% i1.0 (8.9 G.8 (7.9
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Notes 1o the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued}
For the year ended 31 March 2023

22, Fingncial ingtruments (continged)

Fareigh currency risk i
The NGED Group's assefs are principally sterling denominated; however. the NGLD Group has access to various international debt
capital markets and raises foreign currency denominated debt and is therefore exposed to foreign currency risk on its borrowings.

Hedge accounting for currency risk

Where long-term debt is denominated in a currency which is not sterling, the NGED Group's policy is to swap 100% of the foreign
currency denominated principal and interest cash flows into sterling through the use of cross-currency interest rate swaps. Under a
currency swap, the NGED Group agrees with another party to exchange the principal amount of the twa currencizs, together with
interest amounts in 1he two currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest rate basis and principal amount. The principal of these
instruments reflects the extent of the NGED Group's involvement in the instruments but dees not represent its exposure to credit risk,
which is assessed by reference to the fair value,

The NGED Group has entered info cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges in order to hedge the currency cash
flow risks associated with the future intercst and principal payments on the NGED Group's US dollar and Euro borrowings arising from
fluctuations in currency rates.

The cross-curreacy interest rate swaps have two finod interest rate legs (hal malch the interest payment, currency, notional anount and
maturity date of the relate debt. Furthermore, the swaps also provide for a final exchange of currency on maturity of debts, thereby also
eliminating any currency risk related to the principal repayment.

AL31 March 2023, the NGED Group had outstanding cross-currency swap agreements in cash flow hedges against borrowings with a
total principal amount of $202.0m (2022: $202.0m) and €368 3 (2022: nib) and a swapped notional principal of £9%0.4m (2022:
£121.9m). The hedges were assessed to be effective. The cross-currency interest rate swaps have a remaining term of nine years (2022:
seven years) to match the underlying hedged borrowings consisting of semi-annual interest payments and the repayment of principal
amounts. Under the swaps the NGED Group receives US dollar interest at an average fixed rate of 6.0% (2022: 6.0%) and Euro interest
at an average fixed rate 0f 3.7% (2022: nil) and pays pound sterling infcrest at an average fixed rate of 5.69% (2022: 7.4%).

‘The principal amount of the NGED Group's foreign currency denominated monctary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting datce

and the impact of derivative financial instruments used to manage foreign currency risk were as follows:

2023 20722

Sm Sm

Borrowings (202.0) (202.00
Gross exposure (202.0) (202.0)
Iffect of cross-currency inlerest raie swaps 202.0 202.0
Net exposure - -
2023 2022

£m L]

Bormrowings (1,000.0} -
Gross exposure (1,000.0) -
lllect of cross-currency intercst rate swaps 1,000.0 -

et exposure - -

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in Sterling against the US dollar and euro exchange
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the NGED Group's profit before tax and the NGED Group's equity.
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™otes to 1he National! Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated linancial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

22. Financial instruments (continued)

Foreign curvency sansitivity (continued) 2023 2022

Income Income

statement statement
(before 1ax) Equity  ({before tax) Equity
£m £m Im £m
10% increase in exchange rates - US Dollar - (1.2) - (2.7
10% decrease in exchange rates - US Dollar - 1.5 - 33
10% increase in cxchange rates - Euro - 3.9) - -
10% decrease in exchange rates - Euro - 7.1 - -

Credit risk (see also Note 16)

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterpartly to a financial instrument will fail to perform or fail to pay amounts due causing
financial loss to the NGED Group and arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with financial
institutions and principally from credit exposures to customers relating to outstanding receivables.

NGED maintains credit policies and procedures with respect 1o counterpartics (including requirements that counterparties maintain
certain credit ratings criteria), Depending on the creditworthiness of the counterparty, the NGED Group may require collateral or other
credit enhancements such as cash deposits or tetters of credit and parent company guarantees

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset tn the balance sheet. At 31 March the
maximum exposure to credit risk was as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand 48.0 1488
Loan receivable 146.0 -
Trade receivables 291.1 282.5
Other receivables 15.5 13.3
Accrued income 3.8 8.1
Derivative financial instruments 48.4 359
554.8 490.8

The NGED Group held collateral in relation to trade receivables in the form of cash £16.0m (2022: £4.9m). letters of credit £84.3m
(2022: £106.2m}, and parent company guarantees £15.6m (2022: £16.6m).

NGED has concentrations of customers among electric utilities and other energy marketing and trading companpies. These
concentrations of counterparties may impact NGED's overall exposure to credit risk. eithcr positively or negatively, in that

counterparties may be similarly affecied by changes in economic, regulatory or other conditions.

The analysis of NGEIDYs financial assets by credit risk rating grade is as foliow:

12 month 1.ifetime

2023 ECT ECL FVIPL FVOCI Totaf

£m £m £m £m £m
AAA to A (TLow to Fair Risk) 47.5 - 0.5 48.4 96.4
8BB to B {Moniloring) 146.0 - - - 146.0
Gthers monitored on ageing matrix - 315.0 - - 315.0
Total gross carrying value 193.5 3159 0.5 48.4 357.4
Loss alfowance - (2.6} - - {2.6)
Net carrying value 1935 312.4 0.5 48.4 554.8
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly YWestern Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

22. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (see also Note 16} (continued)

2022 12 month Lifetime
ECL LFCL FVTPL FVOC1 Total
fm £m fm m £m

AAA to AiLow te Fair Risk) 47.2 - 101.6 359 184.7
RBR tn R (Manitoring) -

Others monitored on ageing matrix - 327.5 - - 327.3
Total Gross Carrying Value 47.2 3275 101.6 359 5122
Loss Allowance - (21.4) - - 21.4)
et Carrying Value 47.2 306.1 101.6 358 490.8
Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the NGED Group will not have sufficient funds to meet the obligations or commitments arising from ifts
business operations and its financial liabilities.

Treasury is responsible for managing the banking and liquidity requirements of the NGED Group, risk management relaiing to interest
rate and foreign exchange exposures, and for managing the credit risk relating to the banking counterparties with which it transacts. The

department's operations are governed by policiss determined by the Board

The following credit facilitics were in place at 31 March 2023:

Letters of Unused

Expiration Capacity Borrowed credit issued capacity

date £m £m £m £m

NGED Soully West - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 220.0 - - 2200
NGED East Midlands - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 250.0 - y 250.0
NGED West Midlands - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 230.0 - - 230.0
NGED South Wales - Syndicated Credit Facility May 2025 i25.0 - - 125.0
Bank overdraft 20,0 - - 20.0
Uncommitted Credit Facilities 6.0 - 4.1 1.2
Total Credit Facilities 871.0 - 4.1 866.9

The NGED Group also bas uncommitted two-way loan facilitics with its ultimaie parent, National Grid Ple.

The NGED Group's primary source of liguidity is cash generated from i3 ongoing business operations. The electricity regulator sets a
major element of the NGED Group's revenues, providing both a stable and predictable source of funds. In recognition of the Tang life of
the NGED Greup's assels and anticipated indebtedness. and to create financial efficiencias, the NGED Group's policy is to arrange that
debt marturities are spread over a wide range of dates. theveby ensuring that the NGED Group is not subject to excessive refinancing risk
in any ong year. The NGED Group has entered into borrowing agreements for periods out 1o 2056.

The following tables detail the NGED Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial Hiabilities, The tables have

been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial Habilities based on the carliest date on which the NGED Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows
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statements {continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

22. Financial instruments (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

2023 [.ess than One to Five to Greater than
one year five years {ifteen years fifieen years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Borrowings excluding lease liabilities 1,324.5 2,047.7 4,122.3 1,695.0 9,189.5
Lease liabilitics 3.2 9.8 39 7.0 239
Trade and other payables 387.6 - - - 387.6
Total 1,715.3 2,057.5 4,126.2 1,702.0 9,601.0
2022 Less than One to Five to  Greater than
one year five ycars  fifteen years  fiftcen years Total
fm £m Lm £m fm
Borrowings excluding lease Habilities 1.630.6 24826 2,927 8 1,866 8 8.9111
Lease liabilitics 1.7 4.3 4.0 6.5 163
Jrade and otber payables 347.6 - - - 347.6
Total 1,979.9 2,487.2 2.931.8 1,876.3 9.273.2

The following table details the NGRED Group's liquidity apalysis for s derivative Anancial instruments. The fable has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted gross cash {infiows) and outfiows on derivatives that require gross settlement.

2023 Less than One 1o Five to Greater than
0ne year five vears fifteen years fifteen years Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Cross currency derivative payments 53.1 212.3 1,296.6 - 1,562.0
Cross currency derivative rocelpls (44.9) {179.7) (1,3700.9) - (3,595.5)
Total 8.2 32.6 (74.3) - (33.5)
2022 Less than One to Five to  Greater than
one ygar five ycars  Fiftwen years  fificen years Total
Lm £m Lm fm £
Cross currency derivative payments 8.0 359 139.8 - 1847
Cross currency derivative receipls (11.3) (45.4) (176.4) - (233.1)
Total (2.3 (9.5} 136.6) - 484

Fair values of financial assers and finarcial Lobilities
Set out below is a comparison by categary of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the NGED Group's financial instruments thar are
carried in the financial statements
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidaled financial

statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

22. Financial instruments (continued)

Falr values of financial assets and financial llabilifies (continued;

2023 Fair value
through FFair value
Amortised profit & througli  Total book

cost loss QCl value Fair value

£m £m £m £m £m
Firirnc il ussels
Cash at bank and in hand 47.5 0.5 - 48.0 48.0
[oan receivable 146.0 - - 146.0 146.0
Derivative financial instruments - - 48.4 48.4 48.4
Trade and other receivables 3124 - - 312.4 312.4
Firancial liabitities
Bank overdrall (il1.3) - - (11.3) (11.3)
Interest-bearing loans and borrewings:
- Fixed rale borrowings (5,178.2) - - (5,178.2) (5,071.3)
- Floaling rate borrowings (567.9) - - (567.9) (567.9)
« Index linked (1,098.2) - - (1,098.2) (983.0)
Lease liabilitics (16.3) (16.5) (16.5)
Derivative financial instruments - 2.9 (1.7 (4.6) (4.6)
Trade and other payables (387.6) - - (387.6) (387.6)

(6,753.8) (2.4) 46.7 (6,709.5) (6,487.4)
2022 Fair value
though Fair value
Amortised profit & through  Total buok

cost loss OCIL value Fair value

Lm Lm £m Im fm
Financial assets
Cash 47.2 101.6 - 148.8 148.8
Derivative linancial instrumenis - - 359 359 359
Trade and other receivables 306.1 - - 306.1 306.1
Financial ligbilities
Bank overdraft 2un - - 211} (21.1)
Interest-hearing loans and borrowings:
- Fixed rate borrowings 3,001.7) - - (5,001.7) (5,574 .4}
- Floating rate borrowings (662.6) - - {662.6) (662.6)
- ladex linked (973.0) - - (975.0) (1.420.8)
Lease liabilities (9.9) (9.9} (9.9)
Trade and oiher payables (347.6) - - (347.6) (359.9)

(6,664.6) 101.6 35.9 (6,527.1) {7.558.0)

The fair value of the NGED Group's outstanding cross-currency interest rate swaps is the estimated amount, calculated using discounted
cash flow models, that the NGED Group would receive or pay in order to terminate such contracts in an srm's length transaction taking

inte account market rates of interest and forcign exchange at the balance sheet date.

The carrving value of the NGED Group's bank loans and overdrafts approximates their fair value. The fair valus of the NGED Group's
other borrowings is estimated using quotsd prices or. where these are not available, discounfed cash flow analysis based on the NGLD
Group's current incremental borrowing rates for similar types and maturities of borowing: these are classified as Tevel 2 in the fair

value hierarchy.
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Notes Lo the National Grid Efectricity Distribution ple (fermerly Western Power Distribution pic) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2623

22. Financial instruments (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The carrymg value of short term receivables and payables arc assumed to approximate their fair values where discounting is not
material.

Fair value hierarchy
The NGED Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair valug of (inancial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in aclive markets for identical assets or labilities;

Level 2: ather techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value arc observable,
either direcily or indirectly; and

Level 3: technigues which usc inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that arc not based on

observable market data,

As at 31 March 2023, the NGED Group held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:

1023 Eevell Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m

Assets measured at fair vahie
Derivatives financial instruments - 48.4 - 48.4
Short term deposits 0.3 - - 0.5

Liahilities measured at fair value

Derivatives financial instruments - (4.6) - -
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m

Assets measured ar falr value
Derivalives financial instruments - 35.9 - 339
Short term dzposits 101.6 - - 101.6

To manage interest rate risk and foreign currency cxchange risk, NGLED uses contracts such as forward-starting swaps and cross-
currency infercst ratc swaps. An income approach is used to measure the fair value of these contracts, utilising readily observable inputs,
such as forward bnterest rates and forward foreign currency cxchange rates, as well as inputs that may not be observable, such as credit
valuation adjustments. Tn certain cases, marke! infarmation cannot practicably be obtained to value credit risk and therefore internal
niedels are relied upon. These models use projecied probabilities eof default and estimated recovery ratcs based on historical
observances. The nmpact of credit risk on the fair value of derivatives 1s generally small relative to liabilities like debt. because the
principal (notional) amount 18 not at risk and credit enhancements often exist and thus the overall classification of derivatives as Level 2
remaing apprepriate. NGED generally does not caleulate separate lquidity valuation adjustments, based on the wadery view that
liguidity risk is included in the market prices. NGED also docs not gencrally caleulate modelling reserves, as the interest rate forcign
currency derivatives can be developed using standard practices,

During the veporting period ending 31 March 2023, there were no transfers between Levzl |and Level 2 fair value measurements, and
N

no transters inte and out of the Level 3 fair value measurements.
Hedge counterparties are major banks of high quality credit standing,.

In addition to the abkove financial instrumeants. the fair value of long-term debt and investment at amorised cost as disclesed under
financial liabilities is classified as Level 2,

NGOED uses observable market data from Bloomberg to arrive at the fair value of long term debt and investment at amortised cost.
Capital risk management

The primary objectve of the NGRD Group's capital management s to ensurs that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support 18 business and maximise shareholder valus.
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22, Financial instruments {continued)

Capital risk management (coniinued)

the NGELY Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in cconomic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the NGED Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to sharcholders or issuc
new shares, No changes were made in the objectives, policies ar processes during the years ended 31 March 2023 or 31 March 2022.

The NGED Group does not consider the standard gearing ratio of nct debt as a percentage of net debt plus nct assets shown in the
balance sheet as an appropriate capital monitoring measurc as it does not reflect the economic value of the assets of the Group's
regulated businesses. Instead, the NGED Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the RAV. The RAV
is a regulatory measurc of the regulated busincss’ asset base required to carry ouf the regulated activities. Regulated revenues are
designed to cover operating costs (including certain replacement expenditure} and capilal depreciation, as well as an allowed return on
the RAV. The NGED Group's policy is to maintain a gearing ratio that ensurcs an investmem grade credit rating. The NGED Group
includes within net debt borrowings and associated cross-currency interest rate swaps less cash and cash equivalents and deposits.

2023 2022
£m £m

Short term borrowings 10675 13029
l.ong term borrowings 5,776.8 52764
lease labilities 16.5 9.9
Letlers of eredit 4.1 4.1
Cross-currency interest rate swaps (43.8) (35.9)
Loan receivable (146.0) -
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding restricted cash) (21.1) {114.8)
et debt 6,654.0 6,502.6
Regulatory Asset Value 10,846.4 9,407.1
Gearing ratio 61% 69%
Reconciliation of cash flows to net debt

2023 2022

£m Lm

Net decrcase/(increase) in cash and cash equivalents 93.7 (1143
et {decrease)/increase in short term borrowings (107.2) 661.2
Met increasce. (deerease) in lung term bortowings 106.7 (618.1)
Net increase in loan receivable (146.0) -
Payment of lcase liabilities (2.7) (1.7}
Change in debt resulting from cash flows 4.5 30.0
['air value change in derivative (7.9} (7.9}
Fair value gain on borrewings related to fair value hedges {14.0)
Forcign exchange loss on barrowings 20.0 7.2
Netinerzage io borrowings duc to indexartion 1250 67 .8
Amottisation of premiums. discounts and issue costs 2.0 2.0
Movement in letters of credits - 0.6
Inlerest payable balance rofled into ultimate parent company fwo-way loan 12.5 1.4
I eases acquired during the vear 8.8 2.0
interest expense on lease 0.5 2
Mevementin net debt in the year 151.4 i03.3
Net debt at beginning of year 6,502.6 6,399 3
et delt at end of yea &,604.U 65.502.6
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23. Decrivative financial instruments

Hedging instruments

Asat 31 March, the NGED Group held the following derivative financial instruments measured al lair value:

Change in

2023 value used
for
Carrying Carrying Line item  ¢alculating
Nominal amount amount  in balance inefTective
amount assets liahilities sheet hedge
£m £m £m £m £m
FForeign currency risk
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 730.1 48.4 {1.7) Derivative (23.0)
financial
instruments
Interest rate risk
Cross-currency inlerest rate swaps - [air value hedges 260.3 2.9 Derivative (13.0)
financial
instruments
990.4 48.4 (4.6) (36.0)
2022 Change in
value used
for
Carrying Carrying Line item caleulating
Nominal amount amount  in balancc ineflective
amount (assets)  (liabilitles) shect hedge
Lim £m Lm £m £m
Foreign currency risk
Cross-currency intercst rate swaps - cash flow hedges 121.9 35.9 - Derivative -
financial
instrunients
121.9 359 - -
Tining profile for hedge instroments' nominal amourits
2023
Less than One to Tive to Greater than
one vear five years fificen years [ifteen years Tolal
£m £m £m £m £m
Cross-currency interesl vate swaps - cash flow hedges - - 730.1 - 730.1
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 260.3 260.3
2022
[.ess than One to Five to  Greater than
one yoar five vears fiftecn vears  fifizen vears Total
Lm £m £m £m £
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges - - 121.9 - 1219
The averags rate of the hedging instruments is as follows:
2023 2022
Foreign currency risk:
Cross-currency intorest rate swaps 5.52% 737%
Interest rate risk
Cross-cuwrency interest rate swaps 3.79% -
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23. Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Hedged items - cash flow hedges

2023 2022
Change  Cash flow Change
in value hedge in value
vsed for reserve used for Cash flow
calculating balance calculating hedge
hedge net of hedge reserve
inclfectiveness tax mettectiveness balance
£m £m £ £m
Foreign currency risk:
Borrowings 23.0 (11.6) - 3.8
fnterest rate risk
Borrowings - (13.3) - (17.6)
Hedged items - Falr value hedges
2023 2022
Change Fair value Change Fair value
in value gain hedge in value gain hedge
used for Carrying adjusiments used for Carrying  adjustments
calculating value of ineluded calculating value of included
hedge hedged in hedge hedged in
ineffectiveness  borrowings borrowings incftectiveness  borrowings  borrowings
£m £m £m Im £m Lm
Interest rate risk
Borrowings 12.0 862.7 (14.1) - - -
Hedge effectiveness
2023
L.ine item in
income Amount Amount Lineitem in
Ineffective statement  reclassified  reclassified income
hedge portion including because because statement
Hedging  recognised ineffective  cash flows hedged item including
wain/(toss) in income hedge no longer afTected reclass
in OCt statement portion expected P&L  adjustment
£m £m £m £m
Foreign currency risk - cash (low hedge (1.9 - Finance - (16.9)  Finance
incomne costs
Intergst rate risk - cash flow hedge - - - 1.3  Finance
cosis
Interest rate risk - Faiv value hedge - (1.0) Finance - -
income
2022
Line tem in
ncome Amount Amount  Ling item in
Ineffective statement  reclassified  reclassified income
hedge portion including because because statemncnt
Hedging  recognised ineffective  cash flows  hedged item including
gain ¢ (loss) in income hedge no longer affected reclass
in OCI statement portion expected P&L  adjustment
£m £m £m fm
Foreign currency risk 9.9 - - - (2.3) Finance
costs
Interest rate risk - - - - 1.8
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23. Derivative financial ingtruments {continued)

Reconciliation of hedging reserve 2023 2022
Cash flow Cost of Cash flow Costof
hedge hedge hedge hedge
reserve reserve reserve reserve
£m £m £m fm
Opening balance (13.8) - (16.9) -
Hedging gain'(loss) (1.9) 0.6 9.9 -

Amount reclassificd to income statement because

hedged item affected profit and loss (15.6) - (7.5) -
Income tax impact 4.4 {0.1) 0.7 -
Closing balance (26.9) 0.5 (13.8) -

24. Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the NGED Group and movements thereon during the current and

prior year:

Aceelerated Retirement
capital benefit
aliowances  obligation Qther Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2021 706. 754 (15.0) 766.8
Charge 10 the income statement 2773 4.5 0.4 282.2
Charge. (credit) 10 equity - 280.3 (0.7) 279.6
Transfer between categories (9.1 - 9.1 -
ALT April 2022 974.9 3399 (6.2) 1,3286
Charge to the income statement 63.7 223 03 863
Credit to equity - (220.7) “@.7) (223.4)
Disposal of subsidiary 0.9 - 0.9
At 31 March 2023 1,039.5 161.3 (10.6} 1.150.4

Accelerated capital allowances represents the tax deferred on profits due to the difference in tining when the deductions for expenditure
on fixed assets are recognised in the income siatement through depreciation and when tax deductions for that expenditure through
capital aliowances are included in tax returns filed with [IMRC. Delerred tax arises on retirement benefit obligations as tax deductions
are incfuded in tax refurns as contributions are paid to the pension schemaes and not when the obligations or surpluses on the schemes
are recorded in the financial statements. The other deoferred tax balances relate to items such as provisions and accruals that are tax
deductible when paid rather than when accrued and debt value adjustments that are taxed deducted under tax rules at times different
when those adjustments have been recognised in the Income statements.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are only offse! where there is a legally enforceable right of offset and there is an intention 1o seftle the
balances net. After offset. theve is a net deferred tax liability that will reverse after more than one year. The net deferred tax Hability
will impact the Troug 3 tax payments ovar a very long period of time mainly due to the long expecied useful lives of fixed asseis and the
SOULD I SenSion sONermey tahUid W SNl marsrts danss

Deferred tax assets arc recognised for tax loss carry-forvwards to the extent that the realisation of the deferred tax bencfit through furure
taxablc profits iz probable. The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of £238.1m (2022: £238.1m) in respect of capital losses
amounting to £952.3m (2022: £932.4m) that can be carried forward against future taxable chargzable gains as there is o use of these
asseis for the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements {continued)
Yor the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement henefit obligations

Introduction

The NGED Group operates four defined benefit pension schemes:

- two segments of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme ("ESPS"),
- the segment covering NGED South West and NGED South Wales ("ESPS WPD"), and
- the segment covering NGED East Midlands and NGED West Midlands ("ESPS CN")

- the Western Power Utilitics Pension Scheme ("WPUPS™)

- the Infralec 1992 Pension Scheme ("Infralec 92"}

The assets of all four schemes are held separately from those of the NGED Group in trustee administered funds.

The ESPS provides pension and other related defined benefits based on final pensionable pay to employees throughout the electricity
supply industry. The two segments of the ESPS rclating to NGED are closed to new members except in very limited circumstances.
Existing members are unaffected. A defined contribution scheme is offered to new employees.

NGED South Wales is the principal employer for WPUPS, which is a defined benefit scheme providing benefits relating to previous
employees of a former affiliated group. NGED South Wales will fund the actuarial deficit. However, as National Grid Electricity
Distribution Holdings Limited, (formerly Western Yower Distribution Holding Company Timited), the Company's parent, has taken full
financial responsibility for this scheme, NGED South Wales will be reimbursed for these payments. As National Grid Electricity
Distribution Holdings Limited, (formerly Western Power Distribution Holding Company Limited) is ountside the NGED Group, the
value of the reimbursement agreement is stated in the balance sheet (Note 26) and matches the gross asset/liability recorded under TAS
19 below.

Infralec 92 provides benefits on both a money purchase and final salary basis and is operaled by NGED South Wales.
WPUPS and Infralec 92 are closed with no active members.

The NGED Group also has an urlunded obligation which relates to previous executives of NGED East Midlands and NGED West
Midlands. NGED South Wales also has an unfunded obligation ir relation to previous cxecutives. This is subject to reimbursement by
National Grid Distribution Holdings Limited as a result of the novation agreement executed during the prior year, and therefore a
corresponding reimbursement asset is stated on the balance sheet (Note 16) and maitches the liability recorded under IAS 19.

Other scheme
NGED also operates a defined contribution scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of NGED in an
independent lund administered by the scheme trustee. The scheme has two sections:
(a) a closed section with no active members. At 31 March 2023 there were 188 members with deferred benefits in the scheme (2022:
191) and 7 pensioncrs (2022: 5). Market value of the assets was £2.3m (2022 £2.4m).
(b} a new pension arrangement available to all new employees in NGED with effect from 1 April 2010. At 31 March 2023 there were
5.001 members (2022: 4,588). The market value of the assets of the open section of the scheme was £164.1m (2022: £164.0m).
Employer contributions to the scheme amounted to £15.3m in the year {2022; £13.5m).

Defined benefit schemes

The liability/asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of the plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually
by independent actuaries, Aon, using the projected unit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits are paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from expericnce adjustments and changes to actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

The schemes are funded, defined benefit, final salary pension plans. The level of benefits provided depends on members' length of
service and their salary at the date of leaving the NGED group. The majority of pensions in payment receive inflationary increases in
fine with the RPT ("Retail Prices [ndex") inflation. The benefit payments are from trustee-administered funds. The amount of
contributions to be paid is decided jointly by the employer and the Trustees of the Scheme. Assets held in trust are governed by UK
regulations and practice. The schemes' investment strategy is decided by the Trustees, in consuliation with the employer. The Boards of
Trusiees must be composed of representatives of the employer and plan participants in accordance with the schemes' legal
documentation.
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Noies to the Naiional Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) conselidated financial
statements (continued)
For the ycar ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benelit obligations (continued)

The amounts recognised in the balance sheel are determined as [ollows:

2923

ESPS WPD ESPS CN WPUPS  [Infralec 92 Unfunded Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Present value of obligations 1,809.9 2,535.1 381.1 10.1 6.4 4,742.6

Fair value of scheme assets {1,930.9) (2,986.6) {457.6) {13.9} - (5,389.0)

(Sux'pIuS)ideﬁ.ctt of funded plan and (asset) Tiability (121.0) (451.5) (76.5) 3.8) 6.4 (646.4)
recognised in the balance sheet

Represented by:

Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 6.4 6.4

Retirement benefit assets (121.0) (451.5) {76.5) 3.8) - {652.8)

(121.0) (451.5) (76.5) (3.8) 6.4 (646.4)

2022

ESPS WPD ESPS CN WPUPS  Infralec 92 Unfunded Total

£m £m £m £m £m £

Present value of obligations 2.368.5 3.336.9 491.8 12.8 77 6,217.7

Fair value of schema assets (2,827.3) (4,216.3) (397.0) (17.3) - (7.638.1)

(Surp]us)‘:deﬁ_mt of funded plan and (asset)lHability (438.8) (879.4) (1652 (4.7 77 (1.440.4)
recegnised in the balance sheet

Represented by:

Retirenicnt benefit obligations - - - - 77 7.7

Retirement benefit assets (458.8) (879.4) (103.2) (4.7) - (1,448.1)

(458.8) (879.4) (103.2) (4.7 7.7 (1.440.4)

The regulator. Ofgeni. currently allows ongeoing service costs and a proportion of the deficit costs to be recovered through regulated
meome.

Analysis of the amaount charged to profit before nierest and taxation or to capital expenditure:

2023

ESPS WPD ESPS CN WPLUPS Infralec 92 Unfunded Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Current sarvice cost 2137 27.2 - - - 30.9
Adminisirative costs 1.5 9 0.7 - - 4.1
WPUPS reimbursement agreement - - 0.7) - - 0.7)
Opcrating charge relating to defined 252 291 B B ) 54.3

benefit plaps

Interest ingome on plan assels (67.3) {100.2) 4.9 (0.4) - (181.9)
Interest on plan liabilities 33.7 78.3 11.5 0.3 6.1 146.1
WIPLUPS relinbursement agreement - - 2.5 - - 2.5
Other finance (inceme} expense (11.6) (21.7) - 0.1 0.1 (33.3)
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Notes 1o the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
[or the year ended 31 March 2023

23. Retirement henefit obligations {continued)

2022

ESPS wrL ESPS CN WPLPS Infralec 92 Unfunded Total
Lm Lm Lm Lm £m £m
Current service cost 32.6 36.4 - - - 69.0

Administrative costs 1.3 1.7 0.4 - - 3.
WPUPS reimbursement agresment - - (0.4% - - (0.4}
Operating charge relating to defined 119 381 : . . 720

benefit plans

Interest inconic on plan assets (52.9) (79.13 (12.1) (0.4} - (144.5})
Interest on plan liabilities 52.2 73.5 10.1 0.3 0.2 136.3
WPLPS reimbursement agreement - - 2.6 - - 2.0
Gther finance (income) expense 0.7y (5.6) - (0. 02 (6.2)

The operating charge is allocated (o the operating expenses in the income statement or to capital expenditurc as appropriate.

Analysis of the amount recognized in other comprehensive income:

2023
LSPS WPD ESPS CN WPUPS  [Enfralec 92 Unfunded Tota!
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included In interest {income) ‘expense 002.7 1,247.4 126.2 3.6 - 2,279.9
Gain from change in
demographic assumptions 22.4) (29.9) (4.7) (0.1} - (37.1)
Gain from change in financial
assuniptions (573.0) (770.3) (92.00 (2.2) (t.1) (1.439.2)
Experience insses {(gains) 35.4 42.5 1.0 0.1) - 98.8
WPUPS Reimburserment agreement - - (30.5) - 0.4 {30.1)
Remeasurement losses recognised in =
. ST 362.1 489.7 - 1.2 (0.7) §32.3
other comprehensive incoms
2022
ESPS WIPD ESPS CN WPUPS  Infralec 92 Unfunded Total
£m im £m £m £m £m
Return on plan asseis excluding amounts
included in interest incoms (196.5) {294.4) (2.8) - - (493.7)
Loss from change in
demographic assumptions 87.2 118.4 13.1 0.5 - 219.2
(Gain) loss from change in
financial assumptions (333.8) (462.4) (29.5) {1.1) 0.4 (828.4)
Experiznce losses 24.5 38.1 14.0 2 - 76.8
WPUPS reimbursement agreement - - 5.2 - {0.2) 5.0
Remeasurement {gains). losses recognised in p B \ - N
(420.6) {600.3) - (0.4 02 (1.021.1)

other comprehensive income
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated [inancial
statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023
25. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the accounting period is as follows:

ESPS WED Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Present Fair value Present Fair value
value of of plan value of of plan
obligatien assets Total obligation assets Total
£m £m £m Lm £m £m
Liability/(asset) at 1 April 2,368.5 (2,827.3) (458.8) 2,606.1 (2,637.6) (31.5)
Current service cost 23.7 - 23.7 32.6 - 32.6
Administrative costs 1.5 1.5 1.3 - 1.3
interest expensef{income) 55.7 (67.3) (11.6) 522 (32.9) 0.7y
Past service cost and gains and losses
on settlements 4.8 - 4.8 - - -
8§35.7 (67.3) 18.4 86,1 (52.9) 332
Remcasurements:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in inlerest {income) expense - 902.7 902.7 - (196.5) (196.3)
(Gain)loss from change in
demographic assumptions 22.49) - (22.4) 87.2 - 87.2
Gain from change in financial
assumnptions (373.6) - (373.6) (333.8) - {335.8)
Fxperience iosses 55.4 - 55.4 24.5 - 24.5
(540.6) 902.7 3621 (224.1) (196 5) (420.6)
Contributions:
Fmployers - (42.7) (42.7) . (39.93 (39.9)
Plan participants 38 (3.8) - 3.8 {3 8) -
3.8 (46.3) (42.7) 338 (43.7) (39.9)
Payiments from plan:
Renefit payments (106.) 106.0 - {102 1) 1021 -
Administrative costs (1.5 1.5 - {1.5) 13 -
(107.5) 107.3 - (103.4) 103 4 -
Liabifity/(asset) at 31 March 1,809.9 (1.930.93 (121.0) 2.368.5 (2,827.3) {438.8)
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Wesiern Power Bistribution ple) consolidaied financial

statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Relirement benefit obligations (continued)

ESPS CN

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

Present Fair value Present Fair value
value of of plan value of of plan
obligation assets Total obligation assels Total
£m £m m £m £m fm
Liability/(asset) at 1 April 3,336.9 (4,216.3) (879.4) 3,671.6 3,940.9) (269.0)
Current service cost 27.2 - 27.2 36.4 - 36.4
Administrative costs 1.9 - ig .7 - 1.7
Interest expense (income) 78.5 (106.2) (21.7) 73.5 {79.1) {5.6)
107.6 (109.2) 7.4 111.6 (79.1) 32.5
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest {income) expense - 1,247.4 1,247.4 - (294 4} (794 4)
(Gatit). loss from change in
demographic assumptions {29.9) - (29.9}) 118.4 - 118.4
Gain from change in financial
assumptions (770.3) - (770.3) (462.4) - (462.43
Experience losses 42.5 - 42.5 38.1 - 38.1
(737.7) 1,247.4 489.7 303.9) (294.4) (600.3)
Contributions:
Employers - (69.2) (69.2) - (42.6) (42.6)
Plan participants 3.7 (5.7) - 5.7 (5.7
3.7 (749 (69.2) 5.7 (48.3) {42.6}
Payments from plan:
Henelit payments (153.5) 155.5 - (144.7) 144.7 -
Administrative costs (1.9) 1.9 - {1.7) 1.7 -
(157.4) 157.4 - (146.43 146.4 -
Liability/(asset) at 31 Mareh 2,535.1 (2,986.6) (431.5) 3,336.9 (4,216.3) (875.4)
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Notes 10 the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (confinued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

. wWPUPrS Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Present  Fair value Present Fair value
value of of plan vatue of of plan
obligation assets Total obligation assets Total
£m fm £m Lm £m £m
Liabitity/(asset) at 1 April 491.8 (597.0) (105.2) 5100 (608.4) (98.4)
Administrative costs 0.7 - 0.7 0.4 - 0.4
Interest expense/(income) 11.5 (14.9) (2.5) 10.1 (12.1) (2.0)
12.2 (14.0) (1.8) 105 (12.1) (1.6)
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest expense (income) - 126.2 126.2 - (2.8) (2.8)
{Gain) loss from change
demographic assumptions (4.7) - 4.7) 13.1 - 13.1
Gain from change in financial
assumptions {92.0) - (92.0) (29.3) - (29.3)
Tixperience loss 1.0 - 1.0 14.0 - 14.0
(95.7) 126.2 30.5 (2.4) (2.8) (5.2)

Contributions:
Fmployers - - - -

Payments from plan:

Benefit payments (26.3) 26.3 - (25.9) 239 -
Administrative costs (0.7} 0.7 - (0.4) 0.4 -
(27.2) 27.2 - {26.3) 26.3 -

Liability/(asset) at 31 March 381.1 (437.6) (76.5) 491.8 (397.03 (105.2)
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Notes lo the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) censolidated financial

statements {continued)
Fer the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

Infralec 92 Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Present  Fair value Present Fair value
value of of plan value of of plan
Liability/(asset) at 1 April 12.8 {17.3) (4.7) 12.5 (17.4) (3.9)
Interest expensed(income) 0.3 (0.4} (0.1) 0.3 0.4) 0.1
0.3 {0.4) (0.1) 0.2 (U.4) (U.1)
Remeasurements:
Return an plan assets exchuding amounts
included in interest (income)’expense - 3.6 3.6 - - -
(Gain) loss from change in
demographic assumptions (0.1} - 0.1} 0.5 - 0.5
Gain from change in financial
assumptions (2.2) - (2.2} (1.1 - (1.1}
Experience (gains)‘losses (0.1) (0.1) 0.2 - 2
(2.4) 3.6 1.2 {0.4) - (0.4)
Contributions:
Emplovers - (hL2) 1.2) - (0.3) (0.3)
- (0.2) (0.2) - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plan:
Beneht payments (0.6} 0.6 - {0.6) 0.6 -
(0.6} 0.6 - {0.6) 0.6 -
Liability/{asset) at 31 March 10.1 (13.9) (3.8) 12.8 (17.5) 4.7
The significant actuarial assumptions made were as [ollows:
2023
ESPS WPD ESPS CN WPLPS Infralec 92
% % %o %
RPI Inflation 3.15 315 3.20 3.20
CPI InNation 2.63 2.65 2.60 2.60
Ratg of peneral long-term salary increases 3.10 310 N/a N/a
RPI-linked pension tncreases 3.05* 2.95 3.20 295
CPl-linked pension increases Nia Nia 2.60 N/a
Posi-88 GMP pension increases 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilives 4.80 4.80 4.80 4.80

* with 59 cap for ycars ending 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, mean ol RP1 and RPl with 5% cap for year ending 31 March 2023.
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated linancial

statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The significant actuanal assumptions made were as follows:

2022

ESPS WPD ESPS N WPLPS Infralec 92
Yo %o Yo Yo

RPT Infiation 3.30 3.60 3.70 3.70
CPl inflation 3.05 3.19 3.5 3.5
Rate of general long-lerm salary increases 3.55 3.60 Nfa Na
RPIl-linked pension increasas 3.10 310 37 315
CPl-linked pension increases Na N'a 3.15 Na
Post-88 GMP pension increascs 210 2.10 2.15 215
Discount rate for scheme Jiabilities 2.80 2.80 2.75 2,73

Assumptions relating to future mortalily are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience. These
assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years for a member at age 60:

ESPS WPD

i 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
T
Bascd on S2PXA basc tables  Based on S2PXA base
with CMI 2021 core tables with CAH 2021 core !
Mortality table adopted projections and a 1.25% per projections and a 1.25% per
annum long-ternm annum long-term
improvement rate improvement rale
Life expectancy for a male currently aged 60 26.5 269
Life expectancy for a female currentiy aged 60 285 ' 28.8
Lifc expectancy at 60 for a male currently aged | o 281 j
40 277 28. i
Life expectancy at 60 for a fenale currently 26,70 30 00 «‘
aged 40 | |
ESPS CN
31 March 2023 51 March 2021
;
EBased on S2PXA base tables  Based on S2PXA base |
P with CMI 2021 core tables with CML 2021 core
Mortality tablc adopted : projections and a 1.25% per projections and a 1.25% per
i annum long-tarm annum long-term
improvement rate inprovement rate ;
!
L.ife cxpectancy for a male currently aged 60 26.3 26.9 !
£
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 283 288 :
H )
Life expectancy at 60 for a male currently aged | o :
1 277 281
40 |
Life expectancy at 60 for a female currently :? 3975 3000
aged 40 :

National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Wesiern Power Distribution ple)

116



Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Westerni Power Disteibution ple) consolidated fimancial
statements (continued)
For the yvear ended 31 March 2023

25. Relirement benefit ebligations (cantinued)

WPUPS
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 i
*with CMI1 2021 core Fwith CMI 2021 core ';
jecti and a 1.23% ject dal.235% i
Mortalily fable adopted projections and a 1.23% per projcciions and a 1.23% perg
annum long-term annum long-term i
improvement rate improvement rate :
Life expectancy for a male currently aged 60 | 26.4 269
iife expeciancy for a female currently aged 60 28.9 29.2 !
Life expectancy at 60 206‘ a male currently aged 273 982
ifs ex ' ale current]
Lile expectancy at 60 for a female currently : 304 306
aged 40 ) ;

* Male non-pensioners: 105% of S3PMA base tables, lemale non-pensioners: 97% of S3PFA middie base tables, male pensioners
103% of S3PMA base tables, female pensioners: 96% of S3PFA_middle basc tables

Infralee 92

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
100% of S2PX A basc tables 100% of S2PXA base 1ables”
with CMI 2021 core with CMI1 2021 core :
Mortality table adopled prajections and a 1.25% per projections and a 1.25% pcl‘é
! annum long-ltenn annum long-term i
5 improvement rate improvement rate
+ .
Life expeciancy for a male currently aged 60 285 26.9 5
1 .
Life expectancy for a female currently aged 60 | 28.5 288
i
Life expectancy at 60 for a male currently aged 78 1 285
40 ‘
Life expectancy at 60 for a female currently 301 304
aged 40

The sensitivity of the defined bencfit obligation te changes in the principal assumptions is:

Lmpact on defined bencefit obligation

Change in
assumiption ESPS WP [SPSCN WPUPS Infralec 92
%% £m £m £m £m
[Discount rate =1 19% 1204211 -343/-281 -417-35 -1/.-1
RPI Inflation ~-1% -207.-174 220208 —36-32 -1
Life expectancy -1 year 64 109 15 -

The above sensitivity analysis on the discount rate is based on a change in assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The
change in RPI inflation assumption impacts on the salary increases. CP1 assumption, revaluation in deferment and pension increasc
assumptions. Vyhen calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
{present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting paried) has
been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the balanca sheat.
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Notes 1o the National Grid Electricify Disiribotion ple (lormerly
statements (continucd)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

ESPS WPD scheme assets are comprised as follows:

31 March 2023

Wesiern Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial

3t March 2022

Of which
not quoted
in an active

Of which
not quoted
mn an active

Total market Total market
£m £m £m £m
fquities 259.0 2.9y 28.7 (3.6)
Credit 203.2 - 250.0
Property 2252 225.2 253.2 253.2
Diversified alternatives 247.3 - 536.4 -
LD} strategy 998.5 998.5 1,130.6 1,130.6
QOther including cash and net current assets (2.3) (4.6) 28.4 (4.1
Total 1,930.9 1,217.1 2,827.3 1,376.1

ESPS ON scheme assets are comprised as follows:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

OF which
not quoted
in an active

Of which
not quoted
i an active

Total market Total market
£m £m Lm £m

Equitics 204.2 (1.4) 6862 6.0
Credit 295.4 - 331.7 -
Property 358.2 358.2 3057 365.7
Diversified alternatives 461.0 - 798.1 -
1.1 strategy 1,675.1 1,542.8 2,018.2 1,943 1
Other including cash and net current assets (7.3) 8.7y (7.1) (8.3)
Total 2,986.6 1,890.9 4,212.8 2,291.3

WIUPS schemie assets are comprised as follows:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

OFf which
not quoled
in an active

Of which
not quoeted
inan active

Total marlet Total market

£m £m fm Em

Corporate bonds 244.4 - 281.6 -
LD strategy 211.7 204.9 3129 309.5
Other 1.5 0.9 23 (0.9)
Total 437.6 205.8 397.0 308.6

Infralec 92 scheme assets are comprised as fuflows:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Of which Of which

not quoted not quoted

in an active 10 an active

Total market Total marker

£m £m £m £m

Equities 1.3 _ 7.9 ;
Govermment bonds 3.2 - 3R

Corporate bonds 2.6 - 353 -
Other 0.4 0.1 0.3

Total 13.9 0.1 17.5 -
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple {formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

25. Retirement benelit obligations (continued)

There is no self-investment in any of the schemes.

Through its defined benefit pension plans, the NGED Group is exposed 10 a numiber of risks, the most significant of which are detailed
below:

‘Assel volatility "The liabilities are calculated using a discount rate sct with reference to corporate bond viclds; if:
' assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. The scheme holds a significant proportion;
t growth assets (e.g. equities) which are expected to outperiorm corporate bonds in the long-term;
iwhile providing volatility and risk in the short-term. The allocation to growth assets is manitored:

lsuch that it is suitable with the schemes' long-term objectives. ;

Changes in bond yields IA decrease in corporats bond yields will increase the schemes' liabilities, although this will be,
lpartlal]y offset by an increase in the value of the schemes' bond holdings. :
iThe majority of the schemes’ benefit obligalions are linked to inflation, and higher inflation willi
lead to higher liabilities (although, in most cases, caps on the level of inflationary increases are in'
‘place to protect against extreme inflation). A proportion of the assets are either unaffected by or
‘loosely correlated with inflation, meaning than an increasc in inflation will increase the deficit.

Inflation risk

Life expectancy he majorily of the schemes' obligations are to prowde henehts for the life of the member. so

‘increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the liabilities.

The schemes use Government bonds, corporate bonds and cash as matching assets in the LDI strategy holding. The remainder of assets
are used as growth assets.

The current agreed employer contributions for the WPD segment of the ESPS are 43.1% per annum of pensionable salaries plus an
additional £1.2m per anhum covering luture benefit accruals, expenses (including PPF levies) and death in service benetits. In addition,
the Company is committed to deficit contributions of £18.0m per annum payable monthly from 1 April 2023 to 30 November 2024,

The currcnt agreed employer contributions for the CN segment of the ESPS are 37.5% per annum of pensionable salaries plus an
additional £1.2m per annum covering future benalit accrual, expenses (including PPF levics) and death in service benefits. The payment
of deficit contributions into LSPS CON are currently suspended but will be restarted at £3m per month should the assessed funding level

fall below a defined level,

The results of the 31 March 2019 funding valuation showed that WPUPS was in surplus and as a result, no contributions arc expected to
be paid into the schems for the vear ending 31 March 2024,

The Company is currently conusitted to payments of £0.2m per annum until 31 March 2024 (inclusive) in respect ol Infralee 92.

Current sxpeeted lolal employer contributions for the year ending 31 March 2024 arg £47.2m for the WPD segment of the ESPS and
£31.8m for the CN sezment of the [SPS.

The next triennial valuation for cach scheme is being negotiated with an effective date of 31 March 2022, Pending the outcome of these
valuations, the contribution requirements summarised above are likely 1o change.

The weighted avarage duration of the defined benefit obligation is around 13 wears for the WP scgment of the ESPS, 12 years for the
CN gegment of the ESPS and around 10 years for WPUPS and Infralec 92.
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Notes Lo the National Grid Eiectricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

26. Provisions

WPUPS Asset
Reimbursement  Retirement
Agreement Obligations  Insurance Pensions Other Total
(i) (i) (iii) (iv) )
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
At 1 Apnl 2022 105.2 34.5 17.4 3.8 2.9 163.8
Additional / {releasc) 1.8 2.5 (0.8} {043 2.9 6.0
Net decreass due to discount rate change and
unwinding of discount - (7.8) - - - (7.8}
WPUPS rcimbursement remeasurements 30.3) - - - - (30.5)
Utilised dul'ing year - (1.1) - (0.7) - (1.8)
A1 31 March 2023 760.5 28.1 16.6 2.7 5.8 129.7
Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
Current - 1.1 88 0.7 4.5 15.1
Non-current 76.5 27.6 7.8 2.0 1.3 114.6
At 3] March 2023 76.5 28.1 16.6 2.7 5.8 129.7
Current - 1.5 9.1 0.8 1.9 13.3
Non-current 1052 33.0 8.3 3.0 1.0 150.3
At 3T March 2022 103.2 34.5 17.4 3.8 2.9 163.8

(i NG South Wales is the pringipal emplover for WPUPS, which is a defined benefit scheme providing henefils relating to previous
employses of a former affiliated group. “GED South Wates will fund the acluarial deficit. Howsver, as National Grid Electricity
Distribution Holdings Lumited (formerly Western Power Distribution Holding Company Limited), the Company's parent. has taken full
financial responsibility for this scheme, WGHD South Wales will be reimbursed for these payments. As National Grid Llectricity
Distribution Tloldings Limited is outside the NGED Group, the value of the relmbursement agreement is stated in the balance sheer as a
provision abgve, and matches the gruss asset recorded under 1AS 19 (Note 25).

(11) Asset retivement obligations relate to en estimate of the costs of disposing and removing wood peles, fluid filled cables. SF6 gas
units and PCR contaminated units at the end of their uselul lives and are expected 10 be settied ovaer the next 85 vears. These assets are
included in distribution network within property. plant and equipment.

(i) Insurance previsions relale 1 claims covered by the NOED Group's wholly-owned captive insurance company, Aztec Insurance
Limited ("Aztec”). based in Guernsey, and claims covered by external insurers. This includes third party moetor claims, employers'
liability. public and product liability, and professional indemnity and includes elaims that are reported but not yet paid and anticipated
cost of claims incurred bul not yet reported, The directors expect the provision o be settled in the next five years.

(1v) Pansicn provisions relate to expected setrlements of liabilitics relating o the pension liability relating to the Electricity Association
Technology Limvited ("EATL) and are expected 1o be setiled over a period of approximately eight years

(v} Other provisions relate principzlly to onerous uninsured losses, and miscellancous claims arising in the ordinary course of business:
the direclors expect other provisions to be settled within the next two years.
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Notes 10 the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution plc) consolidated financial
statements (continued)
ot the year ended 31 March 2023

27. Share capital

2023 2022
ifm £m

Issued and fully paid:
1,057,392,372 (2022: 1,057,592,372) ordinary shares of £1 cach 1,057.6 1,057.6

The shares entitle 1he holders thereof to one vote per share held. Each share ranks equally for any dividend declared and any distribution
iade on g winding up. The sharey are not redeemable.

28. Capital and reserves

2023 2022

fm £m

Share capital 1.657.6 i,057.6
Merger reserve (963.1H (963.1)
Hedging reserve (20.4) IR
Non-cash capital contribution reserve 3.5 0.5
Retained earnings 0,179.9 6,275.5
6,251.5 6,356.7

The share capital represents the nominal valug of the authorised ordinary shares in the Company in issuc which carry a nght to
participate in the distribution of dividends or capital of the Company.

The merger reserve arose on the restructuring of NGLED Group entities under comimon control in October 2014 and September 2001.
The hedging reserve is stated net of tax and comprises of £0.5m gain in relation to cost of hedging and £26.9m loss in relation to cash
flow hedge reserve heing the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedge derivative instruments

related to hedged transaciions thai have not yet occurred. Reler note 23 for details.

The nen-cash capital contribution reserve perfains to the employee share option scheme offered by the parent to be settled in the
shares ol the parent.

29. Contingent liabilities

The NGED Group's businesses are parties to various legal c¢laims, actions and complaints. Alihough the NGED Group is unable to
predict with certainty whether or not it will ultimately be successful in these legal procecdings or, if not, what the impact might be, the
directors currently believe that disposition of these matters will not have a materially adverse effect on the NGED Group's financial
statements.

30. Commitments

Copital commitments
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheel date but not recognised in the financial statements is as follows:

2023 2022
£m £m
Property, plant and equipment 182.3 146.1

Operating lease commimments - NGED Group as fessor

The NGED Group has entercd into commereial property leases on its investment property portfolio. consisting of the NGED Group's
surplus offices, shops remaining from a discontinued business. and surplus land, and also on its fibres The leases have lease terms
between 1 and 125 years, and have various terms, escalation clauses and rencwable rights. Leases include a clause to enable upward
revision of rental charge on a review cycle set on lease inception according 1o prevailing market conditions.
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Notes 1o ihe National Grid Electricity Disiribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023

30. Commitments {comtinued)

Operating lease commitments - NGED Group as lessor (continued)

Future mininmum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 March are as follows:

2023 2022

£m £m

Year 1 3.6 3.2
Ycar 2 3.0 2.9
Year 3 2.6 2.4
Year 4 2.5 18
Year 5 2.4 1.8
Year 6 and onwards 5.7 7.5
19.8 19.6

Guarantees and ndentuties
The NGED Group has provided guarantees in respect of the funding required by the NGED Group's pension schemes.

31. Related party transactions

The immediale parent undertaking of the NGED Group is National Grid Electricity Distribution Holdings Limited (formerly Weslern
Power Distribution Holding Company Limited). which is registered in England and Wales. The ultimate controlling parent of the NGED
Group is National Grid Ple, registered in England and Wales.

The smallest and largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that by headed by Nationa! Grid ple, registerad in
LEngland and Wales. Coples of these consolidated linancial statements can be obtained from the Company Secrctary, National Grid ple, 1-

3 Strand, London WC2N SEIL

There are ne personnel, ather than the directors, who as key management have authority and responsibility for planning, dirgcting and
controlling the activities, divectly or indirectly. of the NGED Group. Details of directors’ compensation are set out in Note 9.

The following significant transactions with refated parties were in the normal course of busincss.

2023 2022

n £m

Revenue - National Grid affiliate companies (1) 12.4 14.0
Operating costs - National Grid alfiliate companies (i) (49.1) (19.8)
Net lnance cosl (3.9 (1.8)
Loan with ultimate parent company (ii1) (567.9) (662.6)
Loan receivable from uflimate parent company (i) 146.0 -
Amounts due to affiliated National Grid Companies - (4.4
WPUPS reimbursement liability e WPLUPS pension assat (iv) (76.3) (105.2)
Reimbursement asset re unfunded pension Lability (v} 2.7 3.2

(i} Revenuz from related parties consists of engineering recharge revenue from National Grid entities in relation to ongoing diversion
projects.

{1ty Operating costs chargad by related parties largely relates to National Grid exit charges (charges levied by National Grid Electricity
Transmission for connection o the clectricity transmission sysieim) and corporate recharges.

{111} he loan with and receivable from ultiinate parent company pertains to amounts drawn under the two-way loan agreement with

National Grid Ple. The loan is unsecured and is repayable demand. Intevest 1s accrued on the balance daily ar SONIA plus 0.253%
margin.
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Notes to the National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (lormerly Western Power Distribution ple) consclidated financial
statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

31. Related party transactions (continued)

(iv) NGED South Wales is the principal employer for WPUPS, which is a defined benefit scheme providing bencfits relating to previous
cmployees ot a tormer alhlated group. NGED South Wales will fund the actuarial deficit. However, National Grid Electricity
Distributien IToldings Limited (formerly Weslern Power Distribution Holding Company Limiled), the Company's parent, has taken full
financial responsibility for this scheme, NGED South Wales will be reimbursed for these payments. As National Grid Electricity
Distribution Heldings Limited is outside the NGED Group, the value of the reimbursement agreement is stated in the balance sheet and
matches the asset recorded under 1AS 19 (Note 25 and Note 26).

(v) NGLD Soulh Wales alse bas an unfunded pension liability in respect of previous executives. National Grid Electricity Distribution
Holdings Limited has taken full responsibility for this scheme and, therefore, NGED South Wales will be reimbursed for these
payments. The value of the reimbursement agreement is stated in the balance sheet and matches the liability rccorded under TAS 19
(Note 25 and Note 16).

32. Events after the reporting period

On 3 April 2023, the £845m RCF facilities of the Group expiring in May 2025 were cancelied and replaced with a new facility of
£845m with a 5 year maturity expiring on 3 April 2028.

On 24 April 2023, the Group repurchased £115.8m of the £800m 5.75% bond due in April 2032, The bond was repurchased at a fair
value of £117.2m.
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Parent Company financial statements of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple)
Company balance sheet
As at 31 March 2023

2023 2022
Note £m fm
Nan-current asscts
Investments:
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 4 2,876.0 2,876.0
Derivative financial instruments 48.3 359
29243 29119
Current assets
Debtors 5 124.6 371.6
Cagh at bank 0.1 0.2
124.7 371.8
Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 6 (768.6) (493.9)
Net current liabilities (643.9) (122.1)
Total assels tess current liabilities 2,280.4 278598
Creditors - amounts falling due alter more than one ycar [ (564.7) (1,052.1)
Proviston [or liabilities
Deferred tax 7 (1.8) (1.2%
Net assets 1,713.9 1,736.5
Capital and resetves
Share capital 8 1,0537.6 1.037.6
Hedging resorve 9 1.1 1.0
Profit and loss account 655.2 677.9
Equity shareholders' funds 1,713.9 1.736.5

The Company reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 March 2023 of £22.5m (2022: £18.0m profit) and other comprehensive
income of £0.1m (2022: £0.5m)

The financial stalements of the Company on pages 124 1o 133 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30
June 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

A
% -~ F
Cordelia O'Hara Graham Roy Halladay
Director Director
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Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Hedging Relained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
£m £m £m £m
At1 April 2021 1,057.6 0.5 500.1 1,858,2
Profit for the year - - 18.0 18.0
Other comprehensive income - 0.3 - 0.3
Total comprehensive income for the year - 0.5 18.0 18.5
Share capital reduction - - _ N
Fquity dividends paid (13.26 pence per £1 share) - - {140.2) (140.2)
A1 31 March 2022 1,057.6 1.6 677.9 1,736.5
Loss for the year - - (22.5) (22.5)
Other comprehensive incomc - 0.1 - 0.1
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - 0.1 (22.%) (22.4)
Equity dividends paid (0.02 pence per £1 share) - - 0.2) (0.2)
At 31 March 2023 1,457.6 1.1 635.2 1,713.9
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Notes 10 the Company Linancial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with FRS 101

The parent Company financial statements of National Grid Electricity Distribution plc (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) {the
"Company") for the year ended 31 March 2023 were authorised for issue by the board of dircctors on 30 June 2023 and the balance
sheet was signed on the Hewd’s behall by Cordelia O'Hara and Graham Roy Halladay. National Grid Electricity Distribution ple is a
public limited company incorporatad and registered in England and Wales.

The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 "Application of Financial Reporting Requirements”. Thesc
financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” ("FRS 101"}
and in accordance with applicablc accounting standards.

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to
financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation of a cash
flow statement, standards net yet effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions. Where required, equivalent disclosures
are given in the group accounts of National Grid Electricity Distribution ple (formerly Western Power Distribution ple) which are
included on pages to 1 1o 126.

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own income statement or statcment
of comprehensive income for the year. The profit altributable (o the Company is disclosed in the footnote to the Company's balance
sheet.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of derivative financial instruments
that are measured at fair value. as cxplained in the accounting policies below. Historical cosl is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair valuc is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the mcasurcmient date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or cstimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an assct or lability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date Fair value
for measurement and or disclosure purpeses in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that arc within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities 1o fair valuc but arc not fair value such as net realisable value in 1AS 2 or value in usc in IAS 36.

The Tamesars s financial statements are presented in Sterling as this is the currency of the primary cconomic environment in which the
Company operates. All values are rounded to the nearest hundred thousand pounds except when otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting policies adopted are sct out below.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they have a reasonable expectation that the Company
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The current financial position of the Company
shows nel current liabilities of £643 9m (2022: £122.tm). The Company's net current liabilities will be settled with a combination of
cash fluws [rom operaling aclivities, use of existing long-term facilities and issuances of long-term debt The Company can access gither
short or fong wrm borrowings in order to finance repayment of any leans due. The Company has credit ratings above the invesiment
grade and there is sufficient eviderce, including hisiorical analysis of the oregeats 2 ability 1o raise debr. to indicats that the Company
will be successfully able to raiss debt 1o finance repayments as needed. A lstter of support has also been obtained from the a parent
undertaking contirming that it will provide financial support to the Group for not less than 12 months from the date of approval ol the
financial statements.

The NGED Group's operating cotnpanics are regulated DNOs. DNCs are essential in keeping enitical infrastructure assets operating
safely and sccurely and in making sure that homes and businesses across the country are receiving the encrgy needed. The work of the
Group is crucial for the continuation of existing essential services. the establishment of new critical infrastructures and for keeping the
public, incloding the most vulnerable in our socizsty, safe. Since the Company’s income is primarily dividend and interest income from
NGOED Group entities. the Company does not consider that stage there is a material uncertainty casting a doubt over the entity's ability 1o
continue as a going concern.
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Notes to Lhe Company {inancial statements {(¢ontinued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

Gotng concern (continued)

Having assessed the regulatory obligations of the business, the Company's investment portfolio, its consistent dividend inflow, the
ability to raise finance externally and the ability of the parent underlaking to provide financial support, the directors have concluded that
the going concern basis of preparalion remains appropriate.

Impact of new International Financial Reporting Standards
The following new standards arc effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022:

* Amendments to IFRY 3 - reference to the conceptual tramework, effective [or annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

= Amendments to 1AS 16 - amendments regarding proceeds before intended use. effective lor annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022;

= Amendments to IAS 37 - amendmenis regarding onzrous contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2022;

* Annual improvements 1o IFRS standards 2018 - 2020 cycle - effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

The Company has assessed the impact of these standards and concluded that these standards de not have any material impact on the
Company's Anancial statements.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially rocorded in the entity's functional currency by applying the spet exchange rate ruling at
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencics are retransiated at the functional currency
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to profil and loss.

Non-monelary iterus that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the gxchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions.

Taxation

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be payable {or recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (or loss) for the period
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively cnacted at the balance sheet date. This includes UK corporation tax
payable ta HM Revenue & Cusioms ("1IMREC") and amounts payable to {or receivable from) other GK group companies for losses and
other amounts transferred between them ("group relicf™).

Deflerred tax is the tax expected to be payable (or recoverable) in future periods due to differenees between the time when profits and
losses are recognised in the financial statements and the time when those profits and losses arc included in tax returns filed with HMRC.
These temporary differences arise in the current period and then reverse in future periods. The lempeorary differences are calculated by
comparing the carrying value of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date with their corresponding tax bases included in tax returns.

Deferred tax is recognised on all temporary differences except:

= where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associaled with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, wherc the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be contrelled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foresecable future; and

be recovered.
Deferred tax iz messured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expecicd to apply in the periods when the temporary
differences will reverse based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offsct only to the extent permitted by tax legislation.
Income lax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income if it relales to ilems thaf are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income. Similarly, income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged
dirgetly to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognised in profit and loss.
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as debt instruments at amortised cost; debl instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"); financial assets at fair value through profit and toss ("FVTPL"); derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge; or as equity instruments designated at FVOC), as appropriate. Financial assets include cash at bank, debtors,
investments, and derivative financial instruments.. The Company determings the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, normally being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial assets
not &t fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. For financial assets at FVTPL, transaction costs are
immediately recognised in profit and loss.

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification, as follows:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the hold-to-collect business model test and sole payment principal and interest ("SPPL") contractual cash
flow test, are carried at amortised cost using the eflective interest methed, if the time value of money is significant. Gains and losses are
recognised in income when the debt instruments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. This
category of financial assets includes cash at bank, debtors and investments.

Financial assets at FVOCT

Financial assets at FVQCI, that meet the sole payment principal and interest ("SPPI") contractual cash flow test and the objective of the
Group is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial asscts, are carried on the balance sheet at fair value
with gains or lossecs recognised in other comprehensive income. This category of financial assets include derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective cash flow hedge.

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge
These derivatives are carried on the balance sheet at fair value. The treatment of gains and losses arising from revaluation is described
bclow in the accounting policy for derivative financial instruments and hedging activities.

Impairment of financial assels
The Company recognises impairment on financial assets following the expeeted credit loss ("ECL."y model in [FRS 9.

Debrors

Debtors mainly comprise amounts owed by group undertakings and are considered to be low risk. Therefore the impairment provision is
determined as 12 months expected credit loss. The 12-month ECL results from those default events on the financial assets that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Investments
Investments are considered 1o be low risk. and therefore the impairment provision is determined as 12-month expected credit loss. The
12-month ECL results from those default events on the financial assets that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank is subject to the impairment requirements of 1FRS 9 but the impairment loss on these is deemed immaterial since they have
an nsignificant risk of change in value.

Financial liabilities

Financial labilities are classified as financial labilities at FV I'PL; or as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. as appropriate,
Financial liabilitics include creditors. The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. The
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:
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Notes to the Company financial stalements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial lalilitiey measured ai amortised cost
All other financial labilities are initiatly recognised at fair value. For interest-bearing toans and borrowings this is the fair value of the
proceeds received net of issue costs associated with the borrowing.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilitics are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
inlo account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on settlement. Gains and losses arising on the repurchase, settlement or
cancellation of liahilities are reengnissd respactively in intereat and other vt and finauce costs.

This category of financial liabilities includes creditors

Derivative financial instrumenis and hedging

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Derivative financial instruments ara initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as asseis
when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair valug is negative.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives that arc not designated as eflective hedging instruments or wherc
hedge is not fully effective, are recognised in the income statement as remeasuremcnts.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are presented gross in the balance sheet unless both of the following criteria are met: the Company
currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and the Company intends to either settle on a nct basis or
realise the assct and settle the liability simultaneously. A right of set off is the Tarmesnes s legal right to settle an amount payable to a
creditor by applying against it an amount receivable from the samc counterparty. The relevant legal jurisdiction and laws applicable to
the relationships between Lhe parties are considered when assessing whether a current legally enforceable right to set offexists.

Staff cost
The Company does not employ any personnel. All staff are employed by the relevant subsidiaries.

Dividends
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholder is recognised as a liability in the NGED Group's financial statements in the year in
which the dividends are appreved by the Company's direstors.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classificd as equity and are recorded at the par value of proceeds received, net of direct issuc costs. Where shares
are issued above par valug, the proceeds in excess of par value are recorded in the share premium account.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources ol estimation uncertatnty

In the application of the Camem, $ accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the directors are required lo make judgements,
estimates and assumptions aboul the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimales and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considercd 1o be relevant. Actual
results may differ [rom thesc cstimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions o accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised If the revision alfects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future perieds if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

There are no estimates dependent upon assumptions which could change in the next financial year and have a material effect on the
carrying amounts oF assets and liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date.

There are no judgements dependent upoan assumptions which could change in the next financial year and have a material effect on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Company linancial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Subsidiary undertakings

2023 2022
£o1 £
Cost and Net book value 2.876.0 2.876.0

Details of the Campany's subsidiary undertakings are as follows:
Subsidiary undertakings

National Grid Llectricity Distribution (South West) ple (formierly Western
Pawer Distribution {(South West} plc)

National Grid Eleetricity Distribution (South Wales) ple (formerly Western
Power Distribution (South Wales) ple)

National Grid Electricity Distribution (East Midlands) ple (formerly Western
Power Distribution (East Midlands) plc)

National Grid Electricity Distribution (West Midlands) plc (formerly Western
Power Distribution (West Midlands) ple)

National Grid Electricity Distribution Investment Holdings Limited (formerly
WP D Investiment Holdings [Limited)

National Grid Electricity Distribution Network Holdings Himited (formerly
WPD Distribution Network Holdings Limited)

WPD WENM Limited

Natiepal Grid Flectricity Distribution Midlands Linvited (formerly WPD
Midiands Limited)

WPD WM Holdings Limited

National Grid Electriciy Distribution Investments Limited (formerly Western
Power Distribution Investments Limited)

MNational Grid Telecoms Limited (formerly WEPD Telecoms Limited)
National Grid Electricity Distribution Generation Limited (formerfy Western
Power Generation Limited)

National Gud Electricity Distribution Property Investments Limited
{formerly WPD Property Investments Limited)

Kelston Properties 2 Timited

Astec Insurance Linted ™

National Grid Helicopters Limited (fornerly South Western Helicopters
Limited}

NG Eleatricity Distribution Limited (formerly WPD Limited) »

Sheet Road Management Company Limited

South Wales lectricity Share Scheme [rustees Limited

Hyder Profit Sharing Trustees Limited

WV Share Schems Trustees Limited

Central Networks Trustees Limitad

WPD Share Scheme Trustees Limited

Western Power Pension Trustee Limifed

M neorporated in Guernsey.

All undertakings are registered in England and Walss unless stated.

Principal activity
Electricity distribution
Electricity distribution
Ilectricity distribution
Flectricily distribution
Invesiment company
Investment company

Investment company
Investment company

investuent company
Investment company

Telecomnmwnications
Power genaration

Property management

Propeity management
Insurance
Helicopter operator

Property management
Property management
Trustee company
Dormant company
Darmant company
Dormant company
Dormant comipany
Dormant company

Proportion
0/0
100

100
100
106
100
100

100
100

100
100

100
100

100

100
100
160

100
31
100
100
100
100
100

100

Lxcept for Nationa! Grid Electricity Distribution Investment Haldings Limited (formerty WPD Tnvestment [oldings Limited) and WPD
WEM Holdings Limited, which are owned 100% directly, all sharcs are held by subsidiary undenakings All holdings are in ordinary

shares.

Except for Aztec Insurance Limited and NG Electricity Disiribution Limited (formerly WPD Limited), the registered office of all
subsidiary undertakings is Avonbank. Fesder Road. Briswol BS2 0TB. The registered office for Aztec Insurance Limited is PO Box 153,
Mill Court. La Charroterie. St Peter Port. Guernsey, GY1 4ET and for NG Electricity Distribution Limited (formerly WPD Limited) is

Elizabeth House, T es Ruettes Brayes. St Peter Port. Guernsey, GY 1 LEW.

The exemplion under 5.394A and s 448A from preparing end filing the financia! statements of the dormant subsidiaries has been

availed.
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Notes to the Company financial statements {continued)
torthe year ended 31 March 2023

4. Subsidiary undertakings (centinued)

The following UK subsidiaries will take advaniage of the audit exemption set oul within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 o

the year ended 31 March 2023:

Subsidiary undertakings

South Wales Electricity Share Scheme Trustees Limited

National Grid Llectricity Distribution Network Holdings T.imited (formerly WPD Distribution Network
Holdings Limited)

National Grid Electricity Distribution Investment Holdings Timited (formerly WPD [nvestment Holdings
Limited)

National Grid Electricity Distribution Midlands Limited (formerly WPD Midlands Limited)

WPD WEM I[loldings Limited

WPD WEM Limited

5. Debtors

Company number
02325006
08857746

10991479
02366928

(07578676
04066211

2023 2022
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 115.9 371.6
Current tax receivable 8.7 -
124.6 371.6

Amounts owed by Group undertakings
2023 2022
£m £m
Inter-company loan due from WPD WEM lloldings Limited 112.4 370.0
Interest on loan due from WPD WEM Holdings Limited 3.5 1.7
115.9 3717

The nole rececivable is unsecured and repayable on demand. The note accrues interest at a rate of SONIA compounded fo 6 monthly

tenors. plus a margin of 1.23%.

6. Creditors

2023 2022
£m £m

Ampunts falling due within one year:
3.623% GB£500m bonds dus 2023 499.6 -
Loan with ultimate parent company (1) 209.2 476.6
Amecunts owed to Group undertakings 13.3 0.9
Accruals and deferred income 16.5 16.4
768.6 463.9
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Notes to the Company financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Creditors (continued)

2023 2022
£ £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
7.375% (JS8255m bonds due 2028 (2) 217.1 2063
3.625% GBL500m bonds due 2023 - 498.9
3.5% GB£350m bonds duc 2026 347.6 346.9
564.7 1.052.1

Borrowings are stated net of unamoriised issue costs of £1,3m (2022: £2.0m), discount on issue of L1.5m (2022: £2.1m) and premium
on issue of £10.4m (2022: £12.2m). Thesc costs, together with the interest expense, are allocated 1o the income statement over the term
of the bonds at a constant rate on the carrying amount,

{1) The loan with ultimate parent company pertains to amounts drawn under the two-way loan agreement with National Grid Ple. The
loan is unsecurcd and is repayable on demand. Interest is accrued daily on the balance at SONIA plus 0.25% margin.

(2) The Company is a co-obligor and makes all payments on the $255m 7.375% notes due 13 December 2028, In accordance with the
agreements, the Company and National Grid Electricity Distribution Holdings Limited (formerly Western Power Distribution Holding
Cornpany Limited) are jointly and severally, and fully and unconditionally, liable for the notes. The Company has recognised the
obligation for the notes, in full.

7. Deferred tax

The following arc the deferred tax liahilities recognised by the Company and movements thereon during the current year. All balanees
relate to lemporary differences in respect of nen-trade fMinancial {ransactions.

2023 2022
£m £in
At 1 April 1.2 0.7
Charged to the income statcment 0.5 0.4
Charged to equily 0.1 0.1
At 31t March 1.8 1.2
8. Share capital

2023 2022
£m £m

Issued and fully paid:
1,057,592,5372 (2022: 1,037,392.372) ordinary shares of £1 each 1,057.6 1,037.6

The shares entitle the holders therenf to one vote per share held Fach share ranks equally for any dividend declared and any distribution
made on a winding up. The shares are not redecmable.
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MNotes to the Company financial statements {continucd)
For the year ended 31 March 2023

9. Hedging reserve

2023 2022

£m £m

ALl April 1.0 0.5
Reclassification adjustments for gains on cash Now hedges

included in profit or loss 0.2 0.6

Income tax effect {0.1) (0.13

At 31 March 1.1 1.0

The hedging reserve is stated net of tax and relates to the effective pottion of the value of intergst rate derivatives assoclated with the
issuance of existing long-term debt. The interest rate derivatives were settled in prior years and the net gain continues to be amortised
through the profir and loss account over the term of the debt.

10. Events after the reporting period
There were no events after the reporting period.
11. Related party transactions

‘The immediate parent undertaking of the Company s National Grid clectricity Distribution Holdings Limited (formerly Western Power
Distribution Holding Company Limited), which is registered in England and Wales. The ultimate controlling parent of the Company is
National Grid Ple, registered in Bngland and Wales,

The largest group which includes the Company and for which consolidated financial statements ave prepared is National Grid ple,
registered in Enpland and Wales. Copies of these consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary,
National Grid ple, 1-3 Strand, London WC2N SEH,

Loan with tiltimate parent company

Al 31 March 2023, the Company has drawn down £209.2m (2022: £476.6m) under the two-way loan agresment with the parent
company, National Grid Pic. The loan is unsecured and is repayable on demand. Interest is accrued daily on the halance at SONIA plus
0.25% margin.

Registered office:
National Grid Ulectricity Distribution ple (formerly Westera Power

Distribution plc) Telephone : 0117 933 2000
Avonbank Fax 0117 933 2001

Feeder Road email: nged. infoiriinationalgrid.co.uk
Bristol Registerad number 09223384
BS20TB
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